
AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

September 13, 2022 

6:00pm Regular Session 

Loyalton: Sierra County Office of Education, Room 4, 109 Beckwith Rd, Loyalton CA 96118 

Patty Hall, Clerk, District 1 - phall@spjusd.org 

Tom Mooers, District 2 - tmooers@spjusd.org 

Christina Potter, Vice President, District 3 - cpotter@spjusd.org 

Vacant, District 4 

Dorie Gayner, District 5 - dgayner@spjusd.org 

In accordance with AB 361, effective October 1, 2021, pertaining to the convening of public meetings in response 

to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Sierra County Board of Education will suspend the Brown Act teleconferencing 

posting requirements for any Board members that choose to participate via Zoom videocoriferencing. 

Zoom: https://us02web.zoom.u /j/85052744607 

Phone dial-in: 669-900-9128 Webinar ID: 850 5274 4607 

(Press *6 to unmute) 

Any individual who requires disability-related accommodations or modifications including auxiliary aids and services in order to participate in the 

Board meeting should contact the Superintendent or designee in writing. 

Public inspection of agenda documents that are distributed to the Board less than 72 hours before the meeting, will be made available at the Sierra 

County Office of Education, Room 3, 109 Beckwith Road, Loyalton, CA, 96118, and posted with the on line agenda at 

hffp:llwww.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org (Government Code 54957.5). 

A. CALL TO ORDER

Please be advised that this meeting will be recorded.

B. ROLL CALL

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

D. FLAG SALUTE

E. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

I. Superintendent's Report

a. Assignment of Amanda Wattenburg, Teacher On Special Assignment, 1.0

FTE, effective August 22, 2022

2. Business Report

a. Account Object Summary-Balance from 07/01/2022 to 08/31/2022**

3. Staff Reports (5 minutes)

4. Board Member Reports (5 minutes)

5. Public Comment - This is an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the governing

board on any item of interest that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the governing board whether or

not it is listed on the agenda. Three (3) minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a maximum of twenty

(20) minutes to each subject matter. (Education Code 35145.5; Bylaw 9322; Government Code 54954.3)

Page 1 of3 
SCOE Agenda - September 13, 2022 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85052744607


F. CONSENT CALENDAR
1. Approval of minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held August 09, 2022 ** 
2. Approval of Board Report-Checks Dated 08/01/2022 through 08/31/2022**
3. Approval of Consolidated Application for 2022-2023**
4. Biennial Review of Conflict of Interest Code - no changes**
5. Appointment of members of the Student Attendance Review Board as follows:

1. J. Lon Cooper, Sierra County Public Defender
2. Sandra Groven, Sierra County District Attorney
3. Chuck Henson, Sierra County Chief Probation Officer (alternate: Sofia Gonzalez, Scott

Quade)
4. Laurie Marsh, Sierra County Behavioral Health (alternate: Cara Bowling)
5. Sheri Roen, Parent Representative
6. Jamie Shiltz, Sierra County Social Services (alternate: Kristal Evans)
7. Kimberly Askew, Sierra County Foster Youth Services and McKinney-Vento Liaison
8. Mike Fisher, Sierra County Sheriff
(Ed Code 48321 (a) (4) The school district representatives on the county school attendance review
board shall be nominated by the governing boards of school districts and shall be appointed by the
county superintendent of schools. All other persons and group representatives shall be appointed by
the county board of education.)

G. ACTION ITEMS
1. New Business

a. Adoption of Resolution 23-002C, Adopting the Gann Limit**
ROLL CALL VOTE

b. Adoption of Unaudited Actuals for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022**
c. Approval of proposed salary schedule changes for Classified Employees, retro

to July 1, 2022**
d. Approval of the Tentative Agreement for Classified Employees, 2022-23

Negotiations**
e. Approval of the Tentative Agreement for Sierra-Plumas Teachers Association,

2022-23 Negotiations*
f. Approval of Completion of Bargaining for SPTA, 2022-23 Negotiations*
g. Approval of utilizing AB 361 for meetings conducted through October 11, 2022

-This suspends the Brown Act teleconferencing posting requirements for

any Board members that choose to participate via Zoom videoconferencing

-AB 361 expires January 01, 2024

-Zoom will be available for the public with or without utilizing AB 361

BOARD POLICIES, ADMlNISTRA TIVE REGULATIONS, EXHIBITS, BOARD BYLAWS 

h. 1113-District and School Web Sites
1. Exhibit, revisions**

1. 1312.4-Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures
1. Administrative Regulation, revisions**

2. Exhibit, revisions**

j. 3 110-Transfer of Funds
1. Board Policy, revisions**

Page 2 of3 
SCOE Agenda - September 13, 2022 



k. 3523-Electronic Signatures
1. Board Policy, NEW**

2. Administrative Regulation, NEW**

I. 4112.2-Certification
1. Administrative Regulation, revisions**

m. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8-Family Care and Medical Leave
1. Administrative Regulation, revisions**

n. 6173. I-Education for Foster Youth
1. Administrative Regulation, revisions**

o. Approval of CSBA's recommended deletions in the list provided**
p. Approval of CSBA's recommended title changes in the list provided**

q. INFORMATION ONLY-Policies which will no longer be reviewed or
updated by CSBA in list provided**

May consider deleting at a later date if it is determined any of the policies in this 

list no longer serve a purpose. 

r. 6146.1-High School Graduation Requirements
1. Board Policy, revisions**

H. ADV AN CED PLANNING
1. Next Regular Board Meetings will be held on October 11, 2022, at Downieville School,

130 School St, Downieville CA 95936, beginning with Closed Session as needed at
5:00pm and the Regular Board Meetings at 6:00pm. Zoom videoconferencing will be
available for the public.

2. Suggested Agenda Items

I. ADJOURN

*** prior month handout 
** enclosed 
* handout

James Bera¥ Superintendent 
Secretary to the County Board of Education 

James Berardi, Superintendent - jberardi@spjusd.org 
Kristie Jacobsen, Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent - kjacobsen@spjusd.org 
Nona Griesert, Director of Business Services/CBO - ngriesert@spjusd.org 
Office: 530-993-1660 x0 

Email schoolinfo@spjusd.org to be added to the agenda email list. 

Page 3 of3 
SCOE Agenda - September 13, 2022 





Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2022/23Balances through August

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 374,473.00 374,473.00 304,046.90 8,700.00 61,726.10 Teachers Salaries

1115 1,000.00 1,000.00 170.00 830.00 Certificated Extra Duty

1120 10,416.00 10,416.00 10,416.00 Certificated Substitutes

1200 37,716.00 37,716.00 28,513.40 6,130.12 3,072.48 Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 216,098.00 216,098.00 177,164.60 35,432.92 3,500.48 Certificated Supervisor Admini

1310 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 Teacher in Charge

Total for Object 1000 649,703.00 649,703.00 509,724.90 50,433.04 89,545.06 

2100 168,282.00 168,282.00 121,268.65 2,847.31 44,166.04 Instructional Aides' Salaries

2115 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Classified Extra Duty

2120 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 Classified Substitutes

2200 86,325.00 86,325.00 52,312.75 5,581.99 28,430.26 Classified Support Salaries

2215 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Classified Support Extra Duty

2220 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 Classified Substitute Salaries

2300 170,982.00 170,982.00 121,408.74 24,255.00 25,318.26 Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 218,422.00 218,422.00 174,968.00 37,912.32 5,541.68 Clerical Technical Office Staf

2900 20,520.00 20,520.00 20,520.00 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 678,031.00 678,031.00 469,958.14 70,596.62 137,476.24 

3101 189,095.00 189,095.00 97,357.50 9,551.09 82,186.41 STRS Certificated Positions

3102 1,719.00 1,719.00 1,719.00 STRS Classified Positions

3202 163,936.00 163,936.00 116,309.90 18,830.83 28,795.27 PERS Classified Positions

3301 4,081.00 4,081.00 4,081.00 OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 41,647.00 41,647.00 28,715.43 4,373.92 8,557.65 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 9,371.00 9,371.00 7,131.70 936.94 1,302.36 Medicare Certificated Position

3312 9,742.00 9,742.00 6,715.66 1,022.95 2,003.39 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 103,992.00 103,992.00 87,882.70 5,585.78 10,523.52 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 111,030.00 111,030.00 112,526.30 13,152.42 14,648.72-Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3501 3,327.00 3,327.00 2,548.60 330.61 447.79 SUI Certificated

3502 3,392.00 3,392.00 2,349.88 357.85 684.27 SUI Classified

3601 23,090.00 23,090.00 19,854.30 2,608.36 627.34 Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 24,012.00 24,012.00 18,695.50 2,847.72 2,468.78 Workers' Compensation Classifi

3901 15,689.00 15,689.00 15,688.50 .50 Golden Handshake

Total for Object 3000 704,123.00 704,123.00 500,087.47 75,286.97 128,748.56 

4100 1,300.00 1,300.00 1,300.00 Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4300 44,714.00 44,714.00 9,548.09 .59 35,165.32 Materials and Supplies

4320 1,250.00 1,250.00 1,250.00 Custodial Grounds Supplies

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2023, Period = 2, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Sep  2 2022  6:24AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1115
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2115
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2215
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2220
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3901
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2022/23Balances through August

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

4330 1,750.00 1,750.00 249.99 1,500.01 Office Supplies

4350 3,500.00 3,500.00 2,000.00 1,500.00 Vehicle Upkeep

4399 8,433.00 8,433.00 8,433.00 Mat & Sup Undesignated Bal

4400 9,714.00 9,714.00 9,714.00 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 70,661.00 70,661.00 11,798.08 .59 58,862.33 

5100 40,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 Subagreements for Services

5200 15,948.00 15,948.00 10,092.75 112.10 5,743.15 Travel and Conference

5300 19,847.00 19,847.00 4,206.10 17,452.49 1,811.59-Dues and Membership

5400 15,000.00 15,000.00 17,361.50 299.66 2,661.16-Insurance

5500 14,500.00 14,500.00 5,820.91 179.09 8,500.00 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 3,000.00 3,000.00 499.16 50.80 2,450.04 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5801 18,500.00 18,500.00 5,000.00 13,500.00 Legal Services

5805 1,000.00 1,000.00 200.00 800.00 Personnel Expense

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,327.21 172.79 .00 Other Services & Fees

5810 462,653.00 462,653.00 158,355.12 50,104.02 254,193.86 Contracted Services

5899 7,754.09 29,617.56 37,371.65-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 12,500.00 12,500.00 7,730.80 1,546.16 3,223.04 Communications

Total for Object 5000 604,448.00 604,448.00 218,347.64 99,534.67 286,565.69 

6400 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 Equipment

6500 25,855.00 25,855.00 25,855.00 Equipment Replacement

Total for Object 6000 45,855.00 45,855.00 .00 .00 45,855.00 

7110 25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 County Tuition Inter Dist Agre

7141 24,428.00 24,428.00 24,428.00 Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 49,428.00 49,428.00 .00 .00 49,428.00 

796,480.88 2,802,249.00 2,802,249.00 1,709,916.23 295,851.89 Total for Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Fund 11 - ADULT ED   

1100 4,500.00 4,500.00 1,186.67 3,313.33 Teachers Salaries

1300 110,566.00 110,566.00 92,138.40 18,427.68 .08-Certificated Supervisor Admini

Total for Object 1000 115,066.00 115,066.00 92,138.40 19,614.35 3,313.25 

2100 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Instructional Aides' Salaries

2200 3,415.00 3,415.00 3,415.00 Classified Support Salaries

2400 27,394.00 27,394.00 25,060.45 4,856.20 2,522.65-Clerical Technical Office Staf

Total for Object 2000 32,809.00 32,809.00 25,060.45 4,856.20 2,892.35 

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2023, Period = 2, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Sep  2 2022  6:24AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4399
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7110
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=2400


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2022/23Balances through August

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 11 - ADULT ED    (continued)

3101 27,178.00 27,178.00 17,598.40 3,519.68 6,059.92 STRS Certificated Positions

3202 8,173.00 8,173.00 6,119.70 1,232.02 821.28 PERS Classified Positions

3301 73.58 73.58-OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 2,035.00 2,035.00 1,380.21 301.08 353.71 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 1,668.00 1,668.00 1,321.50 281.50 65.00 Medicare Certificated Position

3312 475.00 475.00 322.81 70.41 81.78 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 13,019.00 13,019.00 10,849.00 2,169.80 .20 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 17,536.00 17,536.00 15,942.30 1,593.70 Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3501 576.00 576.00 460.70 98.07 17.23 SUI Certificated

3502 164.00 164.00 125.29 24.28 14.43 SUI Classified

3601 4,111.00 4,111.00 3,678.90 783.68 351.58-Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 1,172.00 1,172.00 898.60 196.03 77.37 Workers' Compensation Classifi

Total for Object 3000 76,107.00 76,107.00 58,697.41 8,750.13 8,659.46 

4100 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,487.40 487.40-Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4300 12,967.00 12,967.00 1,669.01 1.16- 11,299.15 Materials and Supplies

4320 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Custodial Grounds Supplies

4330 2,500.00 2,500.00 626.97 42.29 1,830.74 Office Supplies

4350 2,000.00 2,000.00 1,184.22 815.78 Vehicle Upkeep

4400 5,000.00 5,000.00 12,023.07 7,023.07-Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 26,467.00 26,467.00 18,990.67 41.13 7,435.20 

5200 6,500.00 6,500.00 952.00 32.04 5,515.96 Travel and Conference

5203 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 MILEAGE

5300 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,100.00 400.00 Dues and Membership

5500 4,200.00 4,200.00 4,450.55 149.45 400.00-Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 2,600.00 2,600.00 1,999.00 94.01 506.99 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5801 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Legal Services

5805 100.00 100.00 100.00 .00 Personnel Expense

5808 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Other Services & Fees

5810 21,500.00 21,500.00 3,700.00 10,534.00 7,266.00 Contracted Services

5900 1,600.00 1,600.00 1,068.40 131.60 400.00 Communications

Total for Object 5000 41,000.00 41,000.00 13,369.95 10,941.10 16,688.95 

6200 34,054.00 34,054.00 101,507.64 69,068.59 136,522.23-Building and Improvement of Bu

6400 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 39,054.00 39,054.00 101,507.64 69,068.59 131,522.23-

7619 6,722.00 6,722.00 6,722.00 Other Authorized Interfund Tra

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2023, Period = 2, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 3 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Sep  2 2022  6:24AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5203
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=7619


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2022/23Balances through August

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

85,811.02-337,225.00 337,225.00 309,764.52 113,271.50 Total for Fund 11 and Expense accounts

Fund 16 - FOREST RES   

7211 262,000.00 262,000.00 262,000.00 Transfers of Pass-through Rev

7619 46,000.00 46,000.00 46,000.00 Other Authorized Interfund Tra

308,000.00 308,000.00 308,000.00 .00 .00 Total for Fund 16, Expense accounts and Object 7000

1,018,669.86 3,447,474.00 3,447,474.00 2,019,680.75 409,123.39 Total for Org 001 - Sierra County Office of Education

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2023, Period = 2, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 4 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Sep  2 2022  6:24AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7211
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=134109&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7619


 
Page 1 of 3 

SCOE Minutes – August 09, 2022 

MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

August 09, 2022 

6:00pm Regular Session  

Downieville: Downieville School, 130 School St, Downieville CA 95936 

Zoom videoconferencing was also available for the public. 

In accordance with AB 361, effective October 1, 2021, pertaining to the convening of public meetings in response 

to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Sierra County Board of Education suspended the Brown Act teleconferencing 

posting requirements for any Board members that chose to participate via Zoom videoconferencing. 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

Vice President CHRISTINA POTTER called the meeting to order at 6:13pm. 

B. ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Patty Hall, Clerk, District 1 

Tom Mooers, District 2 

Christina Potter, Vice President, District 3 (via Zoom) 

Dorie Gayner, District 5 

ABSENT: None 

VACANT:  District 4 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

HALL/MOOERS 

4/0 

D. FLAG SALUTE 

E. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

1. Superintendent’s Report 

a. District 4 Board Member Vacancy 

BERARDI: Nicole Stannard resigned for District 4 as of July 31. There is no 

intent to make an Appointment to fill the position due to the upcoming election 

in November. 

Discussion ensued with a request from the audience asking the Board to 

entertain the idea of appointing someone despite the upcoming election and to 

direct the Superintendent to do so on the next agenda. It was concluded that 

this item can be added as a Suggested Agenda Item and reviewed further 

before the next meeting in September. 

b. Resignation for Alyssa McCollum, Instructional Aide, Loyalton High School, 

.67 FTE (4 hours/day), effective July 29, 2022 

c. Assignment of Alyssa McCollum, Severely Handicapped Aide, Loyalton High 

School, 1.0 FTE (6 hours/day), effective August 24, 2022 

2. Business Report 

a. Account Object Summary-Balance from 07/01/2022 to 07/31/2022 

 



 
Page 2 of 3 

SCOE Minutes – August 09, 2022 

3. Staff Reports 

SELPA—BETHKE: None 

ADULT ED—JACKSON: None 

4. Board Member Reports 

MOOERS: I am not running for the next term. I look forward to serving the rest of 

my Provisional Appointment as best I can, and then transitioning back into parent-

volunteer. 

GAYNER: Trying to visit the schools, learn how things run and get caught up with 

district matters. 

5. Public Comment 

John Martinetti—If an Appointment goes on the next agenda, would the 

Appointment take place in September or October? 

 BERARDI: It could take place in September with enough notice given. 

Kelly Champion—Would like to see more money put into regular maintenance of 

our facilities. A particular concern was the field inside the track by LES typically 

used for soccer. 

BERARDI: We have hired a company to help us find additional funds to put 

towards major updates by priority of safety concerns and regular maintenance. 

Don Russel—I would encourage the Board to think very carefully about naming 

someone to the Board with the election looming. As soon as you name someone to 

the Board they become an incumbent and that is an advantage in any election. 

F. CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Approval of minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held July 12, 2022 

2. Approval of Board Report-Checks Dated 07/01/2022 through 07/31/2022 

3. Approval of 2022-2023 SCOE Certificated Substitute List 

HALL/GAYNER 

4/0 

G. ACTION ITEMS 

1. New Business  

PUBLIC HEARING – Declaration of Need 

a. Public Hearing opened at 6:28pm to receive public comment regarding the 

announcement of the adoption of the Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified 

Educators for the 2022-2023 School Year (Item b).  

Kelly Champion—I just heard that there were applicants that just weren’t 

being hired. Is it that we don’t have the applicants, or we don’t have the 

process to get them hired, or what is the hold up?  

BERARDI: I’m not sure which positions you’re referring to, but there 

are still interviews taking place for a number of positions. There have 

been offers made, some that have been declined. There are a variety of 

reasons that applicants have declined an offer (i.e our rural location). 

Closed at 6:31pm. 

 



 
Page 3 of 3 

SCOE Minutes – August 09, 2022 

b. Approval of the Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators for the 

2022-2023 school year. A diligent search to recruit fully prepared teacher(s) was made 

and an insufficient number of certificated persons met the Sierra County Office of 

Education’s employment criteria for the position(s) 

HALL/MOOERS 

4/0 

c. Approval of CBEST Waiver for Substitute Teachers (The Sierra COE has been 

unable to recruit enough day-to-day substitute teachers who have not had an opportunity to 

take and pass all sections of the California Basic Educational Skills Test. The SCOE 

anticipates employing no greater than five (5) day-to-day substitutes on variable term 

CBEST waiver for the 2022-2023 school year) 

MOOERS/GAYNER 

4/0 

d. Approval of Teacher On Special Assignment job description and position 

HALL/MOOERS 

4/0 

e. Approval of utilizing AB 361 for meetings conducted through September 13, 2022 

HALL/MOOERS 

4/0 

~This suspends the Brown Act teleconferencing posting requirements for 

any Board members that choose to participate via Zoom videoconferencing  

~AB 361 expires January 01, 2024 

~Zoom will be available for the public with or without utilizing AB 361 

H. ADVANCED PLANNING 

1. Next Regular Board Meetings will be held on September 13, 2022, at Sierra County 

Office of Education, Room 4, 109 Beckwith Rd, Loyalton CA 96118, beginning with 

Closed Session as needed at 5:00pm and the Regular Board Meetings at 6:00pm. Zoom 

videoconferencing will be available for the public. 

2. Suggested Agenda Items 

-Appointment for District 4? 

I. ADJOURN at 6:33pm 

HALL/GAYNER 

4/0 

 

 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

Patty Hall, Clerk     James Berardi, Superintendent 

       Secretary to the County Board of Education 



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 08/01/2022 through 08/31/2022

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00016323 08/15/2022 ALHAMBRA 11-4330 WATER SERVICE 30.42 

00016324 08/15/2022 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 11-4330 CABLE 24.46 

00016325 08/15/2022 AT&T 11-5900 PHONE 131.60 

00016326 08/15/2022 FIRST-CITIZENS BANK & TRUST 01-5900 PHONE SYSTEM/MAINTENANCE 773.08 

00016327 08/15/2022 AZTEC SOFTWARE 11-5810 HSE CURRICULUM 7,350.00 

00016328 08/15/2022 HEIDI BETHKE 01-5200 PER DIEM/HOTEL 302.30 

00016329 08/15/2022 CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TAX AND FEE 

ADMINISTRATION

01-4300 SALES TAX .59 

01-9502 SALES TAX 79.41 80.00 

00016330 08/15/2022 BURLINGTON ENGLISH INC. 11-5810 COURSES 480.00 

00016331 08/15/2022 CADENCE TEAM, INC 4010 FOOTHILLS BLVD. 01-5810 NETWORK SUPPORT 10,125.00 

01-5899 NETWORK SUPPORT 1,125.00 11,250.00 

00016332 08/15/2022 CWDL CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 01-9500 AUDIT FEES 1,599.50 

00016333 08/15/2022 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #1423 11-6200 PLUMBING /ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES 1,588.09 

00016334 08/15/2022 INTERMOUNTAIN DISPOSAL, INC. 11-5500 GARBAGE SERVICE 32.04 

00016335 08/15/2022 LES SCHAWB 01-9500 SUV BRAKES 748.88 

00016336 08/15/2022 LIBERTY UTILITIES CPEC 01-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 179.09 

11-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 117.41 296.50 

00016337 08/15/2022 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 01-5810 GASB 68 FEE 350.00 

00016338 08/15/2022 PLUMAS-SIERRA TELECOMMUNICATIONS 11-5600 BROADBAND SERVICE 109.00 

00016339 08/15/2022 PRESENCELEARNING, INC. 01-5810 PRESENCE LEARNING 3,000.00 

00016340 08/15/2022 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 01-5808 BANK SERVICE FEES 172.79 

00016341 08/15/2022 SISKIYOU COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 01-5300 COALITION DUES 1,856.27 

00016342 08/15/2022 TAYLOR CONCRETE 11-6200 CONCRETE FOR NEW PORTABLE 25,480.50 

00016343 08/15/2022 TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INSURANCE GROUP 01-9535 HEALTH INSURANCE 2,956.00 

76-9576 HEALTH INSURANCE 17,521.90 20,477.90 

00016344 08/15/2022 U.S. BANK 01-9500 SUPPLIES/FUEL 214.70 

11-4300 SQUARE HARDWARE

11-9500 SQUARE HARDWARE 136.21 350.91 

00016345 08/15/2022 U.S. BANK VOYAGER 01-5200 FUEL EXPENSE 45.17 

01-5899 FUEL EXPENSE 76.01 

11-5200 FUEL EXPENSE 48.00 169.18 

Total Number of Checks 23 76,653.42 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Sep  2 2022  6:26AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 08/01/2022 through 08/31/2022

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

County School Service Fund 14 23,603.79 01

ADULT EDUCATION 12 35,527.73 11

Payroll Clearing 1 17,521.90 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 23 76,653.42 

.00 

76,653.42 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Sep  2 2022  6:26AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education































SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-002C 

Resolution for Adopting the Gann Limit 

 

WHEREAS, in November of 1979, the California electorate adopted Proposition 4, commonly called the 

“Gann Amendment”, which added Article XIII-B to the California Constitution; and 

 

WHEREAS, the provisions of that Article establish maximum appropriation limitations, commonly 

called “Gann Limits,” for public agencies, including school districts; and  

 

WHEREAS, Section 7900 et seq. of the Government Code require this board to establish annually, by 

resolution at a regular or special meeting, the appropriations limit for the County; and 

 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 7902.1 authorizes this board to increase the County’s 

appropriations limit to an amount equal to its proceeds of taxes; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that this Board does provide public notice that the 

attached calculations and documentation of the Gann Limits for 2021-2022 and 2022-2023 fiscal years 

are made in accord with applicable constitutional and statutory law; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this Board does hereby declare that the appropriations in the Budget 

for the 2021-2022 and 2022-2023 fiscal years do not exceed the limitations imposed by Proposition 4; 

and  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Superintendent provides copies of this resolution along with 

the appropriate attachments to interested citizens of this district. 

 

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Sierra County Board of Education held September 13, 

2022 by the following vote: 

 

 

AYES:  ________________________________ 

NOES:  ________________________________ 

ABSTAIN: ________________________________ 

ABSENT: ________________________________ 

VACANT: ________________________________ 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Patty Hall, Clerk 

Sierra County Board of Education 



 

  

 
 

 
 

Sierra County Office of Education 
 
 
 
 
 

Unaudited Actuals 
2021/22 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

September 13, 2022 
James Berardi/Superintendent 

 



 Sierra County Office of Education 
 Unaudited Actuals 
 2021/22 

 

 

2 

21-22 SCOE Unaudited Actuals Narrative 

 
2021/22 Highlights 

 
 Provided financial software, counseling, nursing, and for excess business services staff time. 

 
 Provided special education service to SPJUSD resource students. 

 
 Provided 1.0 FTE Administration to Loyalton Elementary School. 

 
 Continued career technical education courses at LHS for SPJUSD students. 

 
 Successful and growing Adult Education program.  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
General Fund Form 01 & Forest Reserve Fund 16: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Ending Fund Balance (SACS Fund 01, page 2, F.2) 
Net increase in operating fund balance is $1,320,295 for an ending fund balance of $5,046,255. 

Beginning Funding Balance 7/01/2021:   $ 3,725,960 
Net increase in Fund Balance:   $ 1,320,295 
Ending Fund Balance:       6/30/2022:   $ 5,046,255  
 
 Components of Ending Fund Balance  

1) Revolving Cash:  $           600 

2) Restricted:   $    252,489 

3) Other Commitments  $      92,485 

4) Res Econ. Uncertainties: $    293,000   

5) Unassigned:  $ 4,407,681 

 
 
  



 Sierra County Office of Education 
 Unaudited Actuals 
 2021/22 

 

 

3 

21-22 SCOE Unaudited Actuals Narrative 

2021-2022 RESOURCES 

 

 
 
 
 
The chart below compares revenue for the General Fund (01) 2017-2018, 2018-2019, 2019-2020, 2020-2021 
actuals, 2021-2022 unaudited actuals and 2022-2023 budget.   
 
 
 

Description 2017-18 Actuals 2018-2019  
Actuals 

2019-2020  
Actuals 

2020-2021  
Actuals 

2021-2022  
Unaudited 
Actuals 

2022-2023  
Budget 

LCFF Sources $   854,206 851,039 1,004,442 1,360,567 1,895,364 1,619,200 

Federal        194,130 158,912 153,833 164,529 160,263 159,842 

Other State 660,753 634,134 789,338 906,883 902,715 855,070 

Local 370,430 486,100 451,949 445,915 467,632 409,500 

Total 2,079,519 $2,130,185 $2,399,562 $2,877,894 $3,425,974 $3,043,612 

 
 

 

$1,895,634
47.3%

$160,263
5.7%

$902,715
31.5%

$467,632
15.5%

Total Revenue $3,425,974

LCFF

Federal/SRS
Transfer In

Other State

Local



 Sierra County Office of Education 
 Unaudited Actuals 
 2021/22 

 

 

4 

21-22 SCOE Unaudited Actuals Narrative 

2021-2022 EXPENDITURES 
 

 
 
 
The chart below compares expenditures from the General Fund (01) for 2017-2018, 2018-2019, 2019-2020, 
2020-2021 actuals, 2021-2022 unaudited actuals and 2022-2023 budget.   
  

Description 
2017-18 
Actuals 

2018-2019  
Actuals 

2019-2020  
Actuals 

2020-2021  
Actuals 

2021-2022  
Unaudited 
Actuals 

2022-2023  
Budget 

Certificated $  560,268 $  675,798 $  563,831 $  591,047 $  520,374 $  649,703 

Classified 398,276 401,509 400,060 416,032 526,487 678,031 

Benefits 494,494 553,278 511,330 556,890 596,509 704,123 

Books & Supplies 25,289 35,460 33,156 24,327 44,978 70,661 

Services & Operating 506,018 519,917 462,156 466,164 443,084 604,448 

Capital Outlay 10,916 291,968 83,784 49,732 32,649 45,855 

Other Outgo 34,249 47,204 19,958 -0- -0- 49,428 

Total $2,029,510 $2,525,134 $2,074,275 $2,104,192 $2,164,081 $2,802,249 

 
 
Other  
 

 Forest Reserve Fund 16  
o County’s Share of Revenue……..$   50,239 
o Transfer to District………………..$ 284,687 

 
 Debt 

o Net OPEB Obligation:     $ 92,485 
o Compensated Absences Payable:    $ 17,094 
o Net Pension Liability:   $ 103,374 (FYE 2021)   

$520,374
29%

$526,487
20%$596,509

26%

$44,978
1%

$443,084
22%

$32,649
2%

Total Expenditures $2,164,081

Certificated Salary

Classified Salary

Employee Benefits

Books & Supplies

Operating

Capital Outlay

Other Outgo



 Sierra County Office of Education 
 Unaudited Actuals 
 2021/22 

 

 

5 

21-22 SCOE Unaudited Actuals Narrative 

 
 Indirect Cost Rate:  

o Fiscal Year 2020-2021…………….    2.09% 
o Fiscal Year 2021-2022…………….    3.14% 
o Fiscal Year 2022-2023…………….    2.46% proposed 

 
 
 
SELPA – Special Education Maintenance of Effort - SEMA 
 
Unduplicated pupil count:  

2015-2016: 35 
2016-2017: 35 
2017-2018: 48 
2018-2019: 57 
2019-2020: 63 
2020-2021: 66 
2021-2022: 58 
 

SELPA - Expenditure Paid per Funding Source 
Total Federal, State and Local Funds……………$797,979 
Federal Expenditures………………………………$198,778 
State and Local Expenditures……………………..$599,201 
Local only……………………………………………$114,606 
 
Maintenance of Effort 
State and Local Expenditures per capita 
    

2017-2018…………$13,048 
2018-2019…………$12,246 
2019-2020…………$10,043 
2020-2021…………$11,045 
2021-2022…………$10,331 
 

 
 
 

 





Reviewed By:

Year: 21/22 21/22 Pos (Neg) % 21/22 21/22 Pos (Neg) % 21/22 21/22 Pos (Neg) %

Period:

Estimated 

Actuals

Unaudited 

Actuals Difference Change

Estimated 

Actuals

Unaudited 

Actuals Difference Change

Estimated 

Actuals

Unaudited 

Actuals Difference Change

Revenues

LCFF Revenues 8010-8099 1,166,917     1,895,364     728,447       62.42% 1 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 1,166,917     1,895,364     728,447       62.42%

Federal Revenues 8100-8299 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 159,842       160,263       421              0.26% 159,842       160,263       421              0.26%

State Revenues 8300-8599 7,030           5,984           (1,046)         -14.88% 1,063,497     896,731       (166,766)      -15.68% 9 1,070,527     902,715       (167,812)      -15.68%

Local Revenues 8600-8799 405,000       467,632       62,632         15.46% 4,500           -                  (4,500)         -100.00% 409,500       467,632       58,132         14.20%

Total Revenues 1,578,947     2,368,980     790,033       50.04% 1,227,839     1,056,994     (170,845)      -13.91% 2,806,786     3,425,974     619,188       22.06%

Expenditures

Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 276,209       193,632       (82,577)       -29.90% 2 394,637       326,742       (67,895)       -17.20% 10 670,846       520,374       (150,472)      -22.43%

Classified Salaries 2000-2999 353,878       322,722       (31,156)        -8.80% 251,903       203,765       (48,138)        -19.11% 11 605,781       526,487       (79,294)       -13.09%

Benefits & Taxes 3000-3999 363,057       315,753       (47,304)       -13.03% 330,243       280,756       (49,487)       -14.99% 12 693,300       596,509       (96,791)        -13.96%

Materials & Supplies 4000-4999 44,875         19,793         (25,082)       -55.89% 3 75,025         25,184         (49,841)        -66.43% 13 119,900       44,977         (74,923)       -62.49%

Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 396,285       271,172       (125,113)      -31.57% 4 356,748       171,913       (184,835)      -51.81% 14 753,033       443,085       (309,948)     -41.16%

Capital Outlay 6000-6599 35,000         26,851         (8,149)         -23.28% 5 6,000           5,797           (203)            -3.38% 41,000         32,648         (8,352)         -20.37%

Other Outgo 7xxx's 24,428         -                  (24,428)       -100.00% 6 25,000         -                  (25,000)       -100.00% 15 49,428         -                  (49,428)       -100.00%

Other Outgo 7300-7399 (31,724)        (23,249)        8,475          -26.71% 7 31,724         23,249         (8,475)         -26.71% 7 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Total Expenditures 1,462,008     1,126,674     (335,334)      -22.94% 1,471,280     1,037,406     (433,874)      -29.49% 2,933,288     2,164,080     (769,208)      -26.22%

Rev less Exp 116,939       1,242,306     1,125,367     962.35% (243,441)      19,588         263,029       -108.05% (126,502)      1,261,894     1,388,396     -1097.53%

Other Sources/Uses

Transfers In 8910-8979 58,276         58,401         125              0.21% -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 58,276         58,401         125              0.21%

Contributions 8980-8999 (180,225)      (97,457)        82,768         -45.92% 8 180,225       97,457         (82,768)       -45.92% 8 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Transfers Out 7610-7699 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Total Other Sources (121,949)      (39,056)        82,893         -67.97% 180,225       97,457         (82,768)        -45.92% 58,276         58,401         125              0.21%

Change in Fund Bal (5,010)         1,203,250    1,208,260    -24116.97% (63,216)        117,045       180,261       -285.15% (68,226)       1,320,295    1,388,521     -2035.18%

Beg Fund Bal 3,590,517     3,590,517     -                  0.00% 63,216         135,443       72,227         114.25% 3,653,733     3,725,960     72,227         1.98%

Adjustments -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  #DIV/0!

Adj Beg Fund Bal 3,590,517     3,590,517     -                  0.00% 63,216         135,443       72,227         114.25% 3,653,733     3,725,960     72,227         1.98%

End Fund Bal 3,585,507     4,793,767     1,208,260     33.70% -                  252,488       252,488       #DIV/0! 3,585,507     5,046,255    1,460,748     40.74%

Non Spendable 500              600              100              -                  500              600              100              

Restricted  -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  252,488       252,488       #DIV/0! -                  252,488       252,488       #DIV/0!

Comitted -                  #DIV/0! -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

OPEB 92,485         92,485         -                  -                  92,485         92,485         -                  

Assigned -                  #DIV/0! -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Deferred Maintenance -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

REU 395,000       293,000       (102,000)      -                  395,000       293,000       (102,000)      

Unassigned 3,097,522    4,407,682    1,310,260     42.30% -                 -                 -                 #DIV/0! 3,097,522    4,407,682    1,310,260     42.30%

REU is: 13.5% 13.5%

Tickmark Legend

Unrestricted Restricted Total

2021/22 Unaudited Actuals Budget

Sierra County Office of Education

Gen Fund Budget Comparison Worksheet



1 Unrestricted Revenues increased approx $640k for LCFF Year End Calculation Adjustments, Property Tax revenues increased approx $13k, EPA revenue increased approx $75k

2 Unrestricted certificated salaries reduced due to S&B transfers to COVID sources.

3 Unrestricted M&S reduced due to transfers to restricted sources and reduced spending efforts.

4 Unrestricted Operating Expenditures reduced approx ($120k) for contracted services, legal services reduced approx ($3k), communications reduced approx ($1k), travel & conference reduced approx ($1k)

5 Unrestricted capital outlay increased approx $4k for equipment and reduced approx ($12k) for equipment replacement.

6 Unrestricted tuition excess costs reduced approx ($24k)

7 Indirect cost transfer increased approx $8,500

8 Contribution to Restricted sources from Unrestricted general fund reduced approx ($83k) for SpEd services.

9 Restricted revenue reduced approx ($41k) for SpEd, reduced approx ($13k) for TUPE, reduced approx ($106k) for FYSCP, increased approx $8k for ELO, reduced approx ($15k) for CalOES

10 Restricted certificated salaries reduced approx ($71k) for SpEd, reduced approx ($6k) for FYSCP, increased approx $9k for Safe Schools. 

11 Restricted classified salaries reduced  approx ($37k) for SpEd, reduced approx ($9k) for FYSCP and reduced approx ($2k) for stipends/other pupil services.

12 Restricted statutory benefits reduced due to certificated/classified salary adjustments

13 Restricted M&S reduced approx ($25k) for SpEd, reduced approx ($8k) for FYSCP, reduced approx ($10k) for CalOES, reduced approx ($5k) for Lottery, reduced approx ($1k) for IPI/ELO.

14 Restricted operating expenditures reduced approx ($94k) for SpEd,  reduced approx ($7k) for Ed Prof Dev, reduced approx ($5k) for CalOES, reduced approx ($75k) for FYSCP, redeuced approx ($4k) for Safe Schools.

15 Restricted other outgo reduced approx ($25k) for county tuition expenditures.

16

17

18

19

20

Sierra County Office of Education

2021/22 Unaudited Actuals Budget



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Unaudited Actuals 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

= enera e 1aer ata· = G G lld D S S uoo1emental Data 

Form Description 

01 General Fund/County School Service Fund 

08 Student Activity Special Revenue Fund 

09 Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 

10 Special Education Pass-Throuqh Fund 

11 Adult Education Fund 

12 Child Development Fund 

13 Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund 

14 Deferred Maintenance Fund 

15 Pupil Transportation Ectuipment Fund 

16 Forest Reserve Fund 

17 Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects 

18 School Bus Emissions Reduction Fund 

19 Foundation Special Revenue Fund 

20 Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits 

21 Buildino Fund 

25 Capital Facilities Fund 

30 State School Building Lease-Purchase Fund 
35 Countv School Facilities Fund 

40 Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects 

53 Tax Override Fund 

56 Debt Service Fund 

57 Foundation Permanent Fund 

61 Cafeteria Enterprise Fund 

62 Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 

63 Other Enterprise Fund 

66 Warehouse Revolving Fund 

67 Self-Insurance Fund 

71 Retiree Benefit Fund 

73 Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund 

76 WarranUPass-Throu.Qh Fund 
95 Student Body Fund 

A AveraQe Daily Attendance 

ASSET Schedule of Capital Assets 

CA Unaudited Actuals Certification 

CAT Schedule for Categoricals 

CHG Change Order Form 

DEBT Schedule of Long-Term Liabilities 

ESMOE Everv Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort 

GANN APPropriations Limit Calculations 

ICR Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet 
L Lottery Report 

PCRAF Program Cost Report Schedule of Allocation Factors 

PCR Program Cost Report 

SEA Special Education Revenue Allocations 

SEAS Special Education Revenue Allocations Setuo (SELPA Selection) 

SIAA Summarv of lnterfund Activities -Actuals 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: tc (Rev 03/18/2020) Page 1 of 2 

46 10462 0000000 
Form TC 

Data Supplied For: 
2021-22 2022-23 

Unaudited Budget 
Actuals 

GS GS 

G G 

G G 

s s 

s 

s 

s 

GS 

GS GS 

GS 

GS 

GS 

GS 

s s 

s s 

G 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :34 AM 
1 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

A.REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sourcas 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Olhor Slate Revenue 

4) Olher Local Revenue 

SlTOTAI REVENUES 

8. EXPENDITURES 

1 ) Certificated Salaries 

2) Classified Salaries 

3) Employee Beneflls 

4) Books and Supplies 

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6) Capital Oullay 

7) Olher Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 
Costs) 

8) Olher Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 

91 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES IA5 • B9I 

D, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) lnlerfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Qui 

2) Olher Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Conlrlbullons 

Resource Codes 

41 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

California Depl of Education 
SACS Finendal Reporting Software • 2022.2.0 
Filo: fund-a {Rev 04/15/2022) 

Object 
Code& 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6999 

7100-7299 
7400-7499 

7300-7399 

6900-6929 

7600-7629 

8930-6979 

7630-7699 

8960-6999 

Unaudited Actuals 
County School Service Fund 
Unreslricled and Reslricled 

Expenditures by Object 

2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 
� 

Unrestricted 
!Al 

1,895,3§3 81 

- -- o
c
o.o 

- - 5,98__4,00 

f---
4_67,632.51_ 

2 368 98Q32 

193 632.48 

�721.92 

�5.753.07 

19.79� 

27� 

26,651 69 

___ 0 00 

23 24944) 

1 126 674 61 

1 242 305.71 

Total Fund 
Restricted col. A+ B 

(Bl !Cl 

___Q_Q_Q__ r-
1895�.81 

160,263 00 _1§()_,�®-00 

896,731.62 _ __ 9_02, 715.62 

- -- 0.00 467,632 51 

1 056 994 62 3 425 974 94 

326� 520,374.16 

,_203 ?64.56 526 486 46 

2!lfil56.40 �509 47 

�184.�0 __ 4�977 61 

_111.,__912 61 443,084.29 

--- 5.797.60 
�

32.649.29 

--- om_ -- __JhQQ 

- -- 23,249M, ___Q,QQ 

1,037,406.71 2. 164 061.32 

19567 91 1,261,893.62 

-- 56�� 0 00 ___ 56,401.51 

- - _Q,QQ ---- 0.00 ___Q,QQ_ 

Unrestricted 
!Dl 

�9,200RQ_ 

o_oo 

8,564.00 --

405,000_0Q 

2,030 764.00 

311 585.00 

416 205.00 

___ 4_00,932.00 

-- 14,564.00 

- 38Y61.oo 

45,!l55_0_Q 

24�00 

_(21,!)4 7 00) 

1 576 36300 

454 401 00 

-- 52� 

0.00 -

- __Q,QQ ---- 0.QQ_ 
- ___Q,QQ_ - __JLl!9 

0,00 
---

97,457,�) ___ 97,� 

139 !)56.271 97 457 78 

Page 1 

-- ___Q,QQ 

0.00 

58 401,51 

0.00 

(213,036 OOJ 

(160 316 001 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01 

2022-23 Budaet 

Total Fund 
Restricted col.D+E 

1g1 !Fl 

f--- ___Q,QQ_� 1 ,8fil00.00 

159,842.00 159,842.00 

848,506 00 ___M5,070.00 

4 50000 409.500 00 

1 012 848 00 3043 612.00 

338,138.m_ 
-

6492.0.MQ. 

261,82§RQ._ 

303.191.00 _ 
§§,097.00 

2_I
B
667.00 

0.00 

676,031 Q_O 

704,123 00 

70 661 O!) 

_6�448.00 

45 655.00 - - -

___.l§.000.00 - -- 49,426._QQ_ 

-21.947.0_Q_ Q._QQ_ 

I 225 666.00 2 5n, '49.00 

C?g._036.00) 241 363.00 

_ __ 0.00 �,722,00 

_ _  0,00 - - O
.,_

QQ_ 

- -- 0.00 -- O.QQ 

- - 0,00 O.QQ_ 

__ 213,038.0Q_ 
� __ O.QQ 

213 038.00 52 722.00 

%Dlff 
Column 

C&F 

�6_% 

-0 3% 

__ -5 3% 

- -1�4%

-11-2% 

_24..9% 

1M!o 

---1M!• 

-�% 

- J.�a'!._% 

40� 

New 

0 .0% 

29 5% 

-809% 

-9.7% 

OJ)% 

O,ll% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

-9 7% 

Printed: 6/2412022 11 :21 AM 

2 of 79



Sierra County Office or Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE (C + D41 

f. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audil Adjuslmenls 

c) As of July 1 • Audiled (F1a + F1b} 

d} Other Restalements 

e} Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1 c + F1 d} 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1 e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 
a} Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Olhers 

b) Reslricled 

c) Committed 
Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commltmenls 
OPEB 
OPES 

d) Assigned 

Other Assignments 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

U1111�gnod/U11a2�2rlaJed Amount 

California Depl of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2,0 
File: fund-a (Rev 0411512022) 

Object 
Resource Codes Codes 

9791 

9793 

9795 

9711 

9712 

9713 

9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 
0000 9760 
0000 9760 

9780 

9789 

97!).Q 

Unaudited Actuals 
County School Service Fund 
Unreslricled and Restricted 

Expenditures by Object 

2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 

Unrestricted Restricted 
!Al IB) 

1 203 249 44 117 045.69 

3,590.@.20 135,442.9.!i 

0.00 O,QO 

3,5.110,517.20 135.4,g.�5 ----

_J).00 __ 0.0!) 

Total Fund 
col. A+ B 

(Cl 

1 320 295.13 

3,725,960 15 

0.00 

3, 7_2_5,96QJ § 

0 00 

3 590 517.10 J3_!i,4-41:,i5 --- 3,72�960.15 

- 4,793,766.64 252,�4 5 046 255.28 

f-
600..QQ_ 

f--
O,Q_O 600 00 

_ _J).Q_0 ___Q,QQ 0 00 

--- 0 00 --- - QJ)O 0 00 

_____ o_o_Q_ 0,00 o._oo 

0.00 _ 252.488,64 252 488 64 

__ ___ooo ___ <!c_OO _Q_QQ_ 

92,�8_5.00 
�-

0,00 92i485.CJ9 

92,485 00 _192,485000 

,_ ---

- __Q__Qq_ _Q,!)Q__ OQQ 

�00 00 ____Q,QO 293,000 00 

4 407 981.64 0,00 4,407 681.64 

Page 2 

2022-23 Budaet 

Unrestricted Restricted 
(DI (� 

2.94 085.00 0.00 

4 793 766.64 252 488.64 

- -- (l_.00 0 00 

4,793,766 !M �8.64 

o .. QQ 0.00 

4,, 793,7fl6.64 252 48a_64 

5,(l_!!? 651.64 252 488M_ 

500 00 0.00 

0,00 0 00 

000 0.00 

0.00 0.00 --

___ 0.00 252 488 64 

QJ!.O 
___ 9�,4�5.00 0,00 

92,485.00 

0 00 0 00 - -- -

_37�,000.QQ_ 0.00 

4 616 866,64 I 0 00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01 

Total Fund %Dlff 
col. D + E Column 

fFl C&F 

294 085.00 -77.7% 

5,046,255 28 
_ 

354% 

_()_()Q__ - 0 0% 

5,0� 35 4% 

0 00 0 0% 

5 046 255 28 35 4% 

�o� 28 �% 

500 00 -16 7% 

0 00 0.0% 

0 00 ___QM. 

0 00 �

252,488.64 __ 0.0% 

0 00 0.0% 

92,465,00 _ 0.0% 

92,485,00 --

Jl_OO 0.0% 

_31!!,000.00 29 0% 

4 61_�,866.64 4 7%t 

Printed: 8/2412022 11:21 AM 

                                                                 3 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Deacrlotlon 

G.ASSETS 

1) Cash 
a) In County Treasury 

Resource Codes 

1) Fair Value Adjustment lo Cash In County Treasury 

b) in Banks 

c) In RevoiVing Cash Account 

d) wllh Fiscal Agent/Trustee 

e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 

2) Investments 

3) Accounts Receivable 

4) Due from Granto, Government 

5) Due from Other Funds 

6) Stores 

7) Prepaid Expenditures 

8) Other Current Assets 

9) Lease Receivable 

IOI TOTAL ASSETS 

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 

21 TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

I. LIABILITIES 

1) Accounts Payable 

2) Due to Granter Governments 

3) Due lo Other Funds 

4) Current Loans 

5) Unearned Revenue 

61 TOTAL LlABIUTIES 

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 

21 TOTAL. DEFERl<ED INFLOWS 

K. FUND EQUITY 

Ending Fund Balance, June 30 
(must agree with llna P.?l jG9 + H2) - 116 + J2) 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software • 2022 2.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 0411512022) 

Object 
Codes 

9110 

9111 

9120 

9130 

9135 

9140 

9150 

9200 

9290 

9310 

9320 

9330 

9340 

9380 

9490 

9500 

9590 

9610 

9640 

9650 

9690 

Unaudited Actuals 
County School Service Fund 
Unrestricted and Restricted 

Expenditures by Object 

2021-22 Unaudllod l\cluals 

Unrestricted 
!Al 

4,83� 

__Q_Q_0 

-- ___QJJ0 

600 00 
-

___ 0 00 

-- C!..!l.Q_ 

0 00 --

--- 4,000.7§_ 

572 00 --

0.00 --

0 00 --

0 00 ---

-- __Q,_00 

___ o.oo 

4 840 645,04 

Restricted 
(§1 

790.885.51) 

0.0Q__ 

0,00 ---

--- 0.00 

---

-
_ _o.oo 

- __ o.oo

__ 0,0Q__ 

_ _  1,228,288.65 

-
___Q,.Q_0 

_ _0.00 

0.00 ---

Total Fund 
col. A+ B 

(Cl 

-- 4,044.606-77 

-
___Q,Q9 

- ___Q,_00 

600.00 -

0.00 -- -
0.00 - --

0.00 
---

� 
4,000.76 

1.228,860 65 

0 00 

0 00 

--- 0.90 

--- 0,0Q__
,--

0.00 

- __Q,QQ_ _ _  0.00 

437 423.14 5 278 Q§!LJ8 

___ _Q,QQ__ ___ 0_00 - -- OOQ 

0.00 0 00 0.00 

46 878.40 --- �,674.67 49 553,07 

----- 0,00 -- 177.82 __ J_I,7.82 

- -- 0.0Q__ 
f--

_ _  0.00 --- O.QQ 

--- 0 00 _ _  0.00 -- 0 00 

--- 0.00 -- 1�2.01 �082 01_ 

46 878.40 184 934.50 231 812 90 

f.--
0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 ---- .Q,QQ - 0.00 

4 793 766 64 252 488 64 5 046255.28 

Page 3 

2022-23 Budaet 

Unrestrlcted Restricted 
/DI IE] 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01 

Total Fund %Dlff 
col. D+E Column 

!Fl C&F 

Printed: 8/2412022 11 :21 AM 

                                                                 4 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Dueorlollon Resource Codes 

LCFF SOURCES 

Principal Apportionment 
State Aid - Current Year 

Education Protection Account Slate Aid - Current Year 

State Aid • Prior Years 

Tax Relief Subventions 
Homeowners' Exemptions 

Timber Yield Tax 

Olher Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 

County & District Taxes 
Secured Roll Taxes 

Unsecured Roll Taxes 

Prior Years' Taxes 

Supplemental Taxes 

Education Revenue Augmentation 
Fund (ERAF) 

Community Redevelopment Funds 
(SB 6171699/1992) 

Penalties and Interest from 
Delinquent Taxes 

Receipt from Co Board of Sups 

Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604) 
Royalties and Bonuses 

Other in-Lieu Taxes 

Less: Non-LCFF 
(50%) Adjustment 

Subtotal. LCFF Sources 
LCFF Transfers 

Unrestricted LCFF Transfers -
Current Year 

All Other LCFF Transfers 
Current Year 

Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 

Property Taxes Transfers 

LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 

'TOT�, L_Cl'f SO1J�CES 

FEDERAL REVENUE 

Maintenance and Operations 

Special Education Entitlement 

Special Education Discretionary Grants 

Child Nutrition Programs 

Donated Food Commodities 

Flood Control Funds 

Wildlife Reserve Funds 

FEMA 

interagency Contracts Between LEAs 

Pass-Through Revenues from 
Federal Sources 

Tille I, Part A, Basic 

Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent 
Programs 

TIiie II, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction 

Tille 111, Part A, Immigrant Student 
Pronram 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022 2.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 04115/2022) 

ODDO 

All Other 

3010 

3025 

4035 

42Q1 _ _ _  

Object 
Codes 

8011 

8012 

8019 

8021 

8022 

8029 

8041 

8042 

8043 

8044 

8045 

8047 

8048 

8070 

8081 

8082 

8089 

---

8091 

8091 

8096 

8097 

8099 

-

8110 

8181 

8182 

8220 

8221 

8270 

8280 

8281 

8285 

8287 

8290 

8290 

8290 

8_;!_90 

Unaudited Actuals 
County School Service Fund 
Unrestricted and Restricted 

Expenditures by Object 

2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 

Unrestricted Restricted 
(Al !Bl 

I 
1,55_5.,§80 00 0.00 

,_

- 2�1945 OD 0.00 

0.00 0,00 

560.34 0.00 

338.76 0.00 

� 
0 DD 0.00 

76.277.35 0.00 - -

2 196 92 0.00 --

75 52 0.00 

1,389 92 0.00 

f---
0.00 000 

0.00 0.00 - -

-- o _oo 
I---

0.00 t 
o _oo MO --

�-

0.00 0.00 --

0.00 0.00 --

0_QQ 0.00 --

____!..895, 363_81 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0 .00 

f---
0.0.Q_ - 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 - -

1,895,363.81 0.00 

0.00 0.00_ 

0.00 111,950.00 

0 .00 26210.00 

� 
0.00 0.00 

� 
0.00 0 00 

� 
O.Q_Q_ 0.00 -

� - 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0 00 -- -

0.00 ---

0 00 

0 00 

Page 4 

2022-23 Budnet 

Total Fund 
col. A+ B Unrestricted Restricted 

fCI __ (DJ (El 

1,555,580.00 11AA935 DD 0.00 

258,945.Q_Q_ �496.DD 0.00 

_ _Q._QQ_ OQ_Q_ 
f-

000--

560.34 601,00 �-00 

338J6 0.00 .!!,OD 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

76277.35 65 368.00 0.00 

2,196.92 2�0 0.00 

75.52 100 00 O.OD ----

1,389.92 - 500 Q_D --- 0.00 

0.00 0.00 ODO ---

- 0.00 o.a_o 0,00 

0.00 o_qo 0 00 

0.00 Jl.QO 0.00 

- 0.00 0.00 -- 0,00 

- o.oo Q _Q_Q_ 0,00 

0.00 0.0:Q. --- 0.00 

1,895,363 81 1,619,200 Q_Q_ --- 0.00 

0.00 0 00 

0.00 O DO 0 .00 

___Q,Q_Q_ 0 00 0 .00 

0.00 0 00 0 00 

0.00 0 00 a.co-

1 895 363.81 1,619,200.00 � 0.00 

0.00 0 .00 
-

0,00 

111,950 00 0 .00 111,950.00 

26,210 00 - 0 .00 25,789 Q_Q_ 

_o__oo -- 0.00 __ _  O_Q_Q_ 

0.0_0 -- - 0.00 - 0 00 

_ ___Q.O_Q__ - 0.00 _ __ ODO 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0 .00 0.00 0 00 

0.00 0.00 OQO 

0.00 0.00 0 00 

0 00 0.00 --

O,Q_Q_ 0.00 

0 00 0 ()()_ 

0 00 Q _OQ 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01 

Total Fund %Dirt 
col. D + E Column 

fFl C&F 

1.366.935.00 �% 

183,496. DQ_ ____:?fil% 

______Q,QQ_ 0.0% 

601.00 7.3% -

______MQ -100.0%

0.00 0.0% ----

_ 6_§,3_68.00 -14 3% 

___ 2,200.00 0.1% 

100 00 32 4% 

50000 �4 0% 

D OD O__Q'1 

- _____Q_QQ a.a�

_ __ _  J)f)Q__ OJ)__� 

_ _  J)QQ DJ)o/� 

0 DO a.a�

0 00 0.0% 

� � 0,0% 

1,619,200 00 - -146% 

- 0.00 _ 0 0% 

I--
0.00 � 

0.00 ___Q,Q% 

0.00 0.0% 

- 0.00 _Q..Q1\,. 

1.619,200.00 ___2.4.6% 

- __Q,Q_Q_ 0.0% 

- 111,950,00 0.0% 

�7_!!_9.00 -1.§% 

- 0.00 �

0.00 __ O.(lli 

- 0.00 __Q,Q.% 

____Q,QO Q,O'l', 

0.00 0 0% 

0.00 0 0% 

....Q,OD_ � 

0.00 0 0% 

D.DD __ 0 0% 

a.co 0 0% 

O.Q.Q.�0 0% 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :21 AM 

                                                                 5 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Descrlatlon 

Tille Ill, Part A, English Leamer 

Program 

Public Charter Schools Grant 
Program (PCSGP) 

Other NCLB I Every Student Succeeds Act 

Career and Technical 
Education 

All Other Federal Revenue 

TOT AL, FEDERAL �E\(!;tlUE. _ ----

OTHER STATE REVENUE 

Other Stale Apportionments 

ROCIP Entillement 
Prior Years 

Special Education Master Plan 
Curren\ Year 

Prior Years 

All Other State Apportionments - Current Year 

All Other Slate Apportionments - Prior Years 

Child Nutrition Programs 

Mandaled Costs Reimbursements 

Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 

Tax Relief Subventions 
Restricted Levies - Other 

Homeowners' Exemptions 

Other Subventionsnn-Lieu Taxes 

Pass-Through Revenues from 
State Sources 

After School Education and Safety (ASES) 

Charter School Facility Grant 

Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 

California Clean Energy Jobs Act 

Career Technical Education Incentive 
Grant Program 

American Indian Earty Childhood Education 

Specialized Secondary 

All Other Slate Revenue 

TOTAL. OTHER STATE REVENUE 

Object 
Resource Codes Codes 

4203 8290 

4610 8290 

3040, 3045, 3060, 
3061, 3110, 3150, 
3155, 3180, 3182, 
3183, 4037, 4038, 
4123, 4124, 4126, 
4127, 4128, 4204, 
5630 8290 

3500-3599 8290 

All Other 8290 

- --- ---

6360 8319 

6500 8311 

6500 8319 

All Other 8311 

All Other 8319 

8520 

8550 

8560 

8575 

8576 

8587 

6010 8590 

6030 8590 

6650, 6680, 6685, 
6690, 6695 8590 

6230 8590 

8387 8590 

7210 8590 

7370 8590 

All Other 8590 

- --- -

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software • 2022.2.0 
FIie: fund-a (Rev 04/15/2022) 

Unaudited Actuals 
County School Service Fund 
Unrestricted and Restricted 

Expenditures by Object 

2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 

Total Fund 
un,eatrtcted Restricted col. A+ B 

IAl IBl (Cl 

--

0.00 Q_.00 

0 00 0.00 - - - -

--
__ 0 00 0.00 

- --- ---- 0 00 - 0.00 

---- 0.00 22,103.Q()_ - 22,103.00 

--- 0.00 160,263.00 160.263.00 

0 00 0 00 - --

--
520,w.oo 520 595.00 

0.00 Q,p__(l_ 

O.OQ_ 0,00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 __(l_QQ_ 

, ___
MQ. 

� __MQ. _Q,QQ. 

- 3 2.94.0Q. _(l_QQ 3.294.00 

__ 2,1_92.Q.O __ 1.308 55 3,llQ(hS.5 

0.00_ 0.00 - --- Q 00 

0.00 0 00 0,00 --- -

Q_QQ__ 0 00 0,00 

0 00 0,00 

- -� 0.00 0.00 

_g_357_�2 -�?.d[T_,§12 

- -- 0.QO - -- 0,00 

0,00 0.00 -- --

--- - 0 00 - -- 0,00 

---- oop_ - --- o.oo 

198 00 ___ 3_17,470 15 - -- 317,668,15 

5,1!84._QO _ 896,731.6_� 902.715 62 -

Page 5 

2022-23 Budaet 

Unrestricted Restricted 
IDI IE) 

0.00 

0 00 - - --

0 00 -

----
f----

0 00 

- 0 00 22J_Q!00 

___Q_QQ_ __!?J,�2.00 

- ---- --- 0 0()_ 

-

�50 00 

0 00 
-

0 00 0 00 

0.00 0 .00 - --

- - ...Q,QQ_ ____Q,QQ_ 

3 500 00 __!!QQ._ 

3 064 00 �0.00 

0.001 0.00 

0 00 0,00 ---- - --

0,00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

-
75,000 00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0 .00 ----

0,00 202.656.00 ----

6,564,0Q._ 648,506 00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01 

Total Fund % Dlff 
col. D+E Column 

(Fl C&F 

_ __ 0 00 0 .0% 

0 00 _0.0% 

0.00 ___ 0.Q!'o 

0.00 _ _  0,0% 

�103 00 -� 

159 842.00 _ -0.3% 

0.00 0.0% -

�,550.00 �% 

0.00 1---0.0% 

0,00 
f--

0.0% 

.QR()_ 0 0% 

- _Q.Q()_ 0 0� 

3,500.00 6�% 

�64. 00 .!j.8% 

0.00 �Q.% 

0.00 _ _0.0% 

0.00 ---- �0% 

0 00 __.9c_O% 

0 00 0.0% --

75,000.00 _ 30 8% 

_Q.Q()_ O.Q:'{'o 

_ ___ 0.00 0.IIT! 

--- 0.00 ___M!o 
0.00 0.0% 

�.�6.Rfl �% 

655,070 00 _ _  -5 .3% 

Printed: 8124/2022 11 :21 AM 

                                                                 6 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Doscrlotlon 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

Other Local Revenue 
County and Olstrtct Taxes 

Oiher Restricted Levies 
Secured Roll 

Unsecured Roll 

Prior Years' Taxes 

Supplemental Taxes 

Non-Ad Valorem Taxes 
Parcel Taxes 

Other 

Community Redevelopment Funds 
Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 

Penalties and lnlerost !(om 
Delinquent Non-LCFF 
Taxes 

Sales 
Sale of EquipmenUSuppiies 

Sale of Publications 

Food Service Sales 

Ali Other Sales 

Leases and Rentals 

Interest 

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value 
of Investments 

Fees and Contracts 
Adult Education Fees 

Non-Resident Siudents 

Transportalion Fees From individuals 

lnleragency Services 

Miligalion/Developer Fees 

Ali Other Fees and Contracts 

Other Local Revenue 
Pius: Misc Funds Non-LCFF 

(50%) Adjusiment 

Pass-Through Revenues From 
Local Sources 

Ali Other Local Revenue 

Tuition 

Ali Other Transfers In 

Transfers of Apportionments 
Spectai Education SELPA Transfers 

From Distrtcts or Charter Schools 

From Counly Offices 

From JPAs 

ROC/P Transfers 
From Districts or Charter Schools 

From County Offices 

From JPAs 

Other Transfers of Apportionments 
From Districts or Charter Schools 

From County Offices 

From JPAs 

All Other Transfers In from All Others 

TOTAi OTliER LOCAL R.EVENU_E ___ 

TOTAL REVENUES - ---

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2 O 
File: fund-a (Rev 04/15/2022) 

Resourco Coclu 

6500 

6500 

6500 

6360 

6360 

6360 

Ali Other 

All Other 

Ali Other 

---

Object 
Codas 

8615 

8616 

8617 

8618 

8621 

8622 

8625 

8629 

8631 

8632 

8634 

8639 

8650 

8660 

8662 

8671 

8672 

8675 

8677 

8681 

8689 

8691 

8697 

8699 

8710 

8781-8783 

8791 

8792 

8793 

8791 

8792 

8793 

8791 

8792 

8793 

8799 

Unaudited Actuals 
County School Service Fund 
Unrestricted and Restrtcled 

Expenditures by Object 

2021-22 Unoudtted Actuals 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col.A+B 

{Al 1B) fC) 

-
0,00 

-
0,00 -- o,o_o 

� 0.00 � O.Q!l � 0,0Q_ 

-- 0.00 __Q,Q_O � 0� 

•0.00 __ 0.00 _.11.@ 

___ o_.oo _ __ 0.00 __ o.o_o 

---- 0 00 - -- 0,00 _ __ _ O&o 

000 - 000 0 00 

__ 0.00 - -- 0.00 - - o,oo

--- 0.00 - -0,00 __ .O ... ® 

0 00 0.00 0.00 -- - -

- -- 0.00 >-- 0 00 +-- -- 0.00 

-- - O.QQ_ 
f---

0 0Q_ 
1---

0,00 

_o__m _Q__QQ_ - _Q,__09 

30,101.55 _0_.QQ 38.jO :� 

____MQ 0.00 QJ!.Q__ 

0.00 __ Q,Q.11 I- 0
_.__
0Q_ 

--- 0 .00 _Q • .QO __Q,@ 

___ 0.0'0 _ _  0.00 (!00 _ 

�.498.28 - -- 0 .00 420.4�82_8 

,____ 0.00 --- Q,00 - --- 0,00 

_O.Q.Q 0.00 0,00 

-- 0,0_Q_ ._ 0.00 
- -

0.00 

� 0 O_Q_ � 0.00 � 0,00 

� 9,g-3:SI!� � o.� � 9,032.68 

_0__QQ_ 
� __o.oo - - 0,00 

__ o�� - -----2,QQ Q.OQ_ 

'-- 0 00 - --- OW. 

- ---- 000 0.0Q.. 

0.00 0,00 
-- -

..... 0� - --- 0.00 

_O,QD__ - 0.00 

� -- 0
0
00. - --- o.qo 

--
0.00 0.09 - 0,00 

0.00. 0,00 O�Q_Q_ 
O}>Q. 0.00 _Q,!!Q_ 

- -- o.� Q.9() 0.00 

467,6�&fil. 
- _Q,09 _ __ "!_� 63�,51 

--- 2J68,!80.32 _ _ .1.!);5§,994,!12 3,425,974,l!�_ 

Page 6 

Unrestricted 
{Dl 

- 0_.00 

o.o__o

,-
Q.0_0 

_Q,QQ_ 

0,00 

0.00 

_Q,__<io_ 

0.00_ 

0.00 

_o.oo_ 

C!.Q0 

0,0,0 

0.00 --

:\(),000.QQ. 

0.00 
� 

-- 0._09_ 
0 00 

0 00 

��.900.00 

0.00 

� !J.;Ojl 

0.0_0 

0.00 

7 QQ.Q,_!)Jl 

0.00 

_OJJ!l 

-------

-

0.00 

O,Q_Q 

-- (!.()O 

0.00 

�05.000.00 

2,030.764 00 

2022-23 Sudaot 

Restricted 
{El 

_!).00 

o . .oo

Q._0!1 
0 00 

000 

0.00 

__ 0cil!l 

0,00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

o.oq_

o__o_o

0,0_0, 

!)_.__0_0 

0.00 

0JIO 
0.00 

O.Q,O 

0.00 

____ _  Q.QO. 

- ..C! ... O!! 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01 

Total Fund %Diff 
col. D+E Column 

fFI C&F 

--- _O.Jl!) O . .Q'!'! 
OcO,O .!l.Jl.'Yo 

- - -- _o._oo_ _ _  0.0'(, 

0.00 0,0% 

0.00 0.0% -

_0.00 _!),0% 

__ Q,!)D_ 0.Oo/, 

__Q,_OQ_ �.91_0% 

Q,QQ_ �.0-0o/, 

__ Q,QQ__ 0,0?', 

__ _0_.__0Q__ 0.0% 

0.0_!)_ 0,0% 

QO.b 0.0% 

_ __ 3!!,@9.00 -2L3% 

_Q)l_!l 0.0'l'o 

000 � 

9,9_0 0.0% 

Q,00 � 

_ __ 3!l!!,0.00.0!) � 

_.Q,QQ. __ O.O'l'o 

0.00 0:0% 

� 0,00 0.0% 

___ 0,_Q!l � 0,00 -- 0.0o/o 
4 5()Q,O.Q._ - - 11JO!U>Q _27,3% 

0.00 _9.,.QQ. __ 0.0% 

0,00 ___Mf1 - 0.0% 

- ..!!,CJ!! - o .. OQ.. __ 0.0% 

0.00 0,00 __QJI% 

0.00 0,00 --0.0% 

0,00 0 00 __ 0.0% 

0.00 O.OQ__ __ 0.0% 

0.00 Q.00 ___Q,_0% 

.Q,t�O_ - --- 0,00 . �

0 00 O,QQ_ _ _O.O'l!, 

0 00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0,00 0,0% - -- -

4,500.00 409 500.00 -12.4% 

I 012,848.00 3,043 612.00 -112'4 

Printed: 8124/2022 11 :21 AM 

                                                                 7 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Descrlotlon 

CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

Certificated Teachers" Salaries 

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 

Resource Codes 

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 

Olher Certificated Salaries 

TQJt,L, CERTIEICATEO SAL<\RIES 

CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

Classified lnslructional Salaries 

Ciassllied Support Salaries 

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 

Clerical, Technical and Office Saleries 

Other Classified Salaries 

TOTAL, CLASSIFIEOSALARIES 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

STRS 

PERS 

OASDI/Medicara/Ailarnallve 

Health and Welfare Benefits 

Unemployment Insurance 

Workers' Compensation 

OPEB, Allocated 

OPEB, Active Employees 

Other Employee Benefits 

TOTAL, EMPL_()YEE BEN§l'ITS - --
BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 

Books and Other Reference Materials 

Materials and Supplies 

Noncapilalizad Equipment 

Food 

TOTAL, 80.QKS I\NQJl\!PPl,1§.._ 

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 

Subagreements for Services 

Travel and Conferences 

Dues and Memberships 

Insurance 

Operalions and Housekeeping 
Services 

Renlals, Leases, Repairs, and 
Noncapilalizad Improvements 

Transfers of Direct Costs 

Transfers of Direct Costs - lnter1und 

Professional/Consulting Services and 
Operating Expenditures 

Communications 

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER 
�G EX!:'��OITURES 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software • 2022,2 O 
File: lund-a (Rav 04/15/2022) 

Object 
Codes 

1100 

1200 

1300 

1900 

2100 

2200 

2300 

2400 

2900 

3101-3102 

3201-3202 

3301-3302 

3401-3402 

3501-3502 

3601-3602 

3701-3702 

3751-3752 

3901-3902 

4100 

4200 

4300 

4400 

4700 

5100 

5200 

5300 

5400. 5450 

5500 

5600 

5710 

5750 

5800 

5900 

Unaudited Actuals 
County School Service Fund 
Unrestricted and Restricted 

Expenditures by Object 

2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 

Unrestricted 
(Al 

81,216.95 

2,388.98 

'!.1_0,026.55 

0.00 - --

_ __ 193,63248 

- -- 9,870.32 

- - 16,162.59 

-- 117,01� 

179,669 21 

__ OQ9 

322 721 92 

-- 31,98'!Jl9 

-- 80,754.� 

27 91Q.j§ 

1�1!l_4.� 

------ -�!l.Q(),16 

- -- 18,260.17 

o oo --

o oo 

15 688 50 

_lli,I§.�.O] 

000 

o oo 

12,628 45 

_ __ _  7,164 76 

0.00 

19,�.21 

I-
_Q..Q.O 

3,805 40 

-- 16,924 76 

0.00 

f---
7,030_]8 

f--- 1,077.50 

0 00 

0 00 

231,138 38 

11195 26 

271,171 68 

Restricted 
B) 

198,690.54 

32.109.� 

95,94_1_10 

__ 0,00 

-�-7�170 

�7 66 

55,424.90 

� 14.029.20 

� 458.80 

��4 . .QQ_ 

203,?24.§6 

_ __ 11 �-��4 7_§_ 

� 35,730 51 

19 623 66 

·83�4.17 

�.87Q . .Q!!_ 

t---1��122_ 

O.QO 

Q-9\) 

0.00 

-- 280,756.40. 

0.00 

0.00 

2s 184.�.o 

o.oo 

_0�00 

25,184 40 

j).QQ_ 

7 705,1_8 

'---1,597 20 

20,338 99 

---- 142_27 93 

420._91 

O 00 

000 

124,091 68 

3,030J2 

171,91.2..61 

Page 7 

Total Fund 
col.A+B 

(C) 

-- 279,907,49 

34,498.94 

205,96775 

o oo 

5�:)I.4_,_� 

_:11_�087.9t 
71 587.49 

_ -- . 131,049.00 

1----
t@,1213.01 

9,634.00 

526,486.48 

151 849 65 

116 484.87 

47,!E)3.jl2 

2_2J.15�0Q. 

6,!llQ-�4 

�2339_ 

O_QQ 

_O,Q9 

l.?,!188,50 
596,509 47 

0 00 

0 00 

�812.�� 

7 164.76 

0 00 

44 977.61 

0,00 

11 510,58 

18 521.96 

20,338.� 

_ _  2_1,758.31 

I 498.41 

0 00 

0 00 

355230.06 

14,225,98 

443,084,29 

2022-23 Budoet 

Unreetrlcted Restricted 
(D) (El 

�.:/97,0Q_ 230,58b!!Q. 

OJ)O I 
37.718.00 

�.J�S,00 

0,00 

311,565.00 

14,646.00 

37 655 00 

----- ...!1�.�82.00 

--- 2179� 

0.00 

_ __ 416.J05.00 

59,510 .00 

_ ·--� 109,113_.99_ 

38 046 00 

149 06A().O 

.§9.��11Q. 

0 00 

338 138.00 

162 136 • .90 

53 670 0_Q_ 

25 ooo. oo_ 

500J)_O 

20.520.00 

261 826.0.0 

131.304.00 

� 54,823.00 

?�.7ll5,00 

__ 65,jl62.0Q_ 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01 

Total Fund %Dlff 
col.D+E Column 

IFI C&F 

- 385.889,Q0 � 

37,71{?.!)Q. _9.S� 

� 22_6�jl.Q. --�-13% 

0.00 0.0% 

649 703.00 __ 24.9% 

. 176,782.00 _31.8% 

91 325.00 27 !lli 
170 982.0.9 30 5% 

218 4_22_.00 21 3% 

20,520.00 _ill,__0% 

678,031,00 __ 28 8% 

1� 25 7% 

�- -- 1§1ll:l6.00 � 

.. ----- 64,&11._Q_0 364.% 

1-- ····- 215Jg2.00 � 

__ 3,7_16_99 - _ ___:J,_QQ3�00_1-- 6,719.00 �2%. 

25,700.00 

0.00 

0 00 

15 689.00 

___ 4DQ._.9:g_Q_Q_ 

000 

0.00 

11,350.00 

3,214 00 

0 00 

14,564 0Q_-

0 00 

7,472 00 

18,000.0Q_ 

000 

7,000.00 

1,500QQ_ 

0.00 

0.00 

339 289.00 

11 500.00 

384 761 .00 

21 304.00 

o.oo 

0,00 

0,00 

_3Q:l.191.00 

1,300.00 

0.00 

48,297.00 

6 500.00 

0 .00 

56,097.00 

40 000.00 

8.476.00 

1 847.00 

�000,00 

7.500.00 

1 500.00 

0.00 

0.00 

144 364.00 

1,000,00 

219.687,00 

- 47,102.00 

o.oo

0.00 

15689.00 

704,123.00 

�0.00 

0 .00 

59,647.00 

9,714.00 

0.00 

70,661.00 

40,000.00 

__ 1_�_!l48.00 

-·---� 

15,000.00 

14.500.0Q 

··- -:l.000.0Q 

0.00 

0 .00 

483.653.00 

_ __ 12,290.00 

__ 6�8JJ0 

__ 28.6% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

� 

� 

Q_Q0/111 

57 7% 

.____1§ 6% 

0 0% 

57 1% 

__ New 

�6% 

7 2% 

-26.3%

-33.4% 

_j_Q!J.2% 

- OTO% 

0.0% 

36.2% 

-12.1% 

36ci'/o 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11:21 AM 

                                                                 8 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Ococrlnllon 

CAl'ITAL OUTLAY 

Land 

Land Improvements 

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 

Books and Media for New School Libraries 
or Major Expansion of School Libraries 

Equipment 

Equipment Replacement 

Lease Assets 

TOT�L
1 

CAPITAL OUTLAY ---

R-oaourco Codos 

- -- - --

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

Tuition 
Tuition for Instruction Under lnterdistrict 
Attendance Agreements 

State Special Schools 

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments 
Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 

Payments lo County Offices 

Payments to JPAs 

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues 
To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Offices 

To JPAs 

Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments 
To Dislricls or Charter Schools 6500 

To County Offices 6500 

To JPAs 6500 

ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments 
To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 

To County Offices 6360 

To JPAs 6360 

Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 

All Other Transfers 

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 

Debt Service 
Debt Service - Interest 

Other Debt Service - Principal 

Object 
Codos 

6100 

6170 

6200 

6300 

6400 

6500 

6600 

---

7110 

7130 

7141 

7142 

7143 

7211 

7212 

7213 

7221 

7222 

7223 

7221 

7222 

7223 

7221-7223 

7261-7283 

7299 

7438 

7439 

TOTA).. OTl:JER OUTGO{oxcludlnn Trans!oJllJ)l1ndiracl CoSls) ___ -

OTHER OUTGO · TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 

Transfers of Indirect Costs 

Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 

_IQTAL, OTHER OUTGO· TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 

7310 

7350 

-

Unaudited Actuals 
County School Service Fund 
Unrestricted and Restricted 

Expenditures by Object 

2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 

Unrestricted Restricted 
lfil (Bl 

--- O.QQ_ - __MQ_ 

- -- 0 00 _____Q,Q0 

- -- 0.00 _0.00 

- -- 0__.QQ_ __Q,Q0 

-- 2�.030.81_ 5_.?97,60 

-- 2 814.88 -- 0,00 

0.00 0 .00 - - -

26,851.69 ---- -- ?..!97,60 

000 0 00 --

0 0_Q 0.00 

o.oo� --- - ()_QQ_ 

- -- 0.00 
�

0 .00 

0.00 0 00 -

0 00 

Total Fund 
col. A+ B 

(Cl 

___Q_QQ, 
_0QQ 

0 00 

- Ojl_O 

29,8� 41 -

- 2,111•!68 

0 00 

32Jl49.2D 

O.!)!l 

()_()Cl 

_Q,□Q 

Q_,00 

0 00 

0,00 _ _  0,00 -- - ---
0.00 0 00 0,00 - - - --

----
o,oo - - 0.00 0,.QQ_ 

Q.QQ� 0 00 

Q . _@ 0 00 

·-
__Q .00 0 00 

f------ -· - ___Q._()() 0_QQ_ 

,______.. - Q Q0 - a.a�

-- 0.00 (tQQ_ 

__Q,QO 0.00 _ __ _(),00 

0.00 0 00 0 00 

_ _  Q,00 -- 0 00 0.0__1)_ 

I-- ....!Q9 .  ___Q,QQ 0 00 

1----
0 00 _ _  0.00 - 0 00 

f-- __g_,q_o_ 1-- __Q,_O_Q 0 00 

- -- (23,249. 41) ----- _23,249.44 _Q_QQ_ 

1---
0.00 ___(J,QQ_ - 0,00 

I--
(23,249.441 m�.� 0 ,00 

TOTI\L. WENDITURES ---- - -- -� 1,126,674 61 1 937,4.06,_71 2.164 081,32 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software • 2022.2.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 04115/20221 Page 8 

2022-23 Budnat 

Unrestricted Restricted 
(DI (El 

0.00 0 00 

0 00 0.00 

-
0,00 0 00_ 

q.oo 0 00 

__ 20J]00.(10 0,00 

_25,6�5.00 0,0Q 

0.00 o.� 

4S,BSS .. OQ.. 
�

0.0Q 

Q.QQ_ 
t--

25,000.00 

0 00 0,00 --

g,'!,'!_™1!_ 0.00 

0.00 0.00 ---

0.00 0.00 - -- ----

0 00 0 00 --- -

--- 0 00 
I---

0.00 

I-
0.00 0 00 

_Q_QQ_ 
_ _  0_00 

_Q_Q9 

__ 0_00 

___ 0 00 

__ 0_00 

0 00 0 00 -

0 00 0 00 

0 00 0 00 ---

o.og 0.00 

0.00 0 00 

24 426.00 25000.00 

---- (2J.Jl�L.90) f-- 21,947 00 

0.00 0 00 

_.Q!,947.0_QJ 21 947 00 

J,576,363.Q!)_ 1.225 866 00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01 

Total Fund ¾Dlff 
col. D + E Column 

IFI C&F 

--- 0.00 _ _o_.o¾ 

0 00 _ __ 0 0% 

--- 0 00 _ _  00% 

---- 0,00 _ __ 0 0% 

�--- _29,00_0.oJ)_ __ -33 0% 

� 25,� _8J85% 

- 0_QQ_ �00% 

45,655 00 40 4% 

25,000.00_ � 

----0 00 _____Q,()% 

24,426_j)Q_ New 

0 00 _____Q,Q'1/o 

0 00 0,0% --- --

--
0.00 _ 0,0% 

C---
0.00 �0.0% 

--� ___Q,.QQ_ � 0 0% 

-- ____Q,(JO 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

____JhQ9 0.0% 

____Q,Q0 0.0% 

�o 0.0% 

_ __ 0.00 0.0% 

--- 0.00 ____Q,Q'Yo 

0.00 _ _  0_0% 

,_ 
0.00 �0% 

QOO 0.0% 

___Q,CJQ 0.0% 

49.42aoo New 

0 .00 0.0% 

____Q,Q() O.Oo/o 

_____Q,Q9 0.0% 

2.602,249 Oll 29.5� 

Printed: 6/2412022 11 :21 AM 

                                                                 9 of 79



Sierra Counly Office of Educalion 
Sierra County 

Descrlntlon 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

From: Special Reserve Fund 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers In 

_(�)lQ.T��. INTERFUND TR/\('ISFERS IN 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

To. Child Oevelopmenl Fund 

To:.Spedol Reserve Fund 

To: Stnta School Building Fund/ 
County School Faclllllas Fund 

To· C•!etW'la Ful1d 

Other AuU1002.ed fnlerfund Transfers Out 

Resource Codes 

- --

(b) TQTAJ.�INTERF\JNDTRANSFER,S OUT _ _ ---

OTHER SOURCES/USES 

SOURCES 

State APi;ort1onments 
Emergency Apport1onnl<lnts 

Procooos 

Proceeds from Disposal of 
Capital Assets 

Other Souroes 
County Scllool Bldg Aoa 

Transfers trorn Funds of 
Leps0d/Reorganlzod LEA._ 

Long-Torm Debi Procoods 
Proceeds lrom Cerflficates 
of Por1icipabon 

PrQ1'oods Imm Leases 

Proceeds from Leaso Revenue Bonds 

All Other Flnanaing sources 

{crTOTAL�SOURCES 

USES 

Transfers of Funas trom 
Lapsodilloornsnlzed LEA• 

AU Olher Flnanc,ng UMS 

ldl TOTAL, USES 
- --

CONTRIBUTIONS 

Conuibutlons from Unrestricted Revenues 

Contribution.• from Reallloled Revonuos 

.JfilIOTAL, CONmtBUTIONS 
- --

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 
�l!!-b• c.-d+o\ 

California Depl of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022 2 0 
File: fund-a (Rev 0411512022) 

--

---

- -

Object 
Codes 

8912 

891 9 

7811 

7612 

78)3 

7618 

7610 

- --

8931 

5953 

8\J61 

ti005 

8971 

8972 

6973 

5979 

76S1 

7699 

8980 

B!lllO 

-

Unaudi\ed Actuals 
County School Service Fund 
Unrestricted and Restricted 

Expenditures by Object 

2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. A+ B 

IN (!!) (Cl 

-- O.OQ__ ____Q,_,QQ 0.00 

-- 58,401.� __ OJ)O_ 58 40 .5 

- - 58,401.51 €!,DO - --�'1_0.1,_51 

_ __ 0,00 0.00 - - 0.00 

--- 0 00 
f--

�00 O.O_Q__ 

- -- 0.QQ.. ___!l,QQ_ 0.00 

- - 0.00 _Q,00 _9.9_o 

0.00 -- 0,00 - - 0 00 

0 00 O,QQ_ - 0.00 

0 00 0 00 0 00 

_0 00 _0,,00 0.00 

0.00 0_00 0.00 

___Q,QQ_ _ _  !M!l 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

2022-23 Budnet 

Unrestricted Restricted 
(DI (El 

0.00 0 00 

_ _  5_2.,ill 00 0 00 

_ __ 52J22 00 0 00 

Q_,_00 
t----

O.O_Q_ 

0.00 
I-

0.00 

OOQ_
� _Q_.QQ_ 

- Q00 _ __ 0.00 

0 00 0 00 - -- -

0.00 0 00 

0 00 O.OQ_ 

0 00 0.00 --

0 00 0.00 

_ __ 0.00 ____Q,Q_O 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01 

Total Fund %DIii 
col. D + E Column 

IFl C&F 

--- 0.00 � 

- - 52,722.00 �a 

- -- 52,722.00 ______!E;J% 

- _Q_QQ_ __ 0.0% 

_!Ll!\L 0.0o/� 

0,00 O(lli 

0J)_0 00% 

--- 0 00 _ __ Q]% 

0 00 __ 00% 

0�00 - 0.0% 

__ opo 0 0% 

___Qc!10 0
_.
0% 

� 0.0% 

0,00 
I- .11.00 O.QQ_ 

�
O.OQ_ '--- __ 0 .0% 

o oo

____Q_QQ 

___Q,QQ 

____Q,QO 

_ __ 0.00 

___ _  0.00 

Q.00 

� (97�57J!l) 

__ o_._o_o_ 

(�J.1!!.PSI 

(39...Q..5_6.,d?J 

- - � _QQQ_ 

_0.00 --0.00 

___ o._oo. --- 0. 00 

___ .Q._00 - --- 0.00 

____ !!,,tlO --- 0.00 

---- 0.0,0 0.00 

000 0.00 ----

97�.§.ill- O_QO 

__ QJ)Q Q_,QQ_ 

o oo "·"'·"L 
97 45-7.7_�_ 551_01 51 

Page 9 

O.QQ_ 
1--

0.00 o,po - QOo/o 

__Q_QQ_ 
�

0.00 0 .00 0.0% 

__ 0 00 0.00 o.gg_� 0.0% 

-- 0 00 0.00 __Q,9.0 g.0% 

---- 0 00 _ __ O.QQ_ __ 0_.00_ 0.0% 

0 00 0.00 �o 0.0% 

0 00 ___ _  0.00 _ __ 0 .00 0 0% . '"'"::c 213,038 00 �- o.oo ____Q,!)_% 

_ (213,03!1,9_0) 

( 160.316..QQl 

0 00 

2.13.036..00 _ 

21303800 

0.00 00% 

0.00 0 0% 

52 722.00 -9.7% 

Prinled: 8/2412022 11 :21 AM 

                                                                 10 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

A.REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other State Revenue 

4) Olher Local Revenue 

51 TOTAL. REVENUES 

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999) 

1 ) Instruction 

2) Instruction - Related Services 

3) Pupil Services 

4) Ancillary Services 

5) Community Services 

6) Enterprise 

7) General Administration 

8) Plant Services 

9) Other Outgo 

10l TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES !A6 • B101 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) lnlerfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

Function Codes 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6999 

7000-7999 

8000-8999 

9000-9999 

-41 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

California Dept of Educailon 
SACS Financial Reporting Software • 2022.2,0 
File: fund-a (Rev 02/21/2018) 

Object 
Codes 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

Except 
7600-7699 

8900-8929 

7600-7629 

8930-8979 

7630-7699 

8980-8999 

Unaudited Actuals 
County School Service Fund 
Unrestricted and Restricted 
Expenditures by Function 

2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 

Unrestricted Restricted 
fAl (81 

Total Fund 
col, A+ B Unrestricted 
_(Cl !Dl 

2022-23 Budaet 

Restricted 
!El 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01 

Total Fund %Dlff 
col.D+E Column 

(Fl C&F 

-14.6% �5,363.81 - o o_o_ - 1,895L363.81 
-

1,619.2.00.00 0 0Q_ - 1,619,200.00 -
0 00 

-- 5,984 00 

467,632 51 

2 368 980 32 

159 940,32 --

-- 157,44� 

__ 100,203.96 

- _ __ 0 00 

-- -2coo 

0.00 ·--

690 464,04 

--- 18,625.1 8 

__ 0.00 

1126 674,61 

1 242 305 71 

� 
58,401.51 

0 00 

0.00 ---

__Q 00 

- - (!U,457.78) 

(39 056.27' 

� 

-

1�.QQ. 
896,m.g_ 

_Q_QQ_ 

1 056,994.62 

586.216.61 

142,395.21 

160 263,00 

�2.715.!?2 

467,632&1_ 

3 425,974,94 

746 156.93 

299,836.30 

95,�3�- 19M_37.52 

�.596.13 _ _  2_4,596 13 

- _Q.00 _Q .Q_O 

_QJ1Q_ 0.00 

�.203.44_ f---------833,667.48 

45,761 78 f-- 64,386.96 

0.00 0 00 --- - -

1,037 406 71 2.164 061-32 

19,567.91 1 261 893.62 

- _0 0Q 56,1Q1.,!i1 

0,00 0 00 

0 00 0 00 --

(!,OQ -- 0 00 

97.457,78 __QJ1Q_ 
97 457.78 58 401 51 

Page 1 

-- 0.00 --

6,564 00 

405,000 00 -
2,030 764,00 

27_9.....!§_4.00 

201,558.00 

140,_9_!;8� -
0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

159 842 00 

848,506.00. 

4.§QQJI0 

1 012 848 00 

792,602 00 

15.Q,116.00 

84.12400 

23 598.0_Q_ 

0.00 

0 00 

_ __ 899,226,00 _ __ 115,761_0Q_ 

159 842.00 -0.3% 

855,070.00 -5 3% 

409,5,Q0.00 _ -12,4% 

3 043�12.00 -11.2% 

1,071,766.00 43.6% 

3517�.0Q 17.3� 

2.25 082.00 15.2% 

____n,598,00 � 

0,00 QO% - --

0.00 0.0% 

1 014,987.00 __l1_7% 

31,029.00 34,6�
,... 

65,654.00 _ £_0% 

24,426.00 �00.00 __ 49A26.oo � 

1 576 363.00 1 2.25 886.00 2 802249.00 29.5% 

454 401.00 (213 038,00\ 241 363.00 -60.9% 

52,.7�2._QQ 0 00 52,722.00 -9.7% 

0,00 --- 0 00 --- 0 00 __ 0 0% 

0,00 0.00_ 
-

0 00 ___llil% 

_ _  QOQ_ _ __ 0 00 000 0.0% 

- - _(21 3,038.00) f--- 213,038.00 I 0.00 0.0% 

(160 316 00 213.038.00 52 722.00 -9.7% 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :21 AM 

                                                                 11 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Oescrlotlon 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE (C + D4) 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 -Audited (F1a + F1b) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 

Components or Ending Fund Balance 
a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c)Commi\led 
Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments (by Resource/Object) 
OPES 
OPES 

d) Assigned 

Other Assignments (by Resource/Object) 
e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassianed/Unaooroorialed Amount 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022 2 O 

FIie: fund-a (Rev 02/21/2018) 

Object 
Function Codes Codes 

9791 

9793 

9795 

9711 

9712 

9713 

9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 
0000 9760 
0000 9760 

9780 

97B9 

9790 

Unaudited Actuals 
County School Service Fund 
Unrestricted end Restricted 
Expenditures by Function 

2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col.A+ B 

{Al {E! {Cl 

1.203 249 44 117 045 69 1,320295,13 

�0.517.20 135 442.95 3 725,960.15 

O,(J(l_ 0 00 0.00 

__ _  3,�517.20 � 135,442.95 _3�9§Q,15 

0.00 0,00 0,00 

3,590,517.20 _ __ 13_5,442 95 3,725,960,15 

1------1,793,766 64 252.:!�(l..§.'L §�6_,2552� 

600 00 0 00 600.00 

0.00 - -- - Q.00 0 00 

-- 0.00 O.QQ_ - - 0 00 

0 00 0 00 0.00 

O_()() - 252,488.64 �488 64 

0.00 0.00 0 00 

- - 92,485 00 ,- 0.00 ---- --- 92,485._0__Q_ 
92,485.00 9.?,185,Q0 

0 00 
>------

0.00 0,00 

293,000.00 0.00 293,000,00 

4 407 6B1.64 0.00 4 40?,6B1 ,64 

Page 2 

2022-23 Budget 

Unrestricted Restricted 
{Dl IE\ 

294.085 00 a.oo 

4,793.766 64 25��88.64 

OQ9 0.00 

4,793,766.64 252,488.64 

0.00 0 00 

4.793.76_6_ 1!_4 252 488-64 

5,087.851 64 252 488.64 
-

500 00 0.00 

0 00 _ 0.00 

0.00 ______QJ1Q_ 

0.00 0,00 

O.QQ_ 252,488 64 

0 00 0 .00 

92,4_85.00 . ..Q.QQ. 

92,485.00 

0 .00 _O.OQ_ 

378,000.00 0.00 

4 616 866 64 0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01 

Total Fund %Dlf f  
col. D + E Column 

IF) C&F 

294 085.00 -77.7% 

5,04§,255.28 35.4% 

0,00 0.0% 

5,046J5528 _ �5.4% 

O_J)__Q 0.0% 

.M46,255,2B 35.4% 

5 340 340 28 5.8% 

500.00 -16,7% 

0 00 Q_Q% 

0.00 0.0% 

____Q,(l(l_ 0.0% 

2� - _Q.0% 

0,00 0.0% 

92,485.00 00% 

92,485.00 
----

- --
_Q_OO 0 0% 

378,000 00 �% 

4 616 B66.64 4.7% 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11:21 AM 

                                                                 12 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Unaudited Actuals 
County School Service Fund 

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail 

Resource 

6266 

6300 

6500 

6536 

6537 

6546 

9010 

Descri tion 

Educator Effectiveness, FY 2021-22 

Lottery: Instructional Materials 

Special Education 

Special Ed: Dispute Prevention and Dispute Resolution 

Special Ed: Learning Recovery Support 

Mental Health-Related Services 

Other Restricted Local 

Total, Restricted Balance 

California Dept of Education 

2021-22 

Unaudited Actuals 

7,251.99 

4,781.47 

134,127.84 

7,085.00 

31,874.00 

64,303.22 

3,065.12 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01 

2022-23 

Bud et 

7,251.99 

4,781.47 

134,127.84 

7,085.00 

31,874.00 

64,303.22 

3,065.12 

252,488,64 252,488.64 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 04/17/2019) Page 1 Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :21 AM                                                                  13 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Descriotion 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other State Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

Sl TOTAL REVENUES 

B. EXPENDITURES 

1) Certificated Salaries 

2) Classified Salaries 

3) Employee Benefits 

4) Books and Supplies 

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6) Capital Outlay 

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 

Costs) 

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 

9l TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 

OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 

FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) lnterfund Transfers 

a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses 

a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

4l TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022 2 0 
File: fund-b (Rev 00/08/2022) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Adult Education Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

2021-22 
Resource Codes Obiect Codes Unaudited Actuals 

8010-8099 0,00 

8100-8299 31 025.00 

8300-8599 276,438.00 

8600-8799 76 461.37 

383 924.37 

1000-1999 134,997.65 

2000-2999 25 665 66 

3000-3999 63,654.39 

4000-4999 23 936,72 

5000-5999 40,396 56 

6000-6999 16.711 50 

7100-7299, 

7400-7499 0.00 

7300-7399 0.00 

305 362.46 

78,561.89 

8900-8929 58.227,66 

7600-7629 66 390.11 

8930-8979 0.00 

7630-7699 0.00 

8980-6999 0.00 

(8 162.45\ 

Page 1 

2022-23 
Budaet 

0,00 

31,025.00 

306 200.00 

0,00 

337 ??5.00 

115,066.00 

32 609.00 

76 107,00 

26,467.00 

41,000.00 

39 054 00 

0.00 

0.00 

330 503.00 

6 722.00 

0,00 

6 722.00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

(6 722.00) 

46 1 0462 0000000 
Form 11 

Percent 
Difference 

0.0% 

0.0% 

10.8% 

-100,0% 

-12.2% 

-14.8% 

27.8%

19.6% 

10.6%

1.5% 

133.7% 

0.0% 

0,0% 

6.2% 

-91.4% 

-100.0% 

-89.9%

0 0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

-17.6% 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :21 AM 

                                                                 14 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Descriotion 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 

BALANCE (C + D4I

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance 

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 -Audited (F1a + F1b)

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d)

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e)

Components of Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 

Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments 

d) Assigned 

Other Assignments 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unasslcned/Unaoorocriated Amount 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software • 2022 2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 06/08/2022) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Adult Education Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

2021-22 
Resource Codes Obiect Codes Unaudited Actuals 

70 399.44 

9791 180,615.11 

9793 D DO 

180 615.11 

9795 0,00 

180.615.11 

251 014.55 

9711 0.00 

9712 0.00 

9713 0.00 

9719 0,00 

9740 251,014.55 

9750 0.00 

9760 0.00 

9780 0.00 

9789 0 00 

9790 0.00 

Page2 

2022-23 
BudQet 

0.00 

251 014.55 

0.00 

251.014.55 

0.00 

251,014 55 

251,014.55 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

251 014.55 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 11 

Percent 
Difference 

-100,0% 

39.0% 

0.0% 

39.0% 

0.0% 

39.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0,0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0,0% 

0.0% 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11:21 AM 

                                                                 15 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Descriotlon 

G.ASSETS 

1) Cash 

a) in County Treasury 

1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury

b) in Banks 

c) in Revolving Cash Account 

d) with Fiscal AgenUTrustee 

e) Collections Awaiting Deposit

2) Investments

3) Accounts Receivable

4) Due from Granter Government 

5) Due from Other Funds 

6) Stores 

7) Prepaid Expenditures 

8) Other Current Assets 

9) Lease Receivable 

101 TOT Al ASSETS 

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 

21 TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

I. LIABILITIES 

1) Accounts Payable 

2) Due to Granter Governments 

3) Due to Other Funds 

4) Current Loans 

5) Unearned Revenue 

61 TOTAL LIABILITIES 

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 

2\ TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 

K. FUND EQUITY 

Ending Fund Balance, June 30 

rmust aoree with line F2\ /G10 + H2l - 07 + J2l 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022 2.0 
FIie: rund-b (Rev 06/0812022) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Adult Education Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

2021-22 

Resource Codes Obiect Codes Unaudited Actuals 

9110 209 476.94 

9111 0.00 

9120 0,00 

9130 0.00 

9135 0.00 

9140 0.00 

9150 0.00 

9200 6.125.37 

9290 42,317.00 

9310 0.00 

9320 0.00 

9330 0.00 

9340 0.00 

9380 0.00 

257 919.31 

9490 0.00 

0.00 

9500 6,904.76 

9590 0.00 

9610 0.00 

9640 

9650 0.00 

6,904.76 

9690 0.00 

0 00 

251 014.55 

Page 3 

2022-23 

Budaet 

46 1 0462 0000000 
Form 11 

Percent 

Difference 

Printed: 8124/2022 11:21 AM 

                                                                 16 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Descriotion 

LCFF SOURCES 

LCFF Transfers 

LCFF Transfers - Current Year 

LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 

FEDERAL REVENUE 

lnteragency Contracts Between LEAs 

Pass-Through Revenues from 

Federal Sources 

Career and Technical Education 

All Other Federal Revenue 

TOTAL FEDERAL REVENUE 

OTHER STATE REVENUE 

Other State Apportionments 

All Other State Apportionments - Current Year 

All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years 

Pass-Through Revenues from 

State Sources 

Adult Education Program 

All Other State Revenue 

TOTAL OTHER STATE REVENUE 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software • 2022 2 o 
File: fund-b (Rev 06/08/2022) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Adult Education Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

2021-22 

Resource Codes Obiect Codes Unaudited Actuals 

8091 0.00 

8099 0.00 

0,00 

8285 0.00 

8287 0.00 

3500-3599 8290 0.00 

All Other 8290 31 025.00 

31 025,00 

8311 0 00 

8319 0.00 

8587 0.00 

6391 8590 262,051.00 

All Other 8590 14,387.00 

276.438.00 

Page 4 

2022-23 

Budaet 

0.00 

0,00 

0 00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

31.025.00 

31,025.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

301 000.00 

5 200.00 

306,200.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 11 

Percent 
Difference 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

14.9% 

-63.9%

10,8% 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :21 AM 

                                                                 17 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Oescrlotlon 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

Other Local Revenue 

Sales 

Sale of Equipment/Supplies 

Leases and Rentals 

Interest 

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 

Fees and Contracts 

Adult Education Fees 

lnteragency Services 

Other Local Revenue 

All Other Local Revenue 

Tuition 

TOTAL OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

TOTAL REVENUES 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
FIie: fund-b (Rev 06/08/2022) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Adult Education Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

2021-22 
Resource Codes Object Codes Unaudited Actuals 

8631 0.00 

8650 0.00 

8660 0.00 

6662 0 00 

8671 0.00 

8677 0.00 

8699 76,461.37 

8710 0.00 

76,461 37 

383 924.37 

Page 5 

2022-23 
Budget 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

337.225.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 11 

Percent 
Difference 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

-100.0% 

0.0% 

-100.0% 

-12.2% 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :21 AM 

                                                                 18 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Descrlotlon 

CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 

Other Certificated Salaries 

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

Classified Instructional Salaries 

Classified Support Salaries 

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 

Other Classified Salaries 

TOTAL. CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

STRS 

PERS 

OAS DI/Medicare/Alternative 

Health and Welfare Benefits 

Unemployment Insurance 

Workers' Compensation 

OPEB, Allocated 

OPEB, Active Employees 

Other Employee Benefits 

TOTAL EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

BOOKS ANO SUPPLIES 

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 

Books and Other Reference Materials 

Materials and Supplies 

Noncapitalized Equipment 

TOTAL BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

Callrornia Dept or Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2 o 
File: fund-b (Rev 06/0812022) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Adult Education Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

2021-22 

Resource Codes Obiect Codes Unaudited Actuals 

1100 31.238.57 

1200 0.00 

1300 103 759.08 

1900 0.00 

134.997.65 

2100 0 00 

2200 0.00 

2300 0.00 

2400 25 665.66 

2900 0.00 

25 665.66 

3101-3102 33 084.19 

3201-3202 5,693,07 

3301-3302 5,439,63 

3401-3402 12,892.80 

3501-3502 803.31 

3601-3602 5,741.39 

3701-3702 0.00 

3751-3752 0.00 

3901-3902 0,00 

63,654.39 

4100 2,796.47 

4200 o_oo 

4300 11 649.75 

4400 9 490.50 

23,936.72 

Page 6 

2022-23 

Budael 

4 500.00 

o_oo 

110,566.00 

0.00 

115 066.00 

2,000 00 

3,415.00 

0.00 

27,394.00 

0.00 

32 809.00 

27,178.00 

8,173.00 

4.178.00 

30.555.00 

740_00 

5 283.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

76 107.00 

3 000,00 

0.00 

18 467.00 

5,000.00 

26.467 DO 

46 1 0462 0000000 
Form 11 

Percent 
Difference 

-85.6% 

0.0% 

6_6% 

0.0% 

-14.8% 

New 

New 

0.0% 

6.7% 

0.0% 

27.8% 

-17.9% 

43.6% 

-23..2% 

137.0% 

-7.9% 

-8.0% 

0.0% 

0 0% 

0.0% 

19.6% 

7.3% 

0.0% 

58.5% 

-47.3% 

10.6% 

Printed: 8124/2022 11 :21 AM 

                                                                 19 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Unaudited Actuals 
Adult Education Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

2021-22 

Descrlotlon Resource Codes Obiect Codes Unaudited Actuals 

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 

Subagreements for Services 

Travel and Conferences 

Dues and Memberships 

Insurance 

Operations and Housekeeping Services 

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 

Transfers of Direct Costs 

Transfers of Direct Costs - lnterfund 

Professional/Consulting Services and 

Operating Expenditures 

Communications 

TOTAL. SERVICES AND OTHER OPERA,ING EXPENDITURES 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Land 

Land Improvements 

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 

Equipment 

Equipment Replacement 

Lease Assets 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

Tuition 

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments 

Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 

Payments to County Offices 

Payments to JPAs 

Other Transfers Out 

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues 

To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Offices 

To JPAs 

Debt Service 

Debt Service - Interest 

Other Debt Service - Principal 

TOTAL OTHER OUTGO /excludino Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022 2,0 
File: fund-b (Rev 06/08/2022) 

5100 0.00 

5200 4,361.30 

5300 1.183.40 

5400-5450 0.00 

5500 3,866 66 

5600 2,402.72 

5710 0 00 

5750 0.00 

5800 26,623.65 

5900 1 958.83 

40,396.56 

6100 0.00 

6170 0.00 

6200 16,711.50 

6400 0.00 

6500 0,00 

6600 0.00 

16 711.50 

7141 0.00 

7142 0,00 

7143 0.00 

7211 0 00 

7212 0.00 

7213 0.00 

7438 0.00 

7439 0.00 

0.00 

Page 7 

2022-23 

Budaet 

0.00 

7,500.00 

1 500.00 

0.00 

4,200.00 

2,600.00 

0.00 

0.00 

23,600.00 

1,600.00 

41,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

34 054.00 

5 000,00 

0.00 

0.00 

39 054.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

46 1 0462 0000000 
Form 11 

Percent 
Difference 

0.0% 

72.0% 

26.8% 

0.0% 

8.6% 

8.2% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

-11.4% 

-18.3% 

1.5% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

103.8% 

New 

0.0% 

0.0% 

133.7% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0 0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :21 AM 

                                                                 20 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Unaudited Actuals 
Adult Education Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

2021-22 
Description Resource Codes Obiect Codes Unaudited Actuals 

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 

Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 

TOTAL. OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

California Dept or Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Sottware - 2022 2.0 
FIie: fund-b (Rav 06108/2022) 

7350 0,00 

0.00 

305 362.48 

Page 8 

2022-23 
Budqet 

0,00 

0,00 

330 503.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 11 

Percent 

Difference 

0.0% 

0.0% 

8.2% 

Prtnted: 8/2412022 11:21 AM 

                                                                 21 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers In 

{a)TOTAL INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

To: State School Building Fund/ 

County School Facilities Fund 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers Out 

(bl TOTAL INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

OTHER SOURCES/USES 

SOURCES 

Long-Term Debt Proceeds 

Proceeds from Certificates 

of Participation 

Proceeds from Leases 

All Other Financing Sources 

(ol TOTAL SOURCES 

USES 

All Other Financing Uses 

/dl TOTAL USES 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 

(e) TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS

TOTAL. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

(a - b + C - d + e) 

California Dept or Educalion 
SACS Financial Reporting Software• 2022.2.0 
File: fund•b (Rev 06/06/2022) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Adult Education Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

2021-22 

Resource Codes Obiect Codes Unaudited Actuals 

8919 58 227,66 

58 227,66 

7613 0.00 

7619 66,390 11 

66 390.11 

8971 0.00 

8972 0.00 

8979 0.00 

0,00 

7699 0.00 

0.00 

8980 0.00 

8990 0.00 

0.00 

(8,162.45) 

Page 9 

2022-23 

Budaet 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

6 722.00 

6.722.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(6,722.00) 

46 1 0462 0000000 
Form 11 

Percent 
Difference 

-100.0% 

-100.0% 

0.0% 

-89.9% 

-89.9% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

' 0.0% 

0.0% 

-17.6% 

Prinled: 8/24/2022 11 :21 AM 

                                                                 22 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Descriotion 

A.REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue

3) Other State Revenue

4) Other Local Revenue 

5) TOTAL REVENUES

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999)

1) Instruction 

2) Instruction - Related Services 

3) Pupil Services 

4) Ancillary Services 

5) Community Services 

6) Enterprise 

7) General Administration 

8) Plant Services 

9) Other Outgo 

10) TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

FINANCING SOURCES AND USES IAS - B10\ 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) lnterfund Transfers 

a) Transfers In

b) Transfers Out

2) Other Sources/Uses 

a) Sources 

b) Uses

3) Contributions 

4) TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Soflware - 2022.2,0 
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Adult Education Fund 

Expenditures by Function 

2021-22 
Function Codes Oblect Codes Unaudited Actuals 

8010-8099 0.00 

8100-8299 31 025.00 

8300-8599 276,438.00 

8600-8799 76,461.37 

383 924.37 

1000-1999 90 157.01 

2000-2999 191 965.62 

3000-3999 0.00 

4000-4999 0.00 

5000-5999 0.00 

6000-6999 0.00 

7000-7999 0.00 

8000-8999 23 239.85 

Except 
9000-9999 7600-7699 0.00 

305 362.48 

78 561 89 

8900-8929 58 227.66 

7600-7629 66,390.11 

8930-8979 0.00 

7630-7699 0.00 

8980-8999 0.00 

18 162.45\ 

Page 1 

2022-23 
Budaet 

0.00 

31 025.00 

306,200.00 

0.00 

337 225.00 

65 931.00 

218 036.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46,536.00 

0.00 

330 503.00 

6 722.00 

0.00 

6 722.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(6 722.00\ 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 11 

Percent 
Difference 

0.0% 

0.0% 

10.8% 

-100.0%

-12.2%, 

-26.9% 

13.6% 

0.0% 

0.0%

0.0% 

0.0% 

0 0% 

100.2%

0.0% 

82% 

-91.4% 

-100.0% 

-89.9% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

-17.6%

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :21 AM 

                                                                 23 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Descrlotlon 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 

BALANCE IC + O4l 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance 

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1 a+ F1 b) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 

a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 

Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments (by Resource/Object) 

d) Assigned 

Other Assignments (by Resource/Object) 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassianed/Unaoorooriated Amount 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022 2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Adult Education Fund 

Expenditures by Function 

2021-22 
Function Codes Obiect Codes Unaudited Actuals 

70 399.44 

9791 180 615_ 11 

9793 0.00 

180 615.11 

9795 0.00 

180 615, 11 

251,014.55 

9711 0.00 

9712 0.00 

9713 0.00 

9719 o_oo 

9740 251 014_55 

9750 0.00 

9760 0.00 

9780 0.00 

9789 0.00 

9790 0.00 

Page 2 

2022-23 
BudQet 

o_oo 

251.014.55 

0.00 

251 014.55 

0.00 

251 014.55 

251 014.55 

0.00 

0 00 

0,00 

o_oo 

251 014.55 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 11 

Percent 
Difference 

-100 0% 

39.0% 

0.0% 

39,0% 

0.0% 

39_0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0_0% 

0.0% 

0_0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :21 AM 

                                                                 24 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Resource Descri tion 

6391 Adult Education Program 

Total, Restricted Balance 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 04/17/2019) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Adult Education Fund 

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail 

2021-22 

Unaudited Actuals 

251,014.55 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 11 

2022-23 

Bud et 

251,014.55 

251,014.55 251,014.55 

Page 1 Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :21 AM                                                                  25 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other State Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

61 TOTAL REVENUES 

B. EXPENDITURES 

1) Certificated Salaries 

2) Classified Salaries 

3) Employee Benefits 

4) Books and Supplies 

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6) Capital Outlay 

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 

Costs) 

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 

9l TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 

OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - 891 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) lnterfund Transfers 

a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses 

a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

41 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 0S/0612022) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Forest Reserve Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

2021-22 
Resource Codes Obiect Codes Unaudited Actuals 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6999 

7100-7299, 

7400-7499 

7300-7399 

8900-8929 

7600-7629 

8930-8979 

7630-7699 

8980-8999 

Page 1 

0.00 

334 927.03 

0.00 

0.00 

334 927.03 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

284,687.97 

0.00 

284 687.97 

50 239.06 

0.00 

50,239.06 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

/50 239,06) 

2022-23 
Budnet 

0.00 

308 000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

308 000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

262.000.00 

0,00 

262 000.00 

46 000.00 

0.00 

46,000.00 

o,oo 

.0.00 

0,00 

(46 000,001 

46 1 0462 0000000 
Form 16 

Percent 
Difference 

0.0% 

-8.0%

0.0% 

0.0% 

-8,0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

-8.0% 

0.0%

-8.0% 

-8.4% 

0.0% 

-8.4% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

-8.4% 

Prinled: 8/24/2022 11 :21 AM 

                                                                 26 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Descriotion 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 

BALANCE re + D4l 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1 a+ F1 b) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 

a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 

Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments 

d) Assigned 

Other Assignments 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassianed/Unaooreoriated Amount. 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software• 2022.2 o 
File: fund-b (Rev 06/08/2022) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Forest Reserve Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

2021-22 

Resource Codes Obiect Codes Unaudited Actuals 

0.00 

9791 0,00 

9793 0,00 

0.00 

9795 0,00 

0,00 

0,00 

9711 0.00 

9712 o_oo 

9713 0.00 

9719 0.00 

9740 0.00 

9750 0.00 

9760 0.00 

9780 0,00 

9789 0.00 

9790 0,00 

Page 2 

2022-23 

Budaet 

0.00 

0,00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 16 

Percent 
Difference 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0 0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0,0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0,0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11:21 AM 

                                                                 27 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Ooscrlotlon 

G.ASSETS 

1) Cash

a) in County Treasury

1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 

b) in Banks 

c) in Revolving Cash Account 

d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 

e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 

2) Investments 

3) Accounts Receivable 

4) Due from Granter Government 

5) Due from Other Funds 

6) Stores 

7) Prepaid Expenditures 

8) Other Current Assets 

91 TOTAL ASSETS 

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 

2\ TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

I. LIABILITIES 

1) Accounts Payable 

2) Due to Granter Governments 

3) Due to Other Funds 

4) Current Loans 

5) Unearned Revenue 

6\ TOTAL LIABILITIES 

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 

21 TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 

K. FUND EQUITY 

Ending Fund Balance, June 30 

Imus! aoree with line F21 IG9 + H2l - 116 + J2l 

California Dept of Educalion 
SACS Financial Reporting Software • 2022 2 0 
File: fund-b (Rev 06/08/2022) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Forest Reserve Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

2021-22 

Resource Codes Obleot Codes Unaudited Actuals 

9110 0.00 

9111 0.00 

9120 0,00 

9130 0.00 

9135 0.00 

9140 0,00 

9150 0 00 

9200 0.00 

9290 0.00 

9310 0,00 

9320 0.00 

9330 0.00 

9340 0,00 

0.00 

9490 0.00 

0.00 

9500 0.00 

9590 0.00 

9610 0.00 

9640 

9650 0.00 

0.00 

9690 0,00 

0,00 

0,00 

Page 3 

2022-23 

Budaet 

46 1 0462 0000000 
Form 16 

Percent 
Difference 

Prinled: 8/24/2022 11:21 AM 

                                                                 28 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Descrlotlon 

FEDERAL REVENUE 

Forest Reserve Funds 

Pass-Through Revenues from 

Federal Sources 

TOTAL, FEDERAL RE.VENUE 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

Other Local Revenue 

Interest 

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 

TOTAL.OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

TOTAL REVENUES 

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

Other Transfers Out 

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues 

To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Offices 

ToJPAs 

All Other Transfers 

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 

Unaudited Actuals 
Forest Reserve Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

2021-22 

Resource Codes Obiect Codes Unaudited Actuals 

8260 so 239,06 

8287 284,687.97 

334,927.03 

8660 0,00 

8662 0.00 

0.00 

334 927.03 

7211 284,687.97 

7212 0.00 

7213 0.00 

7281-7283 0,00 

7299 0,00 

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excludlni:i Transfers of lndlrecl Costs) 284,687.97 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers In 

(al TOTAL. INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers Out 

lb\ TOTAL INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software. 2022.2 o 
File: fund-b (Rev 06/08/2022) 

284 687.97 

8919 0.00 

0.00 

7619 50,239.06 

50,239.06 

Page4 

2022-23 

Budaet 

46,000.00 

262 000.00 

308,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0 00 

308 000.00 

262,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

262 000.00 

262 000.00 

0.00 

0,00 

46,000,00 

46,000.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 16 

Percent 
Difference 

-8.4% 

-8.0% 

-8.0% 

0.0% 

0,0% 

0.0% 

-8.0% 

-8 0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0,0% 

-8.0% 

-8.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

-8.4% 

-8.4% 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :21 AM 

                                                                 29 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Descriotion 

A.REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue

3) Other State Revenue

4) Other Local Revenue

5l TOTAL, REVENUES 

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999)

1) Instruction

2) Instruction - Related Services

3) Pupil Services 

4) Ancillary Services 

5) Community Services 

6) Enterprise 

7) General Administration

8) Plant Services 

9) Other Outgo

10l TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

FINANCING SOURCES AND USES IA5 - B10)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) lnterfund Transfers

a) Transfers In

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources

b) Uses

3) Contributions

4) TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Forest Reserve Fund 

Expenditures by Function 

2021-22 
Function Codes Obiect Codes Unaudited Actuals 

8010-8099 0.00 

8100-8299 334,927.03 

8300-8599 0.00 

8600-8799 0.00 

334 927.03 

1000-1999 0.00 

2000-2999 0.00 

3000-3999 0.00 

4000-4999 0.00 

5000-5999 0.00 

6000-6999 0.00 

7000-7999 0.00 

8000-8999 0.00 

Except 
9000-9999 7600-7699 284 687.97 

284 687.97 

50239.06 

8900-8929 0.00 

7600-7629 50 239.06 

8930-8979 0.00 

7630-7699 0.00 

8980-8999 0.00 

(50,239.06) 

Page 1 

2022-23 
Budaet 

0.00 

308,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

308 000.00 

0.00 

0 00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

262,000.00 

262 000.00 

46,000.00 

0.00 

46 000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

/46 000.00) 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 16 

Percent 
Difference 

0.0% 

-8.0%

0.0%

0.0%

-8.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

-8.0%

-8.0% 

-8.4%

0.0% 

-8.4% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0%. 

-8.4% 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :21 AM 

                                                                 30 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Descriotion 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 

BALANCE (C + D4\ 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 -Audited (F1a + F1b) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 

a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 

Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments (by Resource/Object) 

d) Assigned 

Other Assignments (by Resource/Object) 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassioned/Unaoorooriated Amount 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software -2022 2 0 
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Forest Reserve Fund 

Expenditures by Function 

2021-22 

Function Codes Obiect Codes Unaudited Actua.ls 

0,00 

9791 0.00 

9793 0.00 

0.00 

9795 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

9711 0.00 

9712 0.00 

9713 0.00 

9719 0.00 

9740 0.00 

9750 0.00 

9760 0 00 

9780 0.00 

9789 0.00 

9790 0.00 

Page2 

2022-23 

Budaet 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

o.oo

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 16 

Percent 
Difference 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0 0% 

0.0% 

0,0% 

_0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :21 AM 

                                                                 31 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Resource Descri tion 

Total, Restricted Balance 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 04/17/2019) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Forest Reserve Fund 

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail 

2021-22 

Unaudited Actuals 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 16 

2022-23 

Bud et 

0.00 0.00 

Page 1 Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :21 AM                                                                  32 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Descrlotlon 

A.DISTRICT
1. Total District Regular ADA

Includes Opportunity Classes, Home & 

Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation

Education, Special Education NPS/LCI 

and Extended Year, and Community Day

School (includes Necessary Small School

ADA) 

2. Total Basic Aid Choice/Court Ordered
Voluntary Pupll Transfer Regular ADA
Includes Opportunity Classes, Home & 

Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation

Education, Special Education NPS/LCI

and Extended Year, and Community Day

School (ADA not included in Line A1 above)

3. Total Basic Aid Open Enrollment Regular ADA
Includes Opportunity Classes, Home & 

Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation

Education, Special Education NPS/LCI

and Extended Year, and Community Day

School (ADA not included in Line A 1 above)
4. Total, District Regular ADA

(Sum of Lines A1 through A3)
5. District Funded County Program ADA

a. County Community Schools

b. Special Education-Special Day Class

c. Special Education-NPS/LCI

d. Special Education Extended Year

e. Other County Operated Programs:

Opportunity Schools and Full Day

Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary

Schools 

f. County School Tuition Fund

(Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380]
g. Total, District Funded County Program ADA

(Sum of Lines ASa through ASf)
6. TOTAL DISTRICT ADA

(Sum of Line A4 and Line ASg)
7. Adults In Correctional Factlitles
8. Charter School ADA

(Enter Charter School ADA using
Tab C. Charter School ADAl

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: ada (Rev 03/27/2018) 

2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 

2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 

P-2 ADA Annual ADA Funded ADA 

347.95 347.95 347.95 

347.95 347,95 347.95 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.42 0.42 0.42 

14.59 14.59 14.59 

15.01 15.01 15.01 

362.96 362.96 362.96 

Page 1 of 1 

46 10462 0000000 
Form A 

2022-23 Budaet 
Estimated P-2 Estimated Estimated 

ADA Annual ADA Funded ADA 

396.18 396.18 396.18 

396.18 396.18 396_ 18 

2.12 2.12 2.12 

12.27 12.27 12.27 

14.39 14.39 14.39 

410.57 410.57 410.57 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM                                                                  33 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

B. COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
1. County Program Alternative Education 

Grant ADA 
a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils

b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps

c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,

Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)]

d. Total, County Program Alternative Education
ADA (Sum of Lines B1a through B1c)

2. District Funded County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools

b. Special Education-Special Day Class

C. Special Education-NPS/LCI

d. Special Education Extended Year 

e. Other County Operated Programs:

Opportunity Schools and Full Day

Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary

Schools

f. County School Tuition Fund

(Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380]

g. Total, District Funded County Program ADA
(Sum of Lines B2a through B2f) 

3. TOTAL COUNTY OFFICE ADA
(Sum of Lines B1d and B2g) 

4. Adults in Correctional Facilities
5. County Operations Grant ADA
6. Charter School ADA 

(Enter Charter School ADA using
Tab C. Charter Schooi ADAI

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: ada (Rev 03/15/2021) 

2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 

2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 

P-2 ADA Annual ADA Funded ADA 

0.01 0.01 0.01 

0.01 0.01 0.01 

396.18 396.18 396.18 

3.46 3.46 3.46 

12.53 12.53 12.53 

412.17 412.17 412.17 

412.18 412.18 412.18 

15.99 15.99 15.99 

Page 1 of 1 

46 10462 0000000 
Form A 

2022-23 Budaet 
Estimated P-2 Estimated Estimated 

ADA Annual ADA Funded ADA 

0.01 0.01 0.01 

0.01 0.01 0.01 

396.18 396.18 396.18 

3.46 3.46 3.46 

12.53 12.53 12.53 

412.17 412.17 412.17 

412.18 412.18 412.18 

15.99 15.99 15.99 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM 

                                                                 34 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 
C. CHARTER SCHOOL ADA

2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 

2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 

P-2 ADA Annual ADA Funded ADA 

46 10462 0000000 
Form A 

2022-23 Budget 

Estimated P-2 Estimated Estimated 
ADA Annual ADA Funded ADA 

Authorizing LEAs reporting charter school SACS financial data in their Fund 01, 09, or 62 use this worksheet to report ADA for those charter schools. 
Charter schools reoortlna SACS financial data seoaratelv from their authorizino LEAs In Fund 01 or Fund 62 use this work.sheet to reoort their ADA.

FUND 01: Charter School ADA corres1>onding to SACS financial data reported In Fund 01.

1. Total Charter School Regular ADA
2. Charter School County Program Alternative

Education ADA
a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps
c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole.

Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)]
d. Total, Charter School County Program

Alternative Education ADA
(Sum of Lines C2a through C2c) 0.00 0.00 0.00 

3. Charter School Funded County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools

b. Special Education-Special Day Class
c. Special Education-NPS/LCI
d. Special Education Extended Year 

e. Other County Operated Programs: 
Opportunity Schools and Full Day 

Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools

f. Total, Charter School Funded County
Program ADA
(Sum of Lines C3a through C3e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
/Sum of Lines C1 C2d and C3fl 0.00 0.00 0.00

FUND 09 or 62: Charter School ADA corresoondina to SACS flnancial data reoorted In Fund 09 or Fund 62.

5. Total Charter School Regular ADA
6. Charter School County Program Alternative

Education ADA
a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps
c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,

Expelled per EC 4891£(a) or (c) {EC 2574(c)(4)(A)]
d. Total, Charter School County Program

Alternative Education ADA
(Sum of Lines C6a through C6c)

7. Charter School Funded County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools
b. Special Education-Special Day Class
c. Special Education-NPS/LCI

d. Special Education Extended Year
e. Other County Operated Programs:

Opportunity Schools and Full Day 

Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools 

f. Total, Charter School Funded County
Program ADA
(Sum of Lines C7a through C7e)

8. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
(Sum of Lines CS C6d and C7fl

9. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
Reported In Fund 01, 09, or 62
/Sum of Lines C4 and C8l

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: ada (Rev 03/27/2018) 

0.00 0.00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 1 of 1 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

o.oo 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM                                                                  35 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Governmental Activities: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land 

Work in Progress 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

Land Improvements 

Buildings 

Equipment 

Total capita/ assets being depreciated 

Accumulated Depreciation for: 

Land Improvements 

Buildings 

Equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net excluding lease assets 

Lease Assets 

Accumulated amortization for lease assets 

Total lease assets, net 

Governmental activity capital assets, net 

Business-Type Activities: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land 

Work in Progress 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

Land Improvements 

Buildings 

Equipment 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Accumulated Depreciation for: 

Land Improvements 

Buildings 

Equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net excluding lease assets 

Lease Assets 

Accumulated amortization for lease assets 

Total lease assets, net 

Business-tvoe activitv caoital assets. net 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: asset (Rev 01/27/2009) 

Unaudited Actuals 
2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 
Schedule of Capital Assets 

Unaudited Audit 
Balance Adjustments/ 

Julv 1 Restatements 

19,800.00 

19,800.00 0.00 

25,516.00 

921,136.38 

350,736.99 

1.297.389.37 0.00 

(285,057.00) 

/253,982.00) 

(539.039.00) 0.00 

758,350.37 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

778,150.37 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

Page 1 of 1 

Audited 
Balance 

Julv 1 Increases 

19,800.00 

0.00 

19,800.00 0.00 

25 516.00 

921,136.38 

350,736.99 

1,297,389.37 0.00 

0.00 

(285,057.00) 92,165.00 

{253,982.00) 0.00 

(539,039.00) 92,165.00 

758,350.37 92,165.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

778.150.37 92,165.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

Decreases 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

131,594.00 

131.594.00 

131.594.00 

0.00 

131 594.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form ASSET 

Ending Balance 
June 30 

19,800.00 

0.00 

19,800.00 

25,516.00 

921.136.38 

350,736.99 

1.297.389.37 

0.00 

{192.892.00) 

(385.576.00) 

/578.468.00) 

718.921.37 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

738.721.37 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM

                                                                 36 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Unaudited Actuals 
FINANCIAL REPORTS 

2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 
Summary of Unaudited Actual Data Submission 

46 10462 0000000 
Form CA 

Following is a summary of the critical data elements contained in your unaudited actual data. Since these data may have 

fiscal implications for your agency, please verify their accuracy before filing your unaudited actual financial reports. 

l"orm Descriotion 

ESMOE Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) Maintenance of Effort (MOE) Determination 

If MOE Not Met, the 2023-24 apportionment may be reduced by the lesser of the following two percentages: 

MOE Deficiency Percentage - Based on Total Expenditures 

MOE Deficiency Percentage - Based on Expenditures Per ADA 

GANN Adjustments to Appropriations Limit Per Government Code Section 7902.1 

If this amount is not zero, it represents an increase to your Appropriations Limit. The Department of 

Finance must be notified of increases within 45 days of budget adoption. 

Adjusted Appropriations Limit 

Appropriations Subject to Limit 

These amounts represent the board approved Appropriations Limit and Appropriations Subject to 

Limit pursuant to Government Code Section 7907 and EC 1629. 

ICR Preliminary Proposed Indirect Cost Rate 
Fixed-with-carry-forward indirect cost rate for use in 2023-24, subject to COE approval. 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: ca-c (Rev 03/06/2018) Page 1 

Value 

MOE Calculation 
Incomplete 

$0.00 

$232 188.72 

$232 188.72 

10.71% 

,, -·----

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM 
                                                                 37 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Unaudited Actuals 
FINANCIAL REPORTS 

2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 
County Office of Education Certification 

UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT: 

To the Superintendent of Public Instruction: 

2021-22 UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT. This report is hereby prepared and filed by the 
County Superintendent of Schools pursuant to Education Code sections 41010 and 1628. 

Signed: __________ _ 

County Superintendent/Designee 

(Original signature required) 

Date: ______ _ 

For additional information on the unaudited actual reports, please contact: 

For County Office of Education: 

Nona Griesert 

Name 

Director of Business Services/CBC 

Title 

530-993-1660, x-120

Telephone 

ngriesert@spjusd.org 

E-mail Address

California Dept of Education 

46 10462 0000000 
Form CA 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: ca-c (Rev 05/30/2017) Page 1 Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM 

                                                                 38 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Governmental Activities: 

General Obligation Bonds Payable 

State School Building Loans Payable 

Certificates of Participation Payable 

Leases Payable 

Lease Revenue Bonds Payable 

Other General Long-Term Debt 

Net Pension Liability 

Total/Net OPEB Liability 

Compensated Absences Payable 

Governmental activities long-term liabilities 

Business-Type Activities: 

General Obligation Bonds Payable 

State School Building Loans Payable 

Certificates of Participation Payable 

Leases Payable 

Lease Revenue Bonds Payable 

Other General Long-Term Debt 

Net Pension Liability 

Total/Net OPEB Liability 

Compensated Absences Payable 

Business-tvoe activities lono-term liabilities 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: debt (Rev 02/22/2018) 

Unaudited 
Balance 

Julv 1 

103,374.00 

92,485.00 

14,620.93 

210,479.93 

0.00 

Audit 

Unaudited Actuals 
2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 

Schedule of Long-Term Liabilities 

Audited 
Adjustments/ Balance 
Restatements Julv 1 Increases 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

103,374.00 

92,485.00 

14,620.93 2,473.26 

0.00 210 479.93 2,473.26 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 1 of 1 

Ending Balance 
Decreases June 30 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

103,374.00 

92,485.00 

17,094.19 

0.00 212,953.19 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form DEBT 

Amounts Due Within 
One Year 

0.00 

0.00 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM 

                                                                 39 of 79



Unaudited Actuals 
Sierra County Office of Education 2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 
Sierra County Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures 

Funds 01 09 and 62 

Section I - Expenditures Goals Functions Objects 

A Total state, federal, and local expenditures (all resources) All All 1000-7999 

B. Less all federal expenditures not allowed for MOE

(Resources 3000-5999, except 3385) All All 1000-7999 

C. Less state and local expenditures not allowed for MOE:

(All resources, except federal as identified in Line 8)

1. Community Services All 5000-5999 1000-7999 

6000-6999 

Capital Outlay 
All except All except except 6600, 

2. 7100-7199 5000-5999 6910 

5400-5450, 

3. Debt Service All 
5800, 7430-

9100 7439 

4. Other Transfers Out All 9200 7200-7299 

5. lnterfund Transfers Out All 9300 7600-7629 

9100 7699 

6. All Other Financing Uses All 9200 7651 

All except 

7. Nonagency 7100-7199 
5000-5999, 
9000-9999 1000-7999 

8. Tuition (Revenue, in lieu of expenditures, to approximate
costs of services for which tuition is received)

All All 8710 

9. Supplemental expenditures made as a result of a Manually entered. Must not include 
Presidentially declared disaster expenditures in lines B, C1-C8, D1, or 

D2. 

10. Total state and local expenditures not

allowed for MOE calculation

(Sum lines C1 through C9)

1000-7143, 

D. Plus additional MOE expenditures: 7300-7439 

1. Expenditures to cover deficits for food services minus 
(Funds 13 and 61) (If negative, then zero) All All 8000-8699 

2. Expenditures to cover deficits for student body activities
Manually entered. Must not include 

expenditures in lines A or D1. 

E. Total expenditures subject to MOE

(Line A minus lines B and C10, plus lines D1 and D2)

California Dept of Education 

46 10462 0000000 
Form ESMOE 

2021-22 
Exoenditures 

2 164,081.32 

305,461.78 

0.00 

32,649.29 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

121 617.07 

0.00 

154,266.36 

0.00 

1,704,353.18 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page 1 Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM 

                                                                 40 of 79



Unaudited Actuals 
Sierra County Office of Education 2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 
Sierra County Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures 

46 10462 0000000 
Form ESMOE 

Section II - Expenditures Per ADA 

A. Average Daily Attendance
(Form A, Annual ADA column, sum of lines B1d and C9)

B. Expenditures per ADA (Line I.E divided by Line II.A)

Section Ill - MOE Calculation (For data collection only. Final 
determination will be done by COE) 

A. Base expenditures (Preloaded expenditures from prior year official CDE
MOE calculation). (Note: If the prior year MOE was not met, COE has
adjusted the prior year base to 90 percent of the preceding prior year
amount rather than the actual prior year expenditure amount.)

1. Adjustment to base expenditure and expenditure per ADA amounts for
LEAs failing prior year MOE calculation (From Section IV)

2. Total adjusted base expenditure amounts (Line A plus Line A.1)

B. Required effort (Line A.2 times 90%)

C. Current year expenditures (Line I.E and Line I1.B)

D. MOE deficiency amount, if any (Line B minus Line C)

(If negative, then zero)

E. MOE determination

(If one or both of the amounts in line D are zero, the MOE requirement
is met; if both amounts are positive, the MOE requirement is not met. If
either column in Line A.2 or Line C equals zero, the MOE calculation is
incomplete.)

F. MOE deficiency percentage, if MOE not met; otherwise, zero

(Line D divided by Line B)

(Funding under ESSA covered programs in FY 2023-24 may

be reduced bv the lower of the two percentaQes)

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page 2 

2021-22 

Annual ADA/ 
Exps. Per ADA 

0.01 

170,435,318.00 

Total Per ADA 

1,507,332.43 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

1 507,332.43 0.00 

1,356,599.19 0.00 

1,704,353.18 170.435,318.00 

0.00 0.00 

MOE Calculation Incomplete 

0.00% 0.00% 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM 
                                                                 41 of 79



Unaudited Actuals 
Sierra County Office of Education 2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 
Sierra County Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures 

SECTION IV - Detail of Adjustments to Base Expenditures (used in Section Ill, Line A.1} 

Total 
Description of Adjustments Expenditures 

Total adjustments to base expenditures 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) 

0.00 

Page 3 

46 10462 0000000 
Form ESMOE 

Expenditures 
Per ADA 

0.00 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM 
                                                                 42 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

A. PRIOR YEAR DATA 

(2020-21 Actual Appropriations Limit and Gann ADA are 

from county's prior year Gann data reported to the CDE. 
LCFF data are from the 2020 annual LCFF Target Entitlement 
Exhibit.) 

PRIOR YEAR APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 
1. Program Portion of Prior Year Appropriations Limit 

(A3 times [A6 divided by (A6 plus A 7)), not to exceed A6) 
Excess is added to Other Services portion 

2. Other Services Portion of Prior Year Appropriations 

Limit (A3 minus A 1) 
3 TOTAL PRIOR YEAR APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 

(Preload/Line D16, PY column) 
PRIOR YEAR GANN ADA 

4. Program ADA (Preload/Line 83, PY column) 

5, Other ADA (Preload/Line 84, PY column) 

PRIOR YEAR LCFF 
6, LCFF Alternative Education Grant (Preload/Line A28, 

Alternative Education Grant, 2020-21 Annual County LCFF 
Calculation) 

7. LCFF Operations Grant, (Preload/Line A 1, Operations 

Grant, 2020-21 Annual County LCFF Calculation) 

ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR LIMIT AND ADA 

ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR LIMIT 

8. Reorganizations and Other Transfers 
9. Temporary Voter Approved Increases 
10. Less: Lapses of Voter Approved Increases 
11. TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR LIMIT 

(Lines AS plus A9 minus A 1 0) 
12. Adjustments lo Program Portion 

([Lines A 1 divided by A3) times Line A 11) 
13. Adjustments to Other Services Portion 

(Lines A 11 minus A 12) 
ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR ADA 
(Only for reorganizations and other transfers, and only if 
adjustments lo the appropriations limit amounts are entered 
in Line AS or A12 above) 
14 Adjustments to Program ADA 
15 Adjustments to Other ADA 

B. CURRENT YEAR GANN ADA 

CURRENT YEAR PROGRAM ADA 

(2021-22 data should tie to Principal Apportionment 

Software Attendance reports and include ADA for 

charter schools reporting with the COE) 

1. Total County Program ADA (Form A, Line B1d) 
2. Total Charter Schools ADA (Form A, Line C2d plus C6d) 
3. Total Current Year ADA (Lines 81 through B2) 

CURRENT YEAR DISTRICT ADA 

Unaudited Actuals 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 

County Office Appropriations Limit Calculations 

2021-22 
Calculations 

Extracted 

Data Adjustments• 

2020-21 Actual 

0.00 

258,328.82 

258,328 82 

0.01 

409.30 

0,00 

872,758.00 

Adjustments to 2020-21 

o.oo

2021-22 Annual Report 

0.01 

0.00 

0.01 o_oo 

2021-22 P2 Report 

4. Total District Gann ADA (Sum of all District Form GANN, Line 83) 

C. CURRENT YEAR LOCAL PROCEEDS OF TAXES/STATE 
AID RECEIVED 

TAXES AND SUBVENTIONS (Funds 01, 09, and 62) 

1. Homeowners' Exemption (Object 8021)
2, Timber Yield Tax (Object 8022) 
3. Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes (Object 8029) 
4. Secured Roll Taxes (Object 8041) 
5, Unsecured Roll Taxes (Object 8042) 
6. Prior Years' Taxes (Object 8043) 
7, Supplemental Taxes (Object 8044) 
8, Ed. Rev. Augmentation Fund (ERAF) (Object 8045) 
9, Penalties and Int. from Delinquent Taxes (Object 8048) 
10, Receipts from County Bd, of Supervisors (Object 8070) 
11. Other In-Lieu Taxes (Object 8082) 
12. Comm. Redevelopment Funds (Objects 804 7 & 8625) 
13, Parcel Taxes (Object 8621) 
14, Other Non-Ad Valorem Taxes (Object 8622) (Taxes only) 
15, Penalties and Int. from Delinquent Non-LCFF 

Taxes (Object 8629) (Only those for the above taxes) 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Soflware - 2022.2.0 
File: gann-c (Rev 0610212022) 

2021-22 Actual 

560.34 

338.76 

0.00 

76,277.35 

2,196.92 

75.52 

1,389.92 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Page 1 of 3 

Entered Data/ 

Totals 

D.00 

258,328.82 

258,328 82 

0 01 

409 30 

0.00 

872,758.00 

0 00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.01 

0.00 

0.01 

347.95 

560,34 

338,76 

0,00 

76,277.35 

2,196,92 

75,52 

1,389,92 

0,00 

0,00 

0,00 

ODO 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

2022-23 
Calculations 

Extracted 

Data Adjustments• 

2021-22 Actual 

Adjustments to 2021-22 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form GANN 

Entered Data/ 

Totals 

0.00 

232,188.72 

232,188.72 

0.01 

347.95 

0,00 

872 758.0Q 

0.00 

o.oo

0,00 

2022-23 Annual Estimate 

0.01 0 01 

0,00 0.00 

0.01 0.00 0.01 

2022-23 P2 Estimate 

412.18 

2022-23 Bud11et 

601,00 601.00 

0.00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 

65,368.00 65,368.00 

2,200,00 2,200.00 

100,00 100,00 

500,00 500.00 

0,00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0,00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM 

                                                                 43 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

16. Transfers lo Charter Schools 

in Lieu of Property Taxes (Object 8096) 
17. TOTAL TAXES AND SUBVENTIONS 

(Lines C1 through C16) 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUES (Funds 01, 09, and 62) 

18. To General Fund from Bond Interest and Redemption 

Fund (Excess debt service laxes) (Object 8914) 
19. TOTAL LOCAL PROCEEDS OF TAXES 

(Lines C17 plus C18) 

EXCLUDED APPROPRIATIONS 

Unaudited Actuals 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 

County Ofrice Appropriations Limit Calculalions 

2021-22 
Calculations 

Extracted 

Data Adjustments• 

80,838.81 0.00 

80,838.61 0.00 

20a. Medicare (Enter federally mandaled amounts only from objs, 3301 
and 3302; do not Include negolialed amounts) 

20b. Qualified Capital Outlay Projects 

OTHER EXCLUSIONS 

21. Americans with Disabilities Acl 
22. Unreimbursed Court Mandated Desegregation 

Costs 
23. Other Unfunded Court-ordered or Federal Mandates 
24, TOTAL EXCLUSIONS (Lines C20 through C23) 

STATE AID RECEIVED (Funds 01, 09, and 62) 

25. LCFF - CY (objects 8011 and 8012) 
26_ LC FF/Revenue Li mil Stale Aid - Prior Years (Object 8019) 
27. TOTAL STATE AID RECEIVED 

(Line C25 plus C26) 

DATA FOR INTEREST CALCULATION 
28. Total Revenues (Funds 01, 09 & 62, objects 8000-8799) 
29, Total Interest and Return on Investments 

(Funds 01, 09, and 62, objecls 8660 and 8662) 

D. APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT CALCULATIONS 
PRELIMINARY APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 
1, Revised Prior Year Program Limit (Lines A 1 plus A 12) 
2. Inflation Adjuslmenl 
3, Program Population Adjustment (Lines 83 divided 

by [A4 plus A14]) (Round lo four decimal places) 
4. PRELIMINARY PROGRAM LIMIT 

(Lines D1 times D2 limes D3) 
5. Revised Prior Year Other Services Limit 

(Lines A2 plus A13) 
6. lnfiation Adjustment 
7. Other Services Population Adj. (Lines 84 divided 

by (AS plus A15]) (Round lo four decimal places) 
8. PRELIMINARY OTHER SERVICES LIMIT 

(Lines DS limes D6 limes D7) 
9. PRELIMINARY TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 

(lines D4 plus DB) 

APPROPRIATIONS SUBJECT TO THE LIMIT 

10. Local Revenues Excluding lnleresl (Line C19) 
11 Preliminary Stale Aid Calculation 

a. Maximum Slate Aid in Local Limil 

(Lesser of Line C27 or [Lines D9 minus 

D10 plus C24]; if negalive, then zero) 
12, Local Revenues in Proceeds of Taxes 

a. Interest Counting in Local Limit (Lines C29 divided by 

[C28 minus C29] limes [D10 plus D11a]) 
b Total Local Proceeds of Taxes (Lines D10 plus D12a) 

13. Slate Aid in Proceeds of Taxes (lesser of Line D11 a or 

[Lines D9 minus D12b plus C24); if negative, then zero) 
14. Total Appropriations Subject to lhe Limit 

a_ Local Revenues (line D12b) 

b. Slate Subventions (Line D13) 
c. Less: Excluded Appropriations (Line C24) 
d. TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS SUBJECT TO THE LIMIT 

(lines D14a plus D14b minus D14c) 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Soflware - 2022 2.0 
File: gann-c (Rev 06/02/2022) 

1,814,525.00 

0,00 

1,814,525.00 o.oo

3,425,974.94 

38,101.55 

2021-22 Actual 

II 

Page 2 of 3 

Entered Dalal Extracted 

Totals Data 

60,Q38.81 68,769,00 

80,838.81 68,769.00 

$5,354.79 

35,354.79 

1,814,525.00 1,550,431.00 

0,00 o.oo

1,814,525.00 1,550,431.00 

3,425,974.94 3,043,612.00 

38,101.55 30,000.00 

0.00 

1.0573 

1.0000 

0.00 

258,328.82 

1.0573 

0.8501 

232,188.72 

232,188 72 

80,838.81 

186,704.70 

3,008.91 

83,1147.72 

103,695.79 

83,847.72 

183,695.79 

35,35ll.79 

232,188.72 

2022-23 
Calculations 

Adjustments• 

0,00 

0,00 

0,00 

2022-23 Budget 

46 10462 0000000 
Form GANN 

Entered Data/ 

Totals 

68,769.00 

68,769.00 

47,763.00 

47,763.00 

1,550,431.00 

0,00 

1,550,431.00 

3,043,612.00 

30,000.00 

0,00 

1.0755 

1.0000 

0.00 

232,188.72 

1.0755 

1.1846 

295,617.09 

295,817 09 

68,769_00 

274,611.09 

3,420.26 

72,189.28 

271,390.81 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM 

                                                                 44 of 79



Unaudited Actuals 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office Appropriations Limit Calculations 

15. Adjustments to the Limit Per 
Government Code Section 7902.1 
(Line D14d minus D9) 

SUMMARY 
16. Adjusted Appropriations Limit 

(Lines D9 plus D15) 

17. Appropriations Subject to the Limit 
(Line D14d) 

• Please provide below an explanation for each entry in the adjustments column. 

Nona Griesert 

Gann Contact Person 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: gann-c (Rev 06/02/2022) 

2021-22 
Calculations 

Extracted 
I 

Adjustments• 
Entered Data/ 

Data Totals 

0.00 

2021-22 Actual 

232,188.72 

232,188.72 

530-993-1660 x-120 

Conlact Phone Number 

Page 3 of 3 

Extracted 

IData 
s 

2022-23 
Calculations 

Adjustments• I 

2022-23 Budget 

I 

46 1 0462 0000000 
Form GANN 

Entered Data/ 
Totals 

295,817.09 

Printed: 8124/2022 11 :24 AM 

                                                                 45 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Unaudited Actuals 
2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 

Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet 
46 10462 0000000 

Form ICR 

Part I - General Administrative Share of Plant Services Costs 

California's indirect cost plan allows that the general administrative costs in the indirect cost pool may include that portion of plant services 

costs (maintenance and operations costs and facilities rents and leases costs) attributable to the general administrative offices. The 

calculation of the plant services costs attributed to general administration and included in the pool is standardized and automated 

using the percentage of salaries and benefits relating to general administration as proxy for the percentage of square footage 

occupied by general administration. 

A. Salaries and Benefits - Other General Administration and Centralized Data Processing

1. Salaries and benefits paid through payroll (Funds 01, 09, and 62, objects 1000-3999 except 3701-3702)

(Functions 7200-7700, goals 0000 and 9000) 151,369.51 

2. Contracted general administrative positions not paid through payroll

a. Enter the costs, if any, of general administrative positions performing services ON SITE but paid through a

contract, rather than through payroll, in functions 7200-7700, goals 0000 and 9000, Object 5800.

b. If an amount is entered on Line A2a, provide the title, duties, and approximate FTE of each general

administrative position paid through a contract. Retain supporting documentation in case of audit.

B. Salaries and Benefits - All Other Activities

1. Salaries and benefits paid through payroll (Funds 01, 09, and 62, objects 1000-3999 except 3701-3702)

(Functions 1000-6999, 7100-7180, & 8100-8400; Functions 7200-7700, all goals except 0000 & 9000) 1,492,000.62 

C. Percentage of Plant Services Costs Attributable to General Administration

(Line A 1 plus Line A2a, divided by Line B1; zero if negative) (See Part Ill, Lines A5 and A6) 10.15% 

Part II - Adjustments for Employment Separation Costs 

When an employee separates from service, the local educational agency (LEA) may incur costs associated with the separation in addition 

to the employee's regular salary and benefits for the final pay period. These additional costs can be categorized as "normal" or "abnormal 

or mass" separation costs. 

Normal separation costs include items such as pay for accumulated unused leave or routine severance pay authorized by governing board 

policy. Normal separation costs are not allowable as direct costs to federal programs, but are allowable as indirect costs. State programs 

may have similar restrictions. Where federal or state program guidelines required that the LEA charge an employee's normal separation 

costs to an unrestricted resource rather than to the restricted program in which the employee worked, the LEA may identify and enter 

these costs on Line A for inclusion in the indirect cost pool. 

Abnormal or mass separation costs are those costs resulting from actions taken by an LEA to influence employees to terminate their 

employment earlier than they normally would have. Abnormal or mass separation costs include retirement incentives such as a Golden 

Handshake or severance packages negotiated to effect termination. Abnormal or mass separation costs may not be charged to federal 

programs as either direct costs or indirect costs. Where an LEA paid abnormal or mass separation costs on behalf of positions in general 

administrative functions included in the indirect cost pool, the LEA must identify and enter these costs on Line B for exclusion from the pool. 

A. Normal Separation Costs (optional)

Enter any normal separation costs paid on behalf of employees of restricted state or federal programs that

were charged to an unrestricted resource (0000-1999) in funds 01, 09, and 62 with functions 1000-6999 or 8100-8400

rather than to the restricted program. These costs will be moved in Part Ill from base costs to the indirect cost pool.

Retain supporting documentation.

B. Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (required)

Enter any abnormal or mass separation costs paid on behalf of general administrative positions charged to

unrestricted resources (0000-1999) in funds 01, 09, and 62 with functions 7200-7700. These costs will be

moved in Part Ill from the indirect cost pool to base costs. If none, enter zero.

California Dept of Education 

0.00 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: icr (Rev 06/02/2020) Page 1 of 3 Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM 

                                                                 46 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Unaudited Actuals 
2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 

Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet 

Part Ill - Indirect Cost Rate Calculation (Funds 01, 09, and 62, unless indicated otherwise) 

A. Indirect Costs

1. Other General Administration, less portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals

(Functions 7200-7600, objects 1000-5999, minus Line B9)

2. Centralized Data Processing, less portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals

(Function 7700, objects 1000-5999, minus Line B10)
3. External Financial Audit - Single Audit (Function 7190, resources 0000-1999,

goals 0000 and 9000, objects 5000-5999)

4. Staff Relations and Negotiations (Function 7120, resources 0000-1999,
goals 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999)

5. Plant Maintenance and Operations (portion relating to general administrative offices only)

(Functions 8100-8400, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, times Part I, Line C)
6. Facilities Rents and Leases (portion relating to general administrative offices only)

(Function 8700, resources 0000-1999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, times Part I, Line C)
7. Adjustment for Employment Separation Costs

a. Plus: Normal Separation Costs (Part II, Line A)

b. Less: Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (Part II, Line B)
8. Total Indirect Costs (Lines A 1 through A7a, minus Line A7b)
9. Carry-Forward Adjustment (Part IV, Line F) 

10. Total Adjusted Indirect Costs (Line AB plus Line A9)

B. Base Costs

1. Instruction (Functions 1000-1999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100)

2. Instruction-Related Services (Functions 2000-2999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100)

3. Pupil Services (Functions 3000-3999, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 and 5100)

4. Ancillary Services (Functions 4000-4999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100)

5. Community Services (Functions 5000-5999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100)

6. Enterprise (Function 6000, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 and 5100)
7. Board and Superintendent (Functions 7100-7180, objects 1000-5999,

minus Part Ill, Line A4)

8. External Financial Audit - Single Audit and Other (Functions 7190-7191,
objects 5000-5999, minus Part Ill, Line A3)

9. Other General Administration (portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals only)

(Functions 7200-7600, resources 2000-9999, objects 1000-5999; Functions 7200-7600,
resources 0000-1999, all goals except 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999)

10. Centralized Data Processing (portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals only)

(Function 7700, resources 2000-9999, objects 1000-5999; Function 7700, resources 0000-1999, all goals
except 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999)

11. Plant Maintenance and Operations (all except portion relating to general administrative offices)

(Functions 8100-8400, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, minus Part Ill, Line A5)

12. Facilities Rents and Leases (all except portion relating to general administrative offices)

(Function 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, minus Part 111, Line A6)
13. Adjustment for Employment Separation Costs

46 10462 0000000 
Form ICR 

48,296.72 

121,676.64 

0.00 

0.00 

6,535.28 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
176,508.64 

63,697.28 
240,205.92 

743,342.05 

294,038.70 

195,437.52 

24,596.13 

0.00 

0.00 

74,475.81 

18 111.10 

514,871.84 

32,198.56 

57 851.68 

0.00 

a. Less: Normal Separation Costs (Part II, Line A) 0.00 

b. Plus: Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (Part 11, Line B) 0.00 

14. Student Activity (Fund 08, functions 4000-5999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00 

15. Adult Education (Fund 11, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400, and 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 288,650.98 

16. Child Development (Fund 12, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400 & 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 & 5100) ______ 0 _.0_0_

17. Cafeteria (Funds 13 & 61, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400 & 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 & 5100) 0.00 

18. Foundation (Funds 19 & 57, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400 & 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 & 5100) 0.00 

19. Total Base Costs (Lines B1 through B12 and Lines B13b through B18, minus Line B13a) 2,243,574.37 

C. Straight Indirect Cost Percentage Before Carry-Forward Adjustment

(For information only - not for use when claiming/recovering indirect costs)

(Line AB divided by Line B19)

D. Preliminary Proposed Indirect Cost Rate

(For final approved fixed-with-carry-forward rate for use in 2023-24 see www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/ic)

(Line A 10 divided by Line B 19)

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: icr (Rev 06/02/2020) Page 2 of 3 

7.87% 

10.71% 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM 

                                                                 47 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Part IV - Carry-forward Adjustment 

Unaudited Actuals 
2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 

Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet 
46 10462 0000000 

Form ICR 

The carry-forward adjustment is an after-the-fact adjustment for the difference between indirect costs recoverable using the indirect 
cost rate approved for use in a given year, and the actual indirect costs incurred in that year. The carry-forward adjustment eliminates 
the need for LEAs to file amended federal reports when their actual indirect costs vary from the estimated indirect costs on which the 
approved rate was based. 

Where the ratio of indirect costs incurred in the current year is less than the estimated ratio of indirect costs on which the approved rate for 
use in the current year was based, the carry-forward adjustment is limited by using either the approved rate times current year base costs, 
or the highest rate actually used to recover costs from any program times current year base costs, if the highest rate used was less than 
the approved rate. Rates used to recover costs from programs are displayed in Exhibit A. 

A. Indirect costs incurred in the current year (Part Ill, Line AB)

B. Carry-forward adjustment from prior year(s)

1. Carry-forward adjustment from the second prior year 

2. Carry-forward adjustment amount deferred from prior year(s), if any

C. Carry-forward adjustment for under- or over-recovery In the current year

1. Under-recovery: Part Ill, Line AB, plus carry-forward adjustment from prior years, minus (approved indirect
cost rate (3.14%) times Part Ill, Line B19); zero if negative

2. Over-recovery: Part 111, Line A8, plus carry-forward adjustment from prior years, minus the lesser of
(approved indirect cost rate (3.14%) times Part Ill, Line B19) or (the highest rate used to
recover costs from any program (3.14%) times Part Ill, Line B19); zero if positive

D. Preliminary carry-forward adjustment (Line C1 or C2)

E. Optional allocation of negative carry-forward adjustment over more than one year

176,508.64 

(22,636.58) 

(19,726.54) 

63,697.28 

0.00 

63 697.28 

Where a negative carry-forward adjustment causes the proposed approved rate to fall below zero or would reduce the rate at which
the LEA could recover indirect costs to such an extent that it would cause the LEA significant fiscal harm, the LEA may request that
the carry-forward adjustment be allocated over more than one year. Where allocation of a negative carry-forward adjustment over more
than one year does not resolve a negative rate, the CDE will work with the LEA on a case-by-case basis to establish an approved rate.

Option 1. Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part 111, Line D) if entire negative carry-forward
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation: 

Option 2. Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part Ill, Line D) if one-half of negative carry-forward 
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation and the remainder 
is deferred to one or more future years: 

Option 3. Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part Ill, Line D) if one-third of negative carry-forward 
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation and the remainder 
is deferred to one or more future years: 

LEA request for Option 1, Option 2, or Option 3 

F. Carry-forward adjustment used in Part Ill, Line A9 (Line D minus amount deferred if

Option 2 or Option 3 is selected)

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: icr (Rev 06/02/2020) Page 3 of 3 

not applicable 

not applicable 

not applicable 

63,697.28 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM 

                                                                 48 of 79



Unaudited Actuals 
Sierra County Office of Education 2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 
Sierra County Exhibit A: Indirect Cost Rates Charged to Programs 

46 10462 0000000 
Form ICR 

Eligible Expenditures 

Fund Resource 

01 3310 

01 3315 

01 3327 

01 3345 

01 6266 

01 6500 

01 6512 

01 6520 

01 6680 

01 6685 

01 7366 

01 7422 

01 7428 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: icr (Rev 02/10/2020) 

(Objects 1000-5999 
except 4700 & 5100) 

212,126.36 

61,183.42 

4,873.96 

970.00 

2,994.00 

380,717.99 

5,229.92 

7,187.77 

24,251.22 

31,360.49 

58,720.88 

37,920.86 

58,173.36 

Page 1 of 1 

Approved indirect cost rate: 

Highest rate used in any program: 

Indirect Costs Charged 
(Objects 7310 and 7350) 

3,408.00 

614.00 

153.04 

30.00 

94.01 

11,954.00 

164.00 

225.70 

761.49 

984.72 

1,843.84 

1,190.00 

1,826.64 

3.14% 

3.14% 

Rate 
Used 

1.61% 

1.00% 

3.14% 

3.09% 

3.14% 

3.14% 

3.14% 

3.14% 

3.14% 

3.14% 

3.14% 

3.14% 

3.14% 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM 
                                                                 49 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Descriotion 

Unaudited Actuals 
2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 

LOTTERY REPORT 
Revenues, Expenditures and 
Ending Balances - All Funds 

Lottery: 
Unrestricted 

Obiect Codes (Resource 1100\ 

A. AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR THIS FISCAL YEAR

1. Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance 9791-9795 14,957.25 

2. State Lottery Revenue 8560 2,492.00 

3. Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 0.00 

4. Transfers from Funds of
Lapsed/Reorganized Districts 8965 0.00 

5. Contributions from Unrestricted

Resources (Total must be zero) 8980 0.00 

6. Total Available

(Sum Lines A 1 throuah A5) 17,449.25 

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 

2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 

3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 

4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 

5. a. Services and Other Operating
Expenditures (Resource 1100) 5000-5999 0.00 

b. Services and Other Operating 5000-5999, except 
Expenditures (Resource 6300) 5100, 5710, 5800 

C. Duplicating Costs for
Instructional Materials
(Resource 6300) 5100, 5710, 5800 

6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 17 449.25 

7. Tuition 7100-7199 0.00 
8. lnteragency Transfers Out

a. To Other Districts, County
7211,7212,7221, 

Offices, and Charter Schools
7222,7281,7282 0.00 

b. To JPAs and All Others 7213,7223, 
7283,7299 0.00 

9. Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 

10. Debt Service 7400-7499 0.00 

11, All Other Financing Uses 7630-7699 0.00 

12, Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

(Sum Lines 81 throuah B11 ) 17 449,25 

C. ENDING BALANCE
(Must eaual Line A6 minus Line B12) 979Z 0,00 

D. COMMENTS:

Lottery: 
Transferred to Instructional 

Other Resources Materials 
for Expenditure (Resource 63001* 

3,472.92 

1,308.55 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 4,781.47 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 4 781.47 

46 10462 0000000 
Form L 

Totals 

18,430.17 

3,800.55 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

22,230.72 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

17,449.25 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

17,449.25 

4,781.47 

Data from this report will be used to prepare a report to the Legislature as required by Control Section 24.60 of the Budget Act. 

*Pursuant to Government Code Section 8880.4(a)(2)(B) and the definition in Education Code Section 6001 0(h), Resource 6300 funds are to be used for the 

purchase of instructional materials only. Any amounts in the shaded cells of this column should be reviewed for appropriateness.

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: lot (Rev 02/24/2016) Page 1 of 1 Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM 

                                                                 50 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education Sierra County 

A. Amount of Undistributed Expenditures, Funds 01, 09, and 62, Goals 0000 and 9000 (will be allocated based on factors input)
B. Enter Allocation Factor(s) by Goal:(Note: Allocation factors are ooly needed for a column if there are undismliuted expenditures in line A.) 
lostructional Goals Description 

0001 Pre-Kinder<rarten 
1110 Re� Education. K -12 
3100 Alternative Schools 
3300 Ind-ndent Studv Centers 
3400 r>-ftArtunitv Schools 
3500 Countv Community Schools 
3550 Communitv Dav Schools 
3600 Juvenile Courts 
3700 s--ialized Secondarv Pr=m• 
3800 Career Technical Education 
4ll0 Reoular Education. Adult 
4610 Adult Inde,.,,..,dent Studv Centers 
4620 Adult Correctional Education 

,__4630 Adult Career Technical Education 
4760 BiJinonol 
4850 Mi="t Education 
4900 Other Suonlemental Education 

5000-5999 S=rial Education ( allocated to 500 I) 
6000 ROCJP 

Other Goals Description 
7l l0  Nonuencv -Educational 
7150 Nonaoencv - Other 

8100 Communitv Services 
8500 Child Care and Develonment Services 
8600 Countv Services to Districts 

Other Funds Description 
.. Adult Education <Fund 11 l 
.. Child Develovment (Fund 12) 
-- Cafeteria (Funds 13 & 6 I\ 

C. Total Allocation Factors 
California Dept of Education SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 File: pcraf (Rev 05/05/2016) 

I 
I 
l 

I 

I 

Unaudited Actuals 2021-22 County School Service Fund and Charter Schools Funds Program Cost Report Schedule of Aiocatfon Factors (AF) for Support Costs 
---------. ·-----

Instructional Supervision and Admi nistration (Functions 2100-2200) 

l l,923.02 FTE Factor(s) 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
l 

I 
I 

.. 

0.15 

0.15 

- - Tcaclu,r Full-Time .Eau.ivalcnts ----- ------------·· 

Technology and Other Library, Media, I 
Instructional Resources School Administration (Functions 2420-2495) (Function 2700) 

0.00 15.441.52 FTE Facto,:{ s) FTE Factor(s) 
I 

I 

0.25 
' 

o.oo I 0.25 

Page 1 of 1 

I 

I 

I 

I 

Pupil Support Services (Functions 3100-3199 & 3900) 
40.145.52 FTE Factor( s) 

0.25 
0.25 

- -

0.50 

I --------Cbssroom IJnilS--------
Plant Maintenance and Facilities Rents and Operations Leases (Functions 8100-8400) (Function 8700) 

4,094.57 0.00 CU Factor(s) CU Factor( s) 

I 

I 
I 

I 
r I 

I I 
l 

l 
I 

2.047.29 
368.52 . 

I 

1.678.76 

4.094.57 0.00 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

I 
I 

i 
ij 

46 10462 0000000 Form PCRAF 

Punils Trans""rted 
Pupil Transportation (Function 3600) 

0.00 PT Factor(s) 

0.00 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM 
                                                                 51 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Goal Program/ Activity 
Instructional 

Goals 

0001 Pre-Kindergarten 
1110 Regular Education, K -12 
3100 Alternative Schools 
3300 Independent Study Centers 
3400 Opportunitv Schools 
3500 Countv Communitv Schools 
3550 Community Day Schools 
3600 Juvenile Courts 
3700 Specialized Secondarv Programs 
3800 Career Technical Education 
4110 Regular Education, Adult 
4610 Adult Independent Study Centers 
4620 Adult Correctional Education 
4630 Adult Career Technical Education 
4760 Bilingual 
4850 Migrant Education 
4900 Other Supplemental Education 

5000-5999 Special Education 
6000 Regional Occupational Ctr/Prg (ROC/P) 

Other Goals 

7110 Nonagency - Educational 
7150 Nonagency - Other 
8100 Community Services 

8500 Child Care and Development Services 
8600 County Services to Districts 

Other Costs 
-- Food Services 
---- Enterprise 
- Facilities Acquisition & Construction
-- Other Outgo 

Other Adult Education, Child Development, 
Funds Cafeteria, Foundation ([Column 3 + 
-- CAC. line C5l times CAC. line E) 

Indirect Cost Transfers to Other Funds 
(Net of Funds 01, 09, 62, Function 7210, 

-- Object 7350) 

Total County School Service and 
- Charter Schools Funds Exoenditures

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: per (Rev 05/05/2016) 

Unaudited Actuals 
2021-22 

County School SeNice Fund and Charter Schools Funds 
Program Cost Report 

----- Direct Costs ---- Central Admin 
Direct Charged Allocated Subtotal I Costs 
(Schedule DCC) (Schedule AC) (col. 1 +2) col. 3 x Sch CAC line E 

Column l Column2 Column 3 Column 4 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
117,044.67 0.00 117,044.67 20,891.14 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

24,251.22 20,072.76 44,323.98 7,911.32 
747,387.91 34,043.07 781,430.98 139,476.50 
125,320.65 368.52 125,689.17 22 434.08 

121,617.07 0.00 121,617.07 21,707.26 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8.285.05 0.00 8.285.05 1.478.79 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
577,090.32 17.120.28 594,210.60 106,059.81 

I 

0.00 0.00 51.520.90 

0.00 

1.720.996.89 71.604.63 I.792.601.52 371,479.80 

Page 1 

Other Costs 
(Schedule OC) 

Column5 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

Total Costs by 
Program 

(col. 3 + 4 + 5) 
Column 6 

0.00 
137,935.81 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

52.235.30 
920.907.48 
148,123.25 

143.324.33 
0.00 

9,763.84 

0.00 
700,270.41 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

51,520.90 

0.00 

2.164.081.32 

46 1 0462 0000000 
Form PCR 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM 

                                                                 52 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

J 

I 
Instruction 

(Functions 1000-
Goal Tvne of Proo-ram 1999\ 

Instructional 
Goals 

000! IP,e-Kinde=•"eo 0 00 

ll IO Regular Education. K-12 52.785 65 

3100 Alternative Schools 0 00 

3300 llndeoendentSludvCenters 0.00 

3400 I Oooonunitv Schools o oo I 

3500 lcountv Comrnunitv Schools 0 00 

3550 Communitv Dav Schools 0 00 

3600 Juvenile Courts 0. 00 
Specialized Secondary I 3700 Proe:rams 0 00 

3800 !Career Technical Education 0 00 

4110 lR=•lar Education Adult 0.00 
l Adult Independent Study 

4610 ]Centers 0 00 

4620 Adult Correctional Education 0 00 
'Adult Career Technical 

I 4630 lEducation 0 00 

4760 Bilimrual I 0 00 

4850 Merant Education 0 00 

' 4900 Other Sum: lemental Education 0 00 

I 5000-5999 5...,.;a1 Education I 526.525 09 

6000 IROC/P I
125.320.65 

Other Goals 

7110 Nonae:encv - Educational I 41.525. 54 

7150 Nonagency - Other l o oo I 
8100 I Communitv Services 

Child Care and Development 
8500 Services 0.00 

8600 [Countv Services to Districts 

T olll!_ Dired Charged Costs 746.156.93 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: per (Rev 05/05/2016) 

I 
Instructional 

Supervision and 
Administration 

(Functions 2100-
2200) 

000 

0.00 

0 00 

0.00 

0 00 

0 00 

0 00 

0 00 

o oo I 

0.00 

0 00 

0 00 

0 00 

0 00 

0 00 

0 00 

O 00 

79.002.97 

0.00 

0.00 

0 00 

0 00 
-

0.00 

0.00 

79.002 97 

Unaudited Actuals 
2021-22 

County School Service Fund and Charter Schools Funds 
Program Cost Report 

Schedule of Direct Charged Costs (DCC) 

library, Media, I 
Technology and I 

Other Instructional School Pupil Support 
Resources Administration Services Pupil Transportation Ancillary Services Community Services 

(Functions 2420- (Functions 3110- (Functions 4000- (Functions 5000-
2495\ (Function 2700) 3160 and 3900\ !Function 3600) 4999) 5999) 

OJ 
-

0.00 0.00 0 00 0 00. 

o oo I 0.00 63.914 11 I 000 344 91 

0.00 0,00 0 00 0.00 000 

0.00 0 00 0 00 0 00 0.00 

0 00 0 00 o_oo o oo I o.oo 

0. 00 0 ..00 0 00 o oo I 0.00 

QOO 0.00 0 00 o.oo I 0.00 

QOO 0,00 0 00 0 00 0 00 

0 00 0,00 0 00 0 00 0 00 

0.00 0.00 0,00 o oo I 0.00 

0.00 QOO 0,00 0 00 o oo I 

0 00 0.00 0,00 0 00 0 00 

0 00 o.oo I 0 00 0 00 0.00 

0 00 o oo I 0 00 o _oo 0 00 

0.00 o _oo 0..00 I 0 00 0.00 

o.oo I QOO 0 00 0 00 0.00 

0.00 Q00 0.00 000 24.251.22 

l.505.61 12.175.47 80.977.14 2.115 70 0.00 

000 0 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 

0 00 0.00 0.00 o_ooJ 
I 0 00 

0 00 0.00 8.285.05 0.00 I 0 00 

0 00 0 00 0.00 0.00 I 0.00 

0.00 179.787 71 o.oo I 0 00 

1.505 61 191,963 18 _ __ 1_53.176 30 I 2.115.70 24.596_13 o,oo I 

Page 1 

I 

General Plant Maintenance 
Administration and Operations 

(Functions 7000- (Functions 8 l 00-
1999. ex«:nt 7210�• 84001 

o oo I 

000 
I 

0 00 

0 00 

0 00 

o_oo 

000 

0 00 

0 00 
. 

QOO 

000 

0.00 

0 00 

o _oo 

0 00 

0 00 I 

0 00 

45.085-93 

0.00 

I 

70.004 93 10.086 60 

0 00 o oo I 

0.00 o oo I 

0 00 o oo I 

392.182 75 5.119 86 

462.187 68 60.292 39 
• Fu.nciions 7100-7199 for goals 8100 and 8500 

46 10462 0000000 

Form PCR 

Facilities Rents and I 
leases 

(Function 87001 Total 

I 
0 00 0 00 I 

000 117.044,67 

I 
0.00 0.00 

o_oo 0.00 

QJ)() 0 00 

0 00 0.00 

0 00 o_oo I 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0. 00 0.00 

0 00 0.00 

o oo I 0.00 

0.00 0 00 

0 00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0 00 24 251.22 

0.00 747.387 91 

o.oo I 125,320 65
1 

I

o oo I 121,617 07 

o oo I 0 00 

0 00 8.285 05 

0.00 0 00 

0 00 577.090 32 

0.00 1.720.996.89 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM 

                                                                 53 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Unaudited Actuals 
2021-22 

County School Service Fund and Charter Schools Funds 
Program Cost Report 

Schedule of Allocated Support Costs (AC) 

Allocated Suooort Costs (Based on factors input on Form PCRAF) 

Goal 

Instructional Goals 

0001 

1110 

3100 

3300 

3400 

3500 

3550 

3600 

3700 

3800 

4110 

4610 

4620 

4630 

4760 

4850 

4900 

5000-5999 

6000 

Other Goals 

7110 

7150 

8100 

8500 

8600 
Other Funds 

- -

- -

- -

Tvpe of Program 

Pre-Kindergarten 

Regular Education, K-12 

Alternative Schools 

Independent Study Centers 

Opportunity Schools 
County Community Schools 

Community Dav Schools 

Juvenile Courts 

Specialized Secondarv Programs 

Career Technical Education 

Regular Education, Adult 

Adult Independent Study Centers 

Adult Correctional Education 

Adult Career Technical Education 

Bilingual 

Migrant Education 

Other Supplemental Education 

Special Education (allocated to 5001) 

ROC/P 

Nonagencv - Educational 

Nonagencv - Other 

Community Services 

Child Care and Development Svcs. 

County Services to Districts 

Adult Education (Fund 11) 

Child Development (Fund 12) 

Cafeteria (Funds 13 and 61) 

Total Allocated Suooort Costs 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: per (Rev 05/05/2016) 

Full-Time Equivalents Classroom Units Pupils Transported 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

20,072.76 0.00 0.00 

31,995.78 2,047.29 0.00 

0.00 368.52 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

15,441.52 1,678.76 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 

67.510.06 4,094.57 0.00 

Page 1 

Total 

46 10462 0000000 
Form PCR 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

20,072.76 

34,043.07 

368.52 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

17,120.28 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

71,604.63 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM 

                                                                 54 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Unaudited Actuals 
2021-22 

Program Cost Report 
Schedule of Central Administration Costs (CAC) 

A. Central Administration Costs in County School Service and Charter Schools Funds

Board and Superintendent (Funds 01, 09, and 62, Functions 7100-7180, Goals 0000-6999 and
1 9000, Objects 1000-7999)

External Financial Audits (Funds 01, 09, and 62, Functions 7190-7191, Goals 0000-6999 and
2 9000, Objects 1000-7999)

Other General Administration (Funds 01, 09, and 62, Functions 7200-7600 except 7210, Goal 
3 0000, Objects 1000-7999) 

Centralized Data Processing (Funds 01, 09, and 62, Function 7700, Goal 0000, Objects 1000-
4 7999) 

5 Total Central Administration Costs in County School Service and Charter Schools Funds 

B. Direct Charged and Allocated Costs in County School Service and Charter Schools Funds

1 Total Direct Charged Costs (from Form PCR, Column 1, Total)

2 Total Allocated Costs (from Form PCR, Column 2, Total)

3 Total Direct Charged and Allocated Costs in County School Service and Charter Schools Funds 

C. Direct Charged Costs in Other Funds

1 Adult Education (Fund 11, Objects 1000-5999, except 5100)

2 Child Development (Fund 12, Objects 1000-5999, except 5100) 

3 Cafeteria (Funds 13 & 61, Objects 1000-5999� except 5100) 

4 Foundation (Funds 19 & 57, Objects 1000-5999, except 5100) 

5 Total Direct Charged Costs in Other Funds 

D. Total Direct Char2ed and Allocated Costs (B3 + CS)

E. Ratio of Central Administration Costs to Direct Char!!ed and Allocated Costs (AS/D)

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: per (Rev 05/24/2011) Page 1 

46 10462 0000000 
Form PCR 

74,475.81 

18,111.10 

133,179.44 

145.713.45 

371,479.80 

1,720,996.89 

71,604.63 

1,792,601.52 

288,650.98 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

288,650.98 

2,081,252.50 

17.85% 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM 
                                                                 55 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Type of Activity 

Food Services 
(Objects 1000-5999, 6400-6910) 

Enterprise 
(Objects 1000-5999, 6400-6910) 

Facilities Acquisition & Construction 
(Obiects 1000-6600) 

Other Outgo 
(Objects 1000-7999) 

Total Other Costs 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: per (Rev 04/12/2022) 

Unaudited Actuals 
2021-22 

County School Service Fund and Charter Schools Funds 
Program Cost Report 

Schedule of Other Costs (QC) 

Facilities Acquisition & 
Food Services Enterprise Construction 

(Function 3700) (Function 6000) (Function 8500) 

0.00 
� 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 1 

Other Outgo 

(Functions 9000-9999) 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form PCR 

Total 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :24 AM 

                                                                 56 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Unaudited Actuals 
County School Service Fund 

Special Education Revenue Allocations 
(Optional) 

Description 2021-22 Actual 

SELPA Name: Sierra Countv (AW\ 

Date allocation plan aooroved bv SELPA oovernance: I 
I. TOTAL SELPA REVENUES

A. Base Plus Taxes and Excess ERAF
1 . Base Apportionment

2. Local Special Education Property Taxes

3. Applicable Excess ERAF
4. Total Base Apportionment, Taxes, and Excess ERAF 

B. Program Specialisl/Regionalized Services Apportionment
C. Program Specialisl/Regionalized Services for NSS Apportionment

D. Low Incidence Apportionment

E. Out of Home Care Apportionment
F. Extraordinary Cost Pool for NPS/LCI and NSS Mental Health

Services Apportionment

G. Adjustment for NSS with Declining Enrollment

Grand Total Apportionment, Taxes and Excess ERAF
H. (Sum lines A.4 through G)

I. Mental Health Apportionment

J. Federal IDEA Local Assistance Grants - Preschool
K. Federal IDEA - Section 619 Preschool

L. Other Federal Discretionary Grants

M. Other Adjustments

N. Total SELPA Revenues (Sum lines H throuah Ml

II. ALLOCATION TO SELPA MEMBERS

Sierra County Office of Education (AW00)

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified (AW01) 
Total Allocations (Sum all lines in Section II) (Amount must 
equal Line I.N ) 

Preparer 
Name: 

Title: 

Phone: 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: sea (Rev02/18/2021) Page 1 of 1 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

2022-23 Budaet 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 1 0462 0000000 
Form SEA 

% Diff. 

0.00% 
0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 
0.00% 

0.00% 
0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :28 AM 

                                                                 57 of 79



Unaudited Actuals 
2021-22 Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County School Service Fund 
Special Education Revenue Allocations 

Setup 

Current LEA: 46-10462-0000000 Sierra Countv Office of Education
(Enter a SELPA ID 
from the list below 
then save and close) 

Selected SELPA: AW 

POTENTIAL SELPAS FOR THIS LEA DATE APPROVED 
ID SELPA-TITLE (from Form SEA) 
AW ] Sierra County l 

California Dept of Education 

46 10462 0000000 
Form SEAS 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: seas (Rev 03/01/2019) Page 1 of 1 Printed: 8/24/2022 11 :28 AM 

                                                                 58 of 79



Sierra County Office of Educalion 
Sierra County 

Descrlctlon 
01 COUNTY SCHOOL SERVICE fUNO 

Exponditun!!II Ooln_il 
Olh•r sourcos/Usos De1on 
Fund Reconclllallon 

00 STUDENT ACTMTY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
E>pondllu«> Dotall 
Oltlor Sour'ce9/Us-e.s Dctl.oll 
F�nd Recpocif1a�oo 

09 CHARTER SCHOOLS SPECIAL REVENUE EUND• 
Expelldltun, Dolail 
Other Souroes/U50-5 Dlllail 
Fund Roconetllation 

10 SPECIAL EDIJCATION PASS-THflOUGH FUND 
E!<p<lndhuro D.elall 
Other SourcesJU••• Datall 
Fund RoconclUetlon 

11 AOUL T EOUCA TION FUND 
Exp6f1diluro Doiall 
Olhe< Sources/Uses Delail 
Fund Reocno.lfilfian 

12 CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND 
Expof)dllure D<itail 
Other Souroes/U,es Ootofl 
Fund RoconolllaUon 

13 CAFETERIA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Expo.nddure Denoll 
Olhar Sou,ws/Uses Oetnll 
Fund Rooonollalion 

14 DEFERRED MAINTENANCE FUND 
Expenditure Detail 
Other Soun:eS/Uses Dain! 
Furld Reconcillallon 

15 PUPIL T�ANSPORTATION EQUIP�ENT FUND 
EIIJ)endilur<rDetnll 
ou1er Sou,c:o,-'U.s:es- DetaJJ 

Fund ReconoiITatlon 
16 FOREST RESERVE FUNO 

Expondlture Dotatl 
Oltler Sour<:es/Uses D0tnll 
Fl.ind ReconcillEatlon 

17 $_PEC1AL RESERVE FUrffl FOROntER lllAN C:AMAL OUn.A't' 

Expenditure Oeloll 
Olhor Souroes/U_sos Dolall 
Fund RoconcUlal on 

18 SCHOOL BUS EMISSIONS REDUCTION FUND 
l:xpendlture Cola� 
Other S<iuroes/U••• Detail 
Furi<I Roconqqallon 

'19 FOUNDATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Expcncfilure Dololl 
Olhor Sou"""'/Usos Datail 
Fund R&concllieUco 

20 SPGCIAI. ReSEFM F\J"O FOR rostEMPlOYMENTBElfEFITS 

Exp8ndUurn Delalt 
Olhor SotJ1'CeslUsaa Delail 
Fund Reconcnta\lon 

2.1 BUILDING FUND 
Expendltun, Detail 
Other SourcBSJUses Oolall 
Fund Rocon<>lla\loo 

ZS CAPITAL FACILITIES F,UND 
Exponditure Oe:lail 
Other Sourcos/Uses Dolnll 
Fond Reeonciliation 

30 6T'A TE SCHQQL BUILDING LEASE/PURCHASE FUND 
Expondllun, Oeloil 
Olhor SourculUse, D<iiall 
Fimd Reoom::mntion 

35 COUNTY SCHOOL FACILITIES FUND 
Expenditure Oeta>I 
Olher Soum03IU••• Detail 
fund Reconclllallon 

AC SPECIAL ASSERVE FUND FOIi CAPII �L OUfl.AY PROJECTS 

Expendituro Detail 
Olhor Sources/Uoes Doloil 
Fund RecooaliaUcn 

53 TAX OVE�RIDE FUNO 
Expendlture DetaJI 
Other Sourcos/Uses Delell 
Fund R�conciliotlon 

56 OEST SERVICE FUNO 
Expendllurn Oelall 
Other Sou,ces/Uses Detail 
fund ReconciJiatTon 

'SI FOUNDATION PERMANENT FUND 
Expenditure Oetan 
Other Souir.11s/Uses l)oloil 
Fund R:ec.oncllli1!Uon 

California Dept of Educalion 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022,2 0 
File: siaa (Rev 04/06/2020) 

1, 

Direct Costs - lnterfund 

Unaudited Actuals 
2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 

SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES 
FOR ALL FUNDS 

Indirect Costs - lnterfund 
Tranfl'ors In Transfers Out Transfers In Transfers Out 

5750 5750 7350 7350 

0.00 0 00 0 00 01)() 

0,00 0,00 OJJO 0,00 

OJJO 0,00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0 00 0.00 0,00 

0.00 0,00 0 00 0.00 

0 00 0.00 0,00 0,00 

0 00 0.00 

o.oo 0.00 

II 

11 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0 00 o _oo 0 00 

0 00 0.00 

0.00 0 00 

0 00 0 00 

0.00 o _oo 

0.00 0 00 

0 00 0..00 0.00 0 00 

Page 1 of 2 

lnterfund lnterfund 
Transfers In Transfers Out 

8900-8929 7600-7629 

58.401 51 0.00 

o _oo 0.00 

0 00 o _oo

58227.66 66 390.11 

0,00 0.00 

0.00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 

OJJO 0 00 

o _oo 50 239..06 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0,00 

0.00 

0.00 o.oo 

0.00 0,00 

0.00 o _oo 

0.00 0.00 

o _oo o.oo 

0.00 0 .00 

0,00 0.00 

0 00 0 00 

0.00 

Due From 
Other Funds 

9310 

o_oo 

0.00 

0.00 

o _oo

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

0 00 

0..00 

0,00 

0,00 

o.oo 

0.00 

0.00 

0 00 

0 00 

0.00 

0 00 

0 00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form SIAA 

Due To 
Other Funds 

9610 

0 00 

0.00 

0 00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

o.oo 

0.00 

0 00 

0,00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

0 00 

0.00 

0 00 

o.oo 

0.00 

0 00 

0 00 

0 00 

0.00 

Printed: 8/2412022 11 :28 AM 

                                                                 59 of 79



Sierra Counly Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Oescriotlon 

61 CAFETERIA ENTERPRISE FOND 
Expenditure Detail 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 
Fund Reconciliation 

62 CHARTER SCHOOLS ENTERPRISE FUND 
Expenditure Detail 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 
Fund Reconcillalion 

63 OTHER ENTERPRISE FUND 
Expendilure Oelail 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 
Fund Reconciliation 

66 WAREHOUSE REVOLVING FUND 
Expenditure Detail 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 
Fund Reconciliation 

67 SELF-INSURANCE FUND 
Expenditure Detail 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 
Fund Reconciliation 

71 RETIREE BENEFIT FUND 
Expenditure Detail 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 
Fund Reconciliation 

73 FOUNDATION PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUND 
Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 
Fund Reconciliation 

76 WARRANT/PASS-THROUGH FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 
Fund Reconciliation 

95 STUDENT BODY FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 
Fund Reconcillalion 

TOTALS 

California Oepl or Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022,2.0 
File: siaa (Rev 04/06/2020) 

Direct Costs - lnterfund 

Unaudited Actuals 
2021-22 Unaudited Actuals 

SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES 
FOR ALL FUNDS 

Indirect Costs • lnterfund 
Transfers In Transfers Out Transfers In Transfers Out 

5750 5750 7350 7350 

0.00 0 00 0 00 0.00 

o,oo 0.00 0 .00 0 00 

0.00 0.00 

0 00 o oo 

0.00 o.oo

0.00 0.00 

1, 

0.00 0.00 0.00 01'0 

Page 2 or 2 

lnterfund lnterfund 
Transfers In Transfers Out 

8900-8929 7800-7629 

0.00 0 00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0 00 

0 00 o oo 

0.00 0.00 

o oo 

0.00 

116 629.17 116629.17 

Due From 
Other Funds 

9310 

0.00 

0.00 

0 00 

0.00 

0.00 

0 .00 

0.00 

0 00 

0.00 
0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form SIAA 

Due To 
Other Funds 

9810 

0 .00 

0 00 

0 00 

000 

0.00 

0 00 

0 00 

0.00 

0 00 
0.00 

Prinled: 8/24/2022 11 :28 AM 

                                                                 60 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Object Code Description 

UNDUPLICATED PUPIL COUNT 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-9999) 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6000-6999 Capital Outlay (except Object 6600 & Object 6910) 

7130 State Special Schools 

7430-7439 Debt Service 

Total Direct Costs 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 

PCRA Program Cost Report Allocations 

Total Indirect Costs and PCR Allocations 

TOTAL COSTS 

Special 
Education, 

Unspecified 
!Goal 50011 

32 109.96 

2.634.00 

16 181.32 

2.410.68 

72,900.12 

5.797.60 

0.00 

0.00 

132.033.68 

12,343.70 

0,00 

34,043.12 

46,386.82 

178.420.50 
FEDERAL EXPENDITURES (Funds 01, 09, and 62; resources 3000-5999, except 3385) 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 
2000-2999 Classified Salaries 
3000-3999 Employee Benefits 
4000-4999 Books and Supplies 
5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6000-6999 Caprtal Outlay (except Object 6600 & Object 6910) 
7130 State Special Schools 

7430-7439 Debt Service 
Total Direct Costs 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 
7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 

Total Indirect Costs 
TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 

8980 Less: Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to Federal 
Resources (Resources 3310-3400, except 3385, all goals; 
resources 3000-3178 & 3410-5810, goals 5000-5999) 

TOTAL COSTS 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: sema (Rev 03/24/2021) 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

351.47 
9,000.00 I 

0.00 
o.oo I
0.00 

9,351.47 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

9,351.47 

Unaudited Actuals 
Special Education Maintenance of Effort 

2021-22 Actual vs. Actual Comparison Year 
2021-22 Expenclltures oy LEA (LE-CY) 

Regionalized 
Regionalized Program Special 

Services Specialist Education, Infants 
(Goal 50501 !Goal 50601 !Goal 57101 

0,00 51.158.90 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0,00 

0.00 26.490.61 0.00 

0.00 0 00 0.00 

0.00 551.64 0.00 

0.00 0 00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 78,201.15 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 78,201.15 0.00 

0.00 51,158.90 0.00 
0.00 0,00 0.00 
0.00 19,829.61 0.00 
0.00 0,00 0.00 
0.00 551.64 0.00 
0,00 0 .00 0.00 
0.00 0 00  0.00 
0.00 0.00 o.oo I
0.00 71.540.15 0.00 

0.00 0.00 o_oo 

0.00 0.00 0,00 
0.00 0,00 0,00 
0.00 71,540.15 0.00 

Page 1 of 2 

Special 
Education, 
Preschool Spec. Education, 
Students Ages 5-22 

!Goal 5730) (Goal 5760) 

39 497.52 116 879-37 

7,268.82 121 607.82 

23 619.37 145 970.07 

26.51 5 770.32 

1.425.22 75,088.06 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

71.837.44 465.315.64 

644.00 3,561.04 

0.00 0.00 

644.00 3 561.04 

72.481.44 468,876.68 

39 497 52 96,505.48 
3,634.45 3,605,80 

18 051.45 45.348.89 
26.51 3 499.67 

970,00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0,00 0,00 

62.179.93 148,959.84 

644.00 3,561.04 
0.00 0.00 

644.00 3 561.04 
62,823.93 152.,520.88 

Adjustments• 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

o.oo I

0.00 
0,00 

Total 

58 

239,645.75 

131,510.64 

212,261.37 

8,207.51 

149,965.04 

5,797.60 

0,00 

0.00 

747,387.91 

16,548,74 

0.00 

34,043.12 

50,591.86 

797,979.77 

187,161.90 
7 240.25 

83.229.95 
3,877.65 

10,521.64 
0.00 
o.oo

0.00 
292,031,39 

4,205.04 
0.00 

4,205.04 
296.236.43 

97.457.78 
198,778.65 

46 10462 0000000 
ReportSEMA 

Printed: 8/24/2022 2:52 PM 
                                                                 61 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Obiect Code Description 

Special 
Education, 

Unspecified 
(Goal 5001) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Special Education Maintenance of Effort 

2021-22 Actual vs. Actual Comparison Year 
2021-22 Expenditures by LEA (LE-CY) 

Regionalized 
Regionalized Program Special 

Services Specialist Education, Infants 
(Goal 5050) (Goal 50601 (Goal 5710) 

STATE AND LOCAL EXPENDITURES (Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-2999, 3385, & 6000-9999) 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 32.109.96 

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 2,634.00 

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 16,181.32 

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 2,059.21 

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 63.900.12 

6000-6999 Capital Outlay (except Object 6600 & Object 6910) 5,797.60 

7130 State Special Schools 0.00 

7430-7439 Debt Service 0.00 

Total Direct Costs 122 682.21 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 12,343.70 

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs• lnterfund 0.00 

PCRA Program Cost Report Allocations 34,043.12 

Total Indirect Costs and PCR Allocations 46386.82 

TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 169,069.03 

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to Federal 
Resources (from Federal Expenditures section) 

TOTAL COSTS 

LOCAL EXPENDITURES (Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-1999 & 8000-9999) 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6000-6999 Capital Outlay ( except Object 6600 & Object 6910) 

7130 State Special Schools 

7430-7439 Debt Service 

Total Direct Costs 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 

Total Indirect Costs 

TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to Federal 
Resources (from Federal Expenditures section) 

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to State 
Resources (Resources 3385. 6500, 6510, & 7240, all 
goals; resources 2000-2999 & 6010-7810, except 6500, 
6510, & 7240, goals 5000-5999) 

TOTAL COSTS 

• Attach an additional sheet with explanations of any amounts 

in the Adjustments column. 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software· 2022.2.0 
File: sema (Rev 03/24/2021) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1,154 14 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1 154.14 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

1,154.14 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 6,661.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0,00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 6,661.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0,00 

0.00 6,661.00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0,00 0.00 0.00 

0,00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 o.oo I 0,00 

0,00 0.00 a.co

0.00 o.oo I 0.00 

Page 2 of 2 

Special 
Education, 
Preschool Spec. Education, 
Students Ages 5-22 

(Goal 5730) (Goal 5760) 

0.00 20,373.89 

3634,37 118,002.02 

5,567.92 100,621.18 

0.00 2,270.65 

455.22 75,088.06 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

9,657.51 316,355.80 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

9 657.51 316,355.80 

0.00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 15.994.42 

0.00 0.00 

0,00 Q.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 15,994.42 

0.00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0,00 

0,00 15,994.42 

Adiustments• 

I 

0.00 

I 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Total 

52.483.85 

124.270.39 

129,031.42 

4 329.86 

139,443.40 

5,797.60 

0.00 

0,00 

455,356.52 

12,343.70 

0.00 

34 043.12 

46.386.82 

501 743.34 

97,457.78 

599 201.12 

0.00 

0.00 

15,994.42 

1,154.14 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0 00 

17 148.56 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

17,148 56 

97.457.78 

0.00 

114,606.34 

46 10462 0000000 
Report SEMA 

Printed: 8/24/2022 2:52 PM 
                                                                 62 of 79



Unaudited Actuals 
Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Special Education Maintenance of Effort 
2021-22 Actual vs. Actual Comparison Year 

2020-21 Expenditures by LEA (LE-PY) 

2020-21 Expenditures 
1. Enter Total Costs amounts from the 2020-21 Report SEMA, 2020-21 Expenditures by

LEA (LE-CY) worksheet, Total Column, for the State and Local Expenditures section
and the Local Expenditures section

2. Enter audit adjustments of 2020-21 special education expenditures from 
SACS2022ALL data, not included in Line 1 (explain below)
(Funds 01, 09, and 62; resources 0000-2999 & 6000-9999; Object 9793)

3. Enter restatements of 2021-22 special education beginning fund balances from
SACS2022ALL data, not included in Line 1 (explain below)
(Funds 01, 09, and 62; resources 0000-2999 & 6000-9999; Object 9795)

4. Enter any other adjustments, not included in Line 1 (explain below)

5. 2020-21 Expenditures, Adjusted for 2021-22 MOE Calculation

(Sum lines 1 throuoh 4)

C. Unduplicated Pupil Count

1 . . Enter the unduplicated pupil count reported in 2020-21 Report SEMA,

2020-21 Expenditures by LEA (LE-CY) worksheet 

2. Enter any adjustments not included in Line C1 (explain below)
N/A

3. 2020-21 Unduplicated Pupil Count, Adjusted for 2021-22 MOE Calculation

(Line C1 plus Line C2)

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: sema (Rev 04/14/2010) Page 1 of 1 

A. State and Local

633,873.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

633,873.00 

66.00 

66.00 

46 1 0462 0000000 
Report SEMA 

B. Local Only

109 171.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

109,171.00 

Printed: 8/24/2022 2:52 PM                                                                  63 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

SELPA: Sierra County (AW) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Special Education Maintenance of Effort 

2021-22 Actual vs. Actual Comparison Year 
LEA Maintenance of Effort Calculation (LMC-A) 

46 10462 0000000 
Report SEMA 

This form is used to check maintenance of effort (MOE) for an LEA, whether the LEA is a member of a SELPA or is a single-LEA SELPA. If a 
member of a SELPA, submit this form together with the 2021-22 Expenditures by LEA (LE-CY) and the 2020-21 Expenditures by LEA (LE-PY) to 
the SELPA AU. If a single-LEA SELPA, submit the forms to the COE. 

Per the federal Subsequent Years Rule, in order to determine the required level of effort, the LEA must look back to the last fiscal year in which the 
LEA maintained effort using the same method by which lt is currently establishing the compliance standard. To meet the requirement of the 
Subsequent Years Rule, the LMC-A worksheet has been revised to make changes lo sections 3.A. 1, 3.A.2, 3.8.1, and 3.8.2. The revised sections 
allow Lile LEA to compare the 2021-22 expenditures to tt,e most recent fiscal year the LEA met MOE using that method, Which is the comparison 
year. To ensure the LEA is comparing 2021-22 expenditures lo the appropriate comparison year, the LEA is required to complete the Subsequent 
Years Tracking (SYT) worksheet with their LMC-A worksheet. The SYT worksheet tracks the result for each of the four methods back to FY 2011-
12, which is the baseline year for LEA MOE calculations established by the Office of Special Education Programs. The SYT worksheet is available 
at: http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/se/as/documents/subseqyrtrckwrksht.xls. 

There are four methods that the LEA can use to demonstrate the compliance standard. They are (1) combined state and local expenditures; (2) 
combined state and local expenditures on a per capita basis; (3) local expenditures only; and (4) local expenditures only on a per capita basis. 

The LEA is only required to pass one of the tests to meet the MOE requirement. However, the LEA is required to show results for all four methods. 
These results are necessary both for historical purposes and for the possibility that the LEA may want, or need, to switch methods in future years. 

SECTION 1 Exempt Reduction Under 34 CFR Section 300.204 

If your LEA determines that a reduction in expenditures occurred as a result of one or more of the following conditions, you may 
calculate a reduction to the required MOE standard. Reductions may apply to combined stale and local MOE standard, local only 
MOE standard, or both. If the LEA meets one of the conditions below, the LEA must complete and include the IDEA MOE 
Exemption Worksheet available at: http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/se/as/documents/leamoeexempwrksht.xls 

1. Voluntary departure, by retirement or otherwise, or departure for just cause, of special education or
related services personnel.

2. A decrease in the enrollment of children with disabilities.

3. The termination of the obligation of the agency to provide a program of special education to a particular
child with a disability that is an exceptionally costly program, as determined by the SEA, because the child:

a. Has left the jurisdiction of the agency;
b. Has reached the age at which the obligation of the agency

to provide free appropriate public education (FAPE) to 
the child has terminated; or 

c. No longer needs the program of special education.

4. The termination of costly expenditures for long-term purchases, such as the acquisition of
equipment or the construction of school facilities.

5. The assumption of cost by the high cost fund operated by the SEA under 34 CFR Sec. 300.704(c).

Provide the condition number, if any, to be used in the calculation below: 

Marlene Mongolo, SELPA Director, Retired in 16/17 - Salary and Benefits 

Total exempt reductions 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: sema (Rev 03/07/2022) Page 1 of 4 

State and Local 

85,515.26 

85 515.26 

Local Only 

0.00 

Printed: 8/24/2022 2:52 PM                                                                  64 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

SELPA: Sierra County (AW) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Special Education Maintenance of Effort 

2021-22 Actual vs. Actual Comparison Year 
LEA Maintenance of Effort Calculation (LMC-A) 

SECTION 2 Reduction to MOE Requirement Under IDEA, Section 613 (a)(2)(C) (34 CFR Sec. 300.205) 

IMPORTANT NOTE: Only LEAs that have a "meets requirement" compliance determination and that are not found 
significantly disproportionate for the current year are eligible to use this option to reduce their MOE requirement. 

Up to 50% of the increase in IDEA Part B Section 611 funding in current year compared with prior year may be used 
to reduce the required level of state and local expenditures. This option is available only if the LEA used or will use 
the freed up funds for activities authorized under the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) of 1965. Also, the 
amount of Part B funds used for early intervening services (34 CFR 300.226(a)) will count toward the maximum amount 
by which the LEA may reduce its MOE requirement under this exception [P.L. 108-446). 

46 10462 0000000 
Report SEMA 

State and Local Local Only 

Current year funding (IDEA Section 611 Local 
Assistance Grant Award - Resources 3305 and 3310) 

Less: Prior year's funding (IDEA Section 611 Local 
Assistance Grant Awards - Resource 3310 

Increase in funding (if difference is positive) 

Maximum available for MOE reduction (50% of 
increase in funding) 

Current year funding (IDEA Section 619 - Resources 
3308 and 3315) 

Maximum available for early intervening services 
(EIS) (15% of current year funding - Resources 
3305, 3308, 3310 and 3315) 

If (b) is greater than (a). 
Enter portion to set aside for EIS (cannot exceed 
line (b), Maximum available for EIS) 

Available for MOE reduction. 
(line (a) minus line (c), zero if negative) 

Enter portion used to reduce MOE requirement 
(cannot exceed line (d), Available for MOE reduction). 

THIS SECTION IS NOT APPLICABLE! 
If (b) is less than (a). 
Enter portion used to reduce MOE requirement 
(first column cannot exceed line (a), Maximum 
available for MOE reduction, second and third columns 
cannot exceed (e), Portion used to reduce MOE 
requirement). 

Available to set aside for EIS 
(line (b) minus line (e), zero if negative) 

111,950.00 

114,012.00 

0.00 

0.00 (a) 

16 792.50 (b) 

_______ (c) 

0.00 (d) 

0.00 

_______ (e) ______ _ 

16 792.50 (f) 

0.00 

Note: If your LEA exercises the authority under 34 CFR 300.205(a) to reduce the MOE requirement, the LEA must provide 
the ESEA programs, SACS Only Account Code, Local Account Code, and description of the activities paid with the freed up funds: 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: sema (Rev 03/07/2022) Page 2 of 4 Printed: 8/24/2022 2:52 PM                                                                  65 of 79



Unaudited Actuals 
Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Special Education Maintenance of Effort 
2021-22 Actual vs. Actual Comparison Year 

LEA Maintenance of Effort Calculation (LMC-A) 

SELPA: Sierra County (AW) 

SECTION 3 

A. COMBINED STATE AND LOCAL EXPENDITURES METHOD 

1. Under "Comparison Year," enter the most recent year in
which MOE compliance was met using the actual vs.
actual method based on state and local expenditures.

a. Total special education expenditures

b. Less: Expenditures paid from federal sources

c. Expenditures paid from state and local sources
Add/Less: Adjustments required for MOE calculation
Comparison year's expenditures, adjusted for MOE
calculation

Less: Exempt reduction(s) for SECTION1

Less: 50% reduction from SECTION 2
Net expenditures paid from state and local sources

Column A 

Actual Expenditures 

(LE-CY Worksheet) 

FY 2021-22 

797,979.77 

198 778.65 

599 201.12 

599 201.12 

Column B 

Actual Expenditures 

Comparison Year 

FY14/15 

469,747.00 
0.00 

469 747.00 

85 515.26 

0.00 
384 231.74 

46 10462 0000000 
Report SEMA 

Column C 

Difference 

A-8 

214 969.38 

If the difference in Column C for the Section 3.A.1 is positive or zero, the MOE compliance requirement is met based on the 

combination of state and local expenditures. 

2. Under "Comparison Year," enter the most recent year in
which MOE compliance was met using the actual vs.
actual method based on the per capita state and local
expenditures.

a. Total special education expenditures

b. Less: Expenditures paid from federal sources

c. Expenditures paid from state and local sources
Add/Less: Adjustments required for MOE calculation
Comparison year's expenditures, adjusted for MOE
calculation

Less: Exempt reduction(s) from SECTION 1
Less: 50% reduction from SECTION 2
Net expenditures paid from state and local sources

d. Special education unduplicated pupil count

e. Per capita state and local expenditures (A2c/A2d)

Actual 

FY 2021-22 

797,979.77 

198 778.65 

599,201.12 

599 201.12 

58 

10,331.05 

Comparison Year 

FY14/15 

469,747.00 
0.00 

469 747.00 

85 515.26 
0.00 

384 231.74 

38 

10 111.36 

Difference 

219.69 

If the difference in Column C for the Section 3.A.2 is positive or zero, the MOE compliance requirement is met based on the 
per capita state and local expenditures. 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: sema (Rev 03/07/2022) Page 3 of 4 Printed: 8/24/2022 2:52 PM                                                                  66 of 79



Unaudited Actuals 
Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Special Education Maintenance of Effort 
2021-22 Actual vs. Actual Comparison Year 

LEA Maintenance of Effort Calculation (LMC-A) 

SELPA: Sierra County (AW) 

B. LOCAL EXPENDITURES ONLY METHOD

1. Under "Comparison Year," enter the most recent year in
which MOE compliance was met using the actual vs.
actual method based on local expenditures only.

a. Expenditures paid from local sources
Add/Less: Adjustments required for MOE calculation
Comparison year's expenditures, adjusted for MOE 
calculation

Less: Exempt reduction(s) from SECTION 1 
Less: 50% reduction from SECTION 2 
Net expenditures paid from local sources 

Actual 

FY 2021-22 

114 606.34 

114 606.34 

Comparison Year 

FY 14/15 

45 088.00 
0.00 

45,088.00 

0.00 
0.00 

45 088.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Report SEMA 

Difference 

69 518.34 

If the difference in Column C for the Section 3.8.1 is positive or zero, the MOE compliance requirement is met based on the 
local expenditures only. 

2. Under "Comparison Year," enter the most recent year in
which MOE compliance was met using the actual vs.
actual method based on the per capita local
expenditures only.

a. Expenditures paid from local sources
Add/Less: Adjustments required for MOE calculation
Comparison year's expenditures, adjusted for MOE 

Less: Exempt reduction(s) from SECTION 1 
Less: 50% reduction from SECTION 2 
Net expenditures paid from local sources 

b. Special education unduplicated pupil count

c. Per capita local expenditures (B2a/B2b)

Actual 

FY 2021-22 

114 606.34 

114 606.34 

58 

1,975.97 

Comparison Year 

FY14/15 

111,940.00 
0.00 

111 940.00 

0.00 
0.00 

111,940.00 

38 

2 945.79 

Difference 

(969.82) 

If the difference in Column C for the Section 3.8.2 is positive or zero, the MOE compliance requirement is met based on the per 
capita local expenditures only. 

Nona Griesert 
Contact Name 

Director of Business Services/CBO 
Title 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: sema (Rev 03/07/2022) Page 4 of 4 

( 530) 993-1660 
I 

X-120 
Telephone Number 

ngriesert@spjusd.org 

Email Address 

Printed: 8/24/2022 2:52 PM                                                                  67 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

SELPA: Sierra Coun� 

ObiectCode Descriotion 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES - All Sources 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6000-6999 Capital Outlay (except Object 6600 & Object 6910) 

7130 State Special Schools 

7430-7439 Debt Service 

Total Direct Costs 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 
PCRA Program Cost Report Allocations 

Total Indirect Costs and PCR Allocations 

TOTAL COSTS 

EXPENDITURES - Paid from State and Local Sources 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6000-6999 Capital Outlay (except Object 6600 & Object 6910) 

7130 State Special Schools 

7430-7439 Debt Service 

Total Direct Costs 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 
PCRA Program Cost Report Allocations 

Total Indirect Costs and PCR Allocations 

TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to Federal 
Resources 

TOTAL COSTS 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: sema (Rev 03/11/2019) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Special Education Maintenance of Effort 

2021-22 Actual vs. Actual Comparison Y ear 
2021-22 Expenditures by SELPA (SE-CY) 

Sierra-Plumas Jt. 

Sierra COE Unified 

IAWOO) IAW01l Adjustments• 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 1 of2 

Total 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0 .00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
ReportSEMA 

Printed: 8/24/2022 2 :53 PM                                                                  68 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

SELPA: Sierra Coun� 

Object Code Description 

EXPENDITURES - Paid from Local Sources 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6000-6999 Capital Outlay (except Object 6600 & Object 6910) 

7130 State Special Schools 

7430-7439 Debt Service 

Total Direct Costs 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 

Total Indirect Costs 

TOT AL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to Federal 
Resources (from EXPENDITURES - Paid from State and Local 
Sources section) 

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to State Resources 

TOTAL COSTS 

UNDUPLICATED PUPIL COUNT 

* Attach an additional sheet with explanations of any amounts
in the Adjustments column.

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: sema (Rev 03/11/2019) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Special Education Maintenance of Effort 

2021-22 Actual vs. Actual Comparison Year 
2021-22 Expenditures by SELPA (SE-CY) 

Sierra-Plumas Jt. 
Sierra COE Unified 

(AW00) (AW01) Adjustments* 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 2 of 2 

Total 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0 

46 10462 0000000 
ReportSEMA 

Printed: 8/24/2022 2:53 PM                                                                  69 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Obiect Code Descriotion 

UNDUPLICATED PUPIL COUNT 

TOTAL BUDGET (Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-9999) 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6000-6999 Capital Outlay (except Object 6600 & Object 6910) 

7130 State Special Schools 

7430-7439 Debt Service 

Total Direct Costs 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 
7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 

Total Indirect Costs 

TOTAL COSTS 

Special 
Education, 

Unspecified 
!Goal 50011 

34.216.00 

11,520.00 

14.2.06.00 

31,239.00 

52,788.00 

0.00 

0.00 

o_oo 

143 969.00 

14,847.00 

0.00 

14 847.00 

158,816.00 

Unaudited Actuals 
Special Education Maintenance of Effort 

2022-23 Budget vs. Actual Comparison Year 
2022-23 Budget by LEA (LB::B) 

Regionalized 
Regionalized Program Special 

Services Specialist Education, Infants 
/Gqal 50501 !Goal 50601 (Goal 57101 

0.00 66,340.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 24,92.5.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 o_oo 

0 _00 559.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 91,824.00 0 _00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0 00 0.00 

0.00 91,824.00 0.00 

STATE AND LOCAL BUDGET {Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-2999, 3385, & 6000-9999) 

1000-1999 Certificated Sala.ries 

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 

3000-3999 Employeti Benefits 

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 

5000,5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6000-6999 Capital Outlay (except Ob]ed 6600 & Object 6910) 

7130 State Special Schools 

7430-7439 Debt Service 

Total Direct Costs 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 

7350 Transfers ol lndlrec1 Costs - lnterft.md 

Total Indirect Costs 
TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 

8980 ContributJons from unrestricted Revenues to Federal 
Resources (Resources 3310-3400. except 3385 •. all 
goals; resources 3000-3178 & 3410-5810. goals 
5000-5999) 

TOTAL COSTS 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: semb (Rev 03/07/2022) 

34216.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

11,520.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 

14,206.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 

23.433.00 0 .00 0.00 0.00 

52,788.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0,00 0.00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

136,163.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 

14,847.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

14 847.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

151.010.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

- -

Page 1 of 2 

Special 
Education, 
Preschool Spec. Education, 
Students Ages 5-22 

(Goal 5730) (Goal 5760) 

43 236.00 181 846.00 

8 604.00 161 786_00 

22.424.00 161 197.00 

0.00 1.339.00 

139,476.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

213,740.00 506,168.00 

508.00 2,797_00 

0.00 0.00 

508.00 2,797.00 
214,248.00 508 965.00 

0.00 53,456.00 
4,802.00 158,526.00 

825.00 106,545.00 

0.00 1,339.00 

138,500.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

144,127.00 319,866,00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

144.127.00 319.866.00 

Adiustments•· 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Total 

58 

325,638.00 

181.910.00 

222.752.00 

32,578.00 

192.823.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

955,701.00 

18,152.00 
0.00 

18,152.00 

973.853.00 

87,672.00 
174,848.00 

121,576.00 

24,772.00 

191,288.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
600,156.00 

14,847.00 
0.00 

14,847.00 

615 003.00 

160,267.00 

775,270.00 

46 10462 0000000 
ReportSEMB 

Printed: 8/24/2022 2:45 PM 
                                                                 70 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Obiect Code Descriotion 

Special 
Education, 
Unspecified 

(Goal 50011 

LOCAL BUDGET (Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-1999 & 8000-9999) 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 

4000--4999 Books and Supplies 

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6000-6999 Capital Outlay (except Object 6600 & Object 6910) 

7130 State Special Schools 

7430-7439 Debt Service 

Total Direct Costs 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 

Total Indirect Costs 

TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to Federal 
Resources (from State and Local Budget section) 

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to State 
Resources (Resources 3385, 6500--6540, & 7240, all 
goals; resources 2000-2999 & 6010-7810, except 
6500--6540, & 7240, goals 5000-5999) 

TOTAL COSTS 

• Attach an additional sheet with explanations of any amounts 

in the Adjustments column. 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: semb (Rev 03/07/2022) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Unaudited Actuals 
Special Education Malmenance of Effort 

2022-23 Budget vs. Actual Co117parison Year 
2022-23 Budget by LEA (LB-BJ 

Reglonallzed 
Regionalized Program Special 

Services Specialist Education, Infants 
(Goal 50501 /Goal 50601 /Goal 57101 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0 .00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 2 of 2 

Special 
Education, 
Preschool Spec. Education, 
Students Ages 5-22 

/Goal 57301 1Goal57601 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0 .00 

0.00 16,555.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 16,555.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 16,555.00 

Adlustments• 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Total 

0.00 

0.00 

16.555.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

16.555.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

16.555.00 

160.267.00 

52.771.00 

229.593.00 

46 10462 0000000 
ReportSEMB 

Printed: 8/24/2022 2:45 PM 
                                                                 71 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

ObiectCode DescriDtion 

I UNDUPLICATED PUPIL COUNT 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-9999) 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries. 
2000-2999 Classified Salaries 
3000-3999 Employee Benefits 

40()0,4999 Books and Supplres 

6000-6999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 
6000-6999 Capital Outlay (exclude Object 6600 & Object 6910) 

7130 State Special Sellools 
7430-7439 Debt Service 

Total Orrect Costs 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 
7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 

PCRA Prog1<1m Cost Report Allocations (non-add) 
Total lndrrect Costs 
TOTAL COSTS 

Special 
Education, 

Unspecified 
{Goal 50011 

32.109.96 
2,634.00 

16,181.32 
2.410.68 

72,900.12 
5 797.60 

0.00 
0.00 

132,033.68 

12,343.70 
0.00 

34,043.12 

12,343.70 
144.377.38 

FEDERAL EXPENDITURES (Funds 01, 09, and 62; resources 3000-5999, except 3385) 

1000-1999 Certlflc21ed Salaries 
2000-2999 Classified Salarfes 
3000-399.9 Employee Benefrts 
4000-4999 Books and Supplies 
5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 
6000-6999 Capital OU1lay (exclude Object 6600 & 6910) 

7130 State Spee/al Sellools 
7430-7439 Debi Service 

Total Dlred Costs 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 
Total Indirect Costs 
TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 

8980 Less; Contrbutlons from Unrestricted Revenues to 
federal Reso�rces {Resources 3310-3400, except 
3385, all goals; resources 3000-3178 &.3410-5810, 
goals 5000-5999) 

TOTAL COSTS 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: semb (Rev 03/23/2022) 

0,00 
0.00 
0.00 

351.47 
9.000.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0,00 

9.351.47 

0.00 
0.00 
0 00 

9,351.47 

.

Unaudited Actuals 
Special Education Maintenance of Effort 

2022-23 Budget vs. Actual Comparison Year 
2021-22 Expenditures by LEA (LE-B) 

Regionalized 
Regionalized Program Special 

Services Specialist Education, Infants 
(Goal 5050) {Goal 50601 (Goal 57101 

0.00 51.158.90 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0 00  
0.00 26,490.61 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 551.64 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 
0,00 0,00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 78,201.15 o.oo I

0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 78.201.15 0.00 

0.00 51,158.90 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 19,829.61 0.00 
o.oo I 0.00 0.00 
0.00 551.64 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 
0,00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

0,00 71,540 15 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0,00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 71,540.15 0.00 

.J 

Page 1 of 2 

Special 
Education, 
Preschool 

Students 
{Goal 57301 

39.497.52 
7,268.82 

23.619.37 
26.51 

1.425.22 

0.00 
0,00 
0.00 

71 837.44 

644.00 
0.00 

644.00 
72,481.44 

39,497.52 
3.634.45 

18.051.45 
26.51 

970.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

62.179.93 

644.00 
0.00 

644.00 
62,823.93 

Spec. Education, 
Ages 5-22 

(Goal 57601 Adiustments• 

' 

116,879.37 
121,607.82 
145 970.07 

5,770.32 
75 088.06 

0.00 I 
0.00 
0.00 

465,315.64 0.00 

3.561.04 
0.00 

3 561.04 0.00 
468,876.68 0.00 

96,505.48 
3,605.80 

45.348.89 
3.499.67 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

148 959.84 0.00 

3,561.04 
0.00 

3,561.04 0.00 

152,520.88 o.oo I

Total 

58 

239 645.75 
131.510.64 
212.261.37 

8,207.51 

149,965.04 
5 797.60 

0.00 
0.00 

747 387.91 

16.548.74 
0.00 

34,043.12 

16.548.74 
763,936.65 

187,161.90 
7,240.25 

83.229.95 
3,877.65 

10,521.64 
0.00 
o.oo
0.00 

292.031.39 

4.205.04 
0.00 

4,205.04 
296236.43 

97.457,78 
198.778.65 

46 1 0462 0000000 
ReportSEMB 

Printed: 8/24/2022 2:45 PM 
                                                                 72 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Object Code Description 

Special 
Education, Regionalized 

Unspecified Services 
(Goal 5001) (Goal 5050) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Special Education Maintenance of Effort 

2022-23 Budget vs. Actual Comparison Year 
2021-22 Expenditures by LEA (LE-B) 

Regionalized 
Program Special 

Specialist Education, Infants 
(Goal 5060) (Goal 5710) 

STATE AND LOCAL EXPENDITURES (Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-2999, 3385, & 6000-9999) 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 32 109.96 
2000-2999 Classified Salaries 2,634.00 
3000-3999 Employee Benefits 16.181.32 
4000-4999 Books and Supplies 2,059.21 
5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 63,900.12 
6000-6999 Capital Outlay (exclude Object 6600 & Object 6910) 5.797.60 

7130 State Special Schools 0.00 

7430-7439 Debt Service 0.00 

Total Direct Costs 122682.21 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 12.343.70 

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 0.00 
PCRA Program Cost Report Allocations (non-add) 34.043.12 

Total indirect Costs 12.343.70 

TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 135,02li.91 

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to Federal 
Resources (from Federal Expenditures section) 

TOTAL COSTS 

LOCAL EXPENDITURES (Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-1999 & 8000-9999) 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6000-6999 Capital Outlay (exclude Object 6600 & 691 O) 

7130 State Special Schools 

7430-7439 Debt Service 

Total Direct Costs 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 

Total Indirect Costs 

TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to Federal 
Resources (from Federal Expenditures section) 

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to State 
Resources (Resources 3385, 6500, 6510, & 7240, all 
goals; resources 2000-2999 & 6010-7810, except 
6500, 6510, & 7240, goals 5000-5999) 

TOTAL COSTS 
• Attach an additional sheet with explanations of any amounts 

in the Adjustments column. 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: semb (Rev 03/23/2022) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
1,154.14 

0.00 

0.00 
0 00 

0.00 

1,154.14 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1,154.14 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 6,651.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0,00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

o.oo 0,00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 6,661.00 0.00 

0:00 0.00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 
-

0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 6,661.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0,00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

o_oo 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0,00 

0.00 0,00 0,00 

0,00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

. 

� 

Page 2 of 2 

Special 
Education, 
Preschool Spec. Education, 
Students Ages 5-22 

(Goal 5730) (Goal 5760) 

0.00 20,373.89 
3.634.37 118 002.02 
5 567.92 100,621.18 

0.00 2,270.65 
455.22 75,088.06 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

9,657.51 316.355,80 

0.00 0.00 

0,00 0.00 

0 00 o.oo 

9,657.51 316,355.80 

0,00 0.00 

0.00 0,00 

0.00 15994.42 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

0 00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

0,00 15,994.42 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0,00 0.00 

0.00 15,994.42 

-

Adiustments• 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

. 

Total 

52 483.85 

124.270.39 

129,031.42 

4,329.86 

139,443.40 

5,797.60 

0.00 

0.00 

455.356.52 

12,343.70 

0.00 

34M3 12 

12,343.70 

467,700.22 

97,457.78 

565,158.00 

0,00 

0,00 

15,994.42 

1,154.14 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

17 148.56 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

17.148.56 

97 457.78 

0.00 

114,606,34 

46 1 0462 0000000 
Report SEMB 

Printed: 8/24/2022 2:45 PM 
                                                                 73 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

SELPA: Sierra County (AW) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Special Education Maintenance of Effort 

2022-23 Budget vs. Actual Comparison Year 
LEA Maintenance of Effort Calculation (LMC-B) 

46 10462 0000000 
Report SEMB 

This form is used to check maintenance of effort (MOE) for an LEA, whether the LEA is a member of a SELPA or is a single-LEA SELPA. If a 
member of a SELPA, submit this form together with the 2022-23 Budget by LEA (LB-B) and the 2021-22 Expenditures by LEA (LE-B) to the SELPA 
AU. If a single-LEA SELPA, submit the forms to the CDE. 

Per the federal Subsequent Years Rule, in order to determine the required level of effort, the LEA must look back to the last fiscal year in which the 
LEA maintained effort using the same method by which it is currently establishing the eligibility standard. To meet the requirement of the Subsequent 
Years Rule, the LMC-B worksheet has been revised to make changes to sections 3.A.1, 3.A.2, 3.B.1, and 3.B.2. The revised sections allow the LEA 
to compare the 2022-23 budgeted expenditures to the most recent fiscal year the LEA met MOE using that method, which is the comparison year. To 
ensure the LEA is comparing 2022-23 budgeted expenditures to the appropriate comparison year, the LEA is required to complete the Subsequent 
Years Tracking (SYT) worksheet with their LMC-B worksheet. The SYT worksheet tracks the result for each of the four methods back to FY 2011-12, 
which is the baseline year for LEA MOE calculations established by the Office of Special Education Programs. The SYT worksheet is available at: 
http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/se/as/documents/subseqyrtrckwrksht.xls. 

There are four methods that the LEA can use to demonstrate the eligibility standard. They are (1) combined state and local expenditures; (2) 
combined state and local expenditures on a per capita basis; (3) local expenditures only; and (4) local expenditures only on a per capita basis. 

The LEA is only required to pass one of the tests to meet the MOE requirement. However, the LEA is required to show results for all four methods. 
These results are necessary both for historical purposes and for the possibility that the LEA may want, or need, to switch methods in future years. 

SECTION 1 Exempt Reduction Under 34 CFR Section 300.204 

If your LEA determines that a reduction in expenditures occurred as a result of one or more of the following conditions, you may 
calculate a reduction to the required MOE standard. Reductions may apply to combined state and local MOE standard, local only 
MOE standard, or both. If the LEA meets one of the conditions below, the LEA must complete and include the IDEA MOE Exemption 
Worksheet available at: http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/se/as/documents/leamoeexempwrksht.xls. 

1. Voluntary departure, by retirement or otherwise, or departure for just cause, of special education or
related services personnel.

2. A decrease in the enrollment of children with disabilities.

3. The termination of the obligation of the agency to provide a program of special education to a particular
child with a disability that is an exceptionally costly program, as determined by the SEA, because the child:

a. Has left the jurisdiction of the agency;
b. Has reached the age at which the obligation of the agency

to provide free appropriate public education (FAPE) to
the child has terminated; or

c. No longer needs the program of special education.

4. The termination of costly expenditures for long-term purchases, such as the acquisition of
equipment or the construction of school facilities.

5. The assumption of cost by the high cost fund operated by the SEA under 34 CFR Sec. 300.704(c).

Provide the condition number, if any, to be used in the calculation below: State and Local 

Marlene Mongolo, SELPA Director, Retired in 16/17 85,515.26 

Total exempt reductions 85 515.26 

Local Only 

0.00 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: semb (Rev 03/07/2022) Page 1 of 4 Printed: 8/24/2022 2:45 PM                                                                  74 of 79



Unaudited Actuals 
Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Special Education Maintenance of Effort 
2022-23 Budget vs. Actual Comparison Year 

LEA Maintenance of Effort Calculation (LMC-B) 

46 10462 0000000 
Report SEMB 

SELPA: 

SECTION 2 

Sierra County (AW) 

Reduction to MOE Requirement Under IDEA, Section 613 (a)(2)(C) (34 CFR Sec. 300.205) 

IMPORTANT NOTE: Only LEAs that have a "meets requirement" compliance determination and that are not found 
significantly disproportionate for the current year are eligible to use this option to reduce their MOE requirement. 

Up to 50% of the increase in IDEA Part B Section 611 funding in current year compared with prior year may be used 
to reduce the required level of state and local expenditures. This option is available only if the LEA used or will use 
the freed up funds for activities authorized under the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) of 1965. Also, the 
amount of Part B funds used for early intervening services (34 CFR 300.226(a)) will count toward the maximum amount 
by which the LEA may reduce its MOE requirement under this exception [P.L. 108-446]. 

Current year funding (IDEA Section 611 Local 
Assistance Grant Award - Resource 3310 

Less: Prior year's funding (IDEA Section 611 Local 
Assistance Grant Award - Resources 3305 and 3310) 

Increase in funding (if difference is positive) 

Maximum available for MOE reduction (50% of 
increase in funding) 

Current year funding (IDEA Section 619 - Resource 
3315) 

Maximum available for early intervening services 
(EIS) (15% of current year funding - Resources 
3310 and 3315) 

If (b) is greater than (a). 

Enter portion to set aside for EIS (cannot exceed 
line (b), Maximum available for EIS) 

Available for MOE reduction. 
(line (a) minus line (c), zero if negative) 

Enter portion used to reduce MOE requirement 
(cannot exceed line (d), Available for MOE reduction). 

THIS SECTION IS NOT APPLICABLE! 
If (b) is less than (a). 

Enter portion used to reduce MOE requirement 
(first column cannot exceed line (a), Maximum 
available for MOE reduction, second and third columns 
cannot exceed (e), Portion used to reduce MOE 
requirement). 

Available to set aside for EIS 
(line (b) minus line (e), zero if negative) 

111,950.00 

114 012.00 

0.00 

0.00 (a) 

20,183.00 

19 819.95 (b) 

_______ (c) 

0.00 (d) 

State and Local 

0.00 

_______ (e) -------

19,819.95 (f) 

Local Only 

0.00 

Note: If your LEA exercises the authority under 34 CFR 300.205(a) to reduce the MOE requirement, the LEA must provide the ESEA 
programs, SACS Only Account Code, Local Account Code, and description of the activities paid with the freed up funds: 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: semb (Rev 03/07/2022) Page 2 of 4 Printed: 8/24/2022 2:45 PM                                                                  75 of 79



Unaudited Actuals 
Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Special Education Maintenance of Effort 
2022-23 Budget vs. Actual Comparison Year 

LEA Maintenance of Effort Calculation (LMC-B) 

SELPA: Sierra County (AW) 

SECTION 3 

A. COMBINED STATE AND LOCAL EXPENDITURES METHOD

1. Under "Comparison Year," enter the most recent year 
in which MOE compliance was met using the actual vs. 
actual method based on state and local expenditures. 

a. Total special education expenditures

b. Less: Expenditures paid from federal sources 

c. Expenditures paid from state and local sources 
Add/Less: Adjustments and/or PCRA required for 
MOE calculation
Comparison year's expenditures, adjusted for MOE
calculation 

Less: Exempt reduction(s) from SECTION 1 
Less: 50% reduction from SECTION 2
Net expenditures paid from state and local sources

Column A 

Budgeted Amounts 

(LB-B Worksheet) 

FY 2022-23 

973,853.00 

198,583.00 

775,270.00 

775,270.00 

Column B 

Actual Expenditures 

Comparison Year 

FY 14/15 

469,747.00 

0.00 

469 747.00 

85,515.26 
0.00 

384 231.74 

46 10462 0000000 
Report SEMB 

Column C 

Difference 

A - B

391,038.26 

If the difference in Column C for the Section 3.A.1 is positive or zero, the MOE Eligibility requirement is met based on the 
combination of state and local expenditures. 

2. Under "Comparison Year," enter the most recent year in 
which MOE compliance was met using the actual vs. 
actual method based on the per capita state and local 
expenditures. 

a. Total special education expenditures

b. Less: Expenditures paid from federal sources 

c. Expenditures paid from state and local sources 
Add/Less: Adjustments and/or PCRA required for 
MOE calculation
Comparison year's expenditures, adjusted for MOE
calculation 

Less: Exempt reduction(s) from SECTION 1 
Less: 50% reduction from SECTION 2
Net expenditures paid from state and local sources 

d. Special education unduplicated pupil count

e. Per capita state and local expenditures (A2c/A2d)

Budgeted Amounts 
FY 2022-23 

973,853.00 

198,583.00 

775 270.00 

775,270.00 

58 

13 366.72 

Comparison Year 
FY 14/15 

469 747.00 

0.00 

469 747.00 

85,515.26 
0.00 

384 231.74 

38 

10.111.36 

Difference 

3 255.36 

If the difference in Column C for the Section 3.A.2 is positive or zero, the MOE eligibility requirement is met based on the per capita 
state and local expenditures. 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: semb (Rev 03/07/2022) Page 3 of 4 Printed: 8/24/2022 2:45 PM                                                                  76 of 79



Unaudited Actuals 
Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Special Education Maintenance of Effort 
2022-23 Budget vs. Actual Comparison Year 

LEA Maintenance of Effort Calculation (LMC-B) 

SELPA: Sierra County (AW) 

B. LOCAL EXPENDITURES ONLY METHOD

1. Under "Comparison Year," enter the most recent year in 
which MOE compliance was met using the actual vs.
actual method based on local expenditures only.

a. Expenditures paid from local sources
Add/Less: Adjustments required for
MOE calculation
Comparison year's expenditures, adjusted
for MOE calculation

Less: Exempt reduction(s) from SECTION 1 
Less: 50% reduction from SECTION 2 
Net expenditures paid from local sources 

Budget 

FY 2022-23 

229,593.00 

229,593.00 

Comparison Year 

FY 14/15 

45,088.00 

0.00 

45 088.00 

0.00 
0.00 

45,088.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Report SEMB 

184 505.00 

If the difference in Column C for the Section 3.B.1 is positive or zero, the MOE eligibility requirement is met based on the local 
expenditures only. 

2. Under "Comparison Year," enter the most recent year
in which MOE compliance was met using the actual vs.
actual method based on per capita local expenditures

a. Expenditures paid from local sources
Add/Less: Adjustments required for
MOE calculation
Comparison year's expenditures, adjusted
for MOE calculation

Less: Exempt reduction(s) from SECTION 1 
Less: 50% reduction from SECTION 2 
Net expenditures paid from local sources 

b. Special education unduplicated pupil count

c. Per capita local expenditures (B2a/B2b)

Budget 

FY 2022-23 

229 593.00 

229,593.00 

58 

3 958.50 

Comparison Year 

Difference 

45,088.00 

0.00 

45 088.00 

0.00 
0.00 

45 088.00 

38 

1 186.53 2 771.97 

If the difference in Column C for the Section 3.B.2 is positive or zero, the MOE eligibility requirement is met based on the per capita 
local expenditures only. 

Nona Grieser! 

Contact Name 

Director of Business Services/CBO 

Title 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: semb (Rev 03/07/2022) Page 4 of 4 

(530) 993-1660, x-120

Telephone Number 

nariesert@spjusd.org 

Email Address 

Printed: 8/24/2022 2:45 PM                                                                  77 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

SELPA: Sierra Coun� 

ObiectCode Description 

TOTAL BUDGET -All Sources 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6000-6999 Capital Outlay (except Object 6600 & Object 6910) 

7130 State Special Schools 

7430-7439 Debt Service 

Total Direct Costs 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 

Total Indirect Costs 

TOTAL COSTS 

BUDGET - State and Local Sources 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6000-6999 Capital Outlay (except Object 6600 & Object 6910) 

7130 State Special Schools 

7430-7439 Debt Service 

Total Direct Costs 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 

Total Indirect Costs 

TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to Federal Resources 

TOTAL COSTS 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: semb (Rev 03/15/2021) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Special Education Maintenance of Effort 

2022-23 Budget vs. Actual Comparison Year 
2022-23 Budget by SELPA (SB-B) 

Sierra-Plumas Jt. 

Sierra COE Unified 
(AW00) (AW01) Adjustments* 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 1 of 2 

Total 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Report SEMB 

Printed: 8/24/2022 2:45 PM                                                                  78 of 79



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

SELPA: Sierra County (AW) 

Object Code Description 

BUDGET - Local Sources 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6000-6999 Capital Outlay (except Object 6600 & Object 6910) 

7130 State Special Schools 

7430-7439 Debt Service 

Total Direct Costs 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 

Total Indirect Costs 

TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to Federal Resources 
(from BUDGET - State and Local Sources section) 

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to State Resources 

TOTAL COSTS 
UNDUPLICATED PUPIL COUNT 

• Attach an additional sheet with explanations of any
amounts in the Adjustments column.

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2022.2.0 
File: semb (Rev 03/15/2021) 

Unaudited Actuals 
Special Education Maintenance of Effort 

2022-23 Budget vs, Actual Comparison Year 
2022-23 Budget by SELPA (SB-B) 

Sierra-Plumas Jt. 
Sierra COE Unified 

(AW00I (AW01I Adiustments* 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 2 of 2 

Total 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0 

46 10462 0000000 
Report SEMB 

Printed: 8/24/2022 2:45 PM                                                                  79 of 79



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT USD

RANGE A B C D E F G H I J K L M N
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 Yr 10 Yr 15 Yr 20 Yr 25 Yr 30

3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 10.00%
1 15.50$  15.97$  16.44$  16.94$  17.45$   17.97$ 18.51$  19.06$  19.63$ 20.62$ 21.65$ 22.73$ 23.87$ 26.25$ 
2 15.73$  16.20$  16.69$  17.19$  17.71$   18.24$ 18.79$  19.35$  19.93$ 20.93$ 21.97$ 23.07$ 24.22$ 26.65$ 
3 15.97$  16.45$  16.94$  17.45$  17.97$   18.51$ 19.07$  19.64$  20.23$ 21.24$ 22.30$ 23.42$ 24.59$ 27.05$ 
4 16.21$  16.69$  17.20$  17.71$  18.24$   18.79$ 19.35$  19.93$  20.53$ 21.56$ 22.64$ 23.77$ 24.96$ 27.45$ 
5 16.45$  16.94$  17.45$  17.98$  18.52$   19.07$ 19.64$  20.23$  20.84$ 21.88$ 22.98$ 24.12$ 25.33$ 27.86$ 
6 16.70$  17.20$  17.71$  18.25$  18.79$   19.36$ 19.94$  20.54$  21.15$ 22.21$ 23.32$ 24.49$ 25.71$ 28.28$ 
7 16.95$  17.46$  17.98$  18.52$  19.08$   19.65$ 20.24$  20.84$  21.47$ 22.54$ 23.67$ 24.85$ 26.10$ 28.71$ 
8 17.20$  17.72$  18.25$  18.80$  19.36$   19.94$ 20.54$  21.16$  21.79$ 22.88$ 24.03$ 25.23$ 26.49$ 29.14$ 
9 17.46$  17.98$  18.52$  19.08$  19.65$   20.24$ 20.85$  21.47$  22.12$ 23.22$ 24.39$ 25.61$ 26.89$ 29.57$ 
10 17.72$  18.25$  18.80$  19.37$  19.95$   20.55$ 21.16$  21.80$  22.45$ 23.57$ 24.75$ 25.99$ 27.29$ 30.02$ 
11 17.99$  18.53$  19.08$  19.66$  20.25$   20.85$ 21.48$  22.12$  22.79$ 23.93$ 25.12$ 26.38$ 27.70$ 30.47$ 
12 18.26$  18.81$  19.37$  19.95$  20.55$   21.17$ 21.80$  22.46$  23.13$ 24.29$ 25.50$ 26.77$ 28.11$ 30.92$ 
13 18.53$  19.09$  19.66$  20.25$  20.86$   21.48$ 22.13$  22.79$  23.48$ 24.65$ 25.88$ 27.18$ 28.54$ 31.39$ 
14 18.81$  19.37$  19.96$  20.55$  21.17$   21.81$ 22.46$  23.13$  23.83$ 25.02$ 26.27$ 27.58$ 28.96$ 31.86$ 
15 19.09$  19.66$  20.25$  20.86$  21.49$   22.13$ 22.80$  23.48$  24.19$ 25.39$ 26.66$ 28.00$ 29.40$ 32.34$ 
16 19.38$  19.96$  20.56$  21.18$  21.81$   22.47$ 23.14$  23.83$  24.55$ 25.78$ 27.06$ 28.42$ 29.84$ 32.82$ 
17 19.67$  20.26$  20.87$  21.49$  22.14$   22.80$ 23.49$  24.19$  24.92$ 26.16$ 27.47$ 28.84$ 30.29$ 33.31$ 
18 19.96$  20.56$  21.18$  21.82$  22.47$   23.14$ 23.84$  24.55$  25.29$ 26.55$ 27.88$ 29.28$ 30.74$ 33.81$ 
19 20.26$  20.87$  21.50$  22.14$  22.81$   23.49$ 24.20$  24.92$  25.67$ 26.95$ 28.30$ 29.72$ 31.20$ 34.32$ 
20 20.57$  21.18$  21.82$  22.47$  23.15$   23.84$ 24.56$  25.30$  26.05$ 27.36$ 28.73$ 30.16$ 31.67$ 34.84$ 
21 20.88$  21.50$  22.15$  22.81$  23.50$   24.20$ 24.93$  25.68$  26.45$ 27.77$ 29.16$ 30.61$ 32.14$ 35.36$ 
22 21.19$  21.83$  22.48$  23.15$  23.85$   24.56$ 25.30$  26.06$  26.84$ 28.18$ 29.59$ 31.07$ 32.63$ 35.89$ 
23 21.51$  22.15$  22.82$  23.50$  24.21$   24.93$ 25.68$  26.45$  27.24$ 28.61$ 30.04$ 31.54$ 33.12$ 36.43$ 
24 21.83$  22.48$  23.16$  23.85$  24.57$   25.31$ 26.07$  26.85$  27.65$ 29.04$ 30.49$ 32.01$ 33.61$ 36.97$ 
25 22.16$  22.82$  23.51$  24.21$  24.94$   25.69$ 26.46$  27.25$  28.07$ 29.47$ 30.95$ 32.49$ 34.12$ 37.53$ 
26 22.49$  23.16$  23.86$  24.58$  25.31$   26.07$ 26.85$  27.66$  28.49$ 29.91$ 31.41$ 32.98$ 34.63$ 38.09$ 
27 22.83$  23.51$  24.22$  24.94$  25.69$   26.46$ 27.26$  28.07$  28.92$ 30.36$ 31.88$ 33.47$ 35.15$ 38.66$ 
28 23.17$  23.86$  24.58$  25.32$  26.08$   26.86$ 27.67$  28.50$  29.35$ 30.82$ 32.36$ 33.98$ 35.68$ 39.24$ 
29 23.52$  24.22$  24.95$  25.70$  26.47$   27.26$ 28.08$  28.92$  29.79$ 31.28$ 32.84$ 34.49$ 36.21$ 39.83$ 
30 23.87$  24.59$  25.32$  26.08$  26.87$   27.67$ 28.50$  29.36$  30.24$ 31.75$ 33.34$ 35.00$ 36.75$ 40.43$ 

DIRECTOR 46.93$  49.05$  50.52$  52.04$  53.60$   55.21$ 56.86$  58.57$  60.33$ 63.34$ 66.51$ 69.83$ 73.33$ 80.66$ 
TECH SPEC. 26.57$  27.76$  29.01$  29.88$  30.78$   31.70$ 32.66$  33.63$  34.64$ 36.38$ 38.19$ 40.10$ 42.11$ 46.32$ 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SALARY SCHEDULE

JOB CLASSIFICATION RANGE

INSTRUCTIONAL AIDE 2
CUSTODIAN 11
WORKABILITY COORDINATOR 14
BEHAVIOR ATTENDANT 1
WORKABILITY AIDE 1
GARDEN TECHNICIAN 4
CLERK TYPIST 1
INSTRUCTIONAL AIDE (SH) 5
TRANSPORTATION AIDE 1
ACADEMIC ADVISOR/CAREER TECH 18
SPEECH/LANGUAGE AIDE 20
School Secretary 12
School Secretary - Adult Education 14
Foster Youth Services Coordinator 22



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SALARY SCHEDULE

JOB CLASSIFICATION RANGE

Noon Supervisor 1
Cafeteria Work 1
Cashier 1
Instructional Aide 2
Cook I 9
Library Aide 5
Custodian 11
Maintenance Custodian 16
Classroom Specialist 27
Plant Maint./Bus Driver 23
Transportation Clerk 4
School Secretary - LES 12
School Secretary - LHS/DVL 14
Administrative Assistant 22
Bilingual Parent Liaison/ELPAC Coord 14
Educational Research Technician 21



Amador* Del Norte* Mariposa* Plumas* Lassen Butte
Tahoe 

Truckee Fall River AVERAGE
Current Rate 

(22-23)
Instructional Aide 17.10$ 15.65$    15.00$    15.49$    15.00$    15.20$    16.46$    15.59$    15.69$    15.50$          

Custodian 18.42$ 18.24$    17.21$    16.70$    16.84$    18.17$    18.61$    16.56$    17.59$    16.58$          

Speech Aide 19.41$ 22.57$    18.15$    20.04$    20.50$          

SPED Aide 18.15$ 16.81$    15.00$    15.49$    17.51$    16.61$    17.27$    15.74$    16.57$    15.67$          

School Secretary 18.70$ 20.71$    15.65$    15.80$    15.85$    18.17$    22.68$    18.73$    18.29$    17.09$          
School Secretary 9-12 18.70$ 21.63$    16.40$    15.80$    15.85$    18.17$    23.24$    18.73$    18.57$    17.09$          

Cafeteria Worker 16.36$ 15.16$    15.00$    15.14$    15.00$    15.19$    16.46$    15.30$    15.45$    15.50$          

Cook I 17.62$ 16.81$    22.01$    16.35$    15.00$    17.47$    18.61$    17.89$    17.72$    15.67$          

Library Aide 16.60$ 17.50$    15.00$    15.49$    15.46$    16.79$    18.61$    15.30$    16.34$    15.50$          

Maintenance Custodian 18.42$ 22.57$    19.95$    17.13$    16.35$    18.17$    20.54$    17.89$    18.88$    17.75$          

Plant Maint/Bus Driver 20.76$ 24.65$    23.06$    17.91$    18.21$    20.87$    22.68$    18.73$    20.86$    21.49$          

Administrative Assistant 21.21$ 25.43$    22.80$    17.38$    16.25$    18.91$    28.35$    19.51$    21.23$    19.08$          

Bilingual Aide 20.45$ 19.85$    19.03$    16.62$    18.50$    17.01$    20.04$    18.73$    18.78$    18.24$          

Did not include Alpine due to limited jobs that closely match our descriptions
*Single district counties
When Plant Maintenance and Bus Driver were different on the schedules, I used the higher rate





Page 1 of 2 

CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET – September 13, 2022 

 
 
Exhibit(1) 1113 - District and School Web Sites 

Exhibit updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 27, 2021) which includes posting requirements 
related to the identification of homeless students and NEW LAW (AB 819, 2021) which 
includes posting requirements related to specified environmental review documents as required 
by the California Environmental Quality Act. Exhibit also updated to add posting requirements 
related to posters published by the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing, and 
amend the item regarding the district’s meal payment collection policy and procedures to 
reference a different memorandum regarding unpaid meal charges. 

 
 
Administrative Regulation 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW STATE REGULATIONS (Register 2020, No. 21) which 
amends the definition of "beginning of the year or semester" and NEW LAW (AB 367, 2021) 
which requires any school serving any of grades 6-12 to, at all times, stock and make available 
and accessible free of cost an adequate supply of menstrual products in specified restrooms 
beginning with the 2022-23 school year. Regulation also updated to clarify that the principal or 
Superintendent's designee is required to send a written resolution of the complaint to the mailing 
address of the complainant when the complainant has indicated on the complaint form a desire to 
receive a response to the complaint. 

 
Exhibit(2) 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures 

Exhibit updated to include that, for a school that serves any of grades 6-12, a complaint may be 
filed for failure to, at all times, stock and make available and accessible free of cost an adequate 
supply of menstrual products in specified restrooms, as required by NEW LAW (AB 367, 2021). 

 
 
Board Policy 3110 - Transfer of Funds 

Policy updated to delete an authorization for the temporary transfer of funds which only 
pertained to the 2020-21 and 2021-22 fiscal years. 

 
 
NEW - Board Policy 3523 - Electronic Signatures 

New policy reflects the authorization for districts to use electronic signatures in their 
communications and operations, including the benefits of electronic records and signatures, the 
requirement that electronic signatures conform with criteria described in law and that the level of 
security is sufficient for the transaction being conducted, and that electronic records are retained 
in accordance with law and regulations and as specified in board policy and administrative 
regulation. 

 
NEW - Administrative Regulation 3523 - Electronic Signatures 

New regulation establishes procedures for district use of electronic signatures, including that in 
any business transaction electronic signatures may be used only when each party has agreed to 
conduct the transaction in such a manner and that in other district operations electronic signatures 
may be required, criteria that must be met in order for an electronic signature to be used, and 
specific requirements for notarized signatures and statements that are required to be signed under 
penalty of perjury. 

 

Note: Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations, 
board bylaws, and/or exhibits. Editorial changes have also been made. Districts and county offices of education 
should review the sample materials and modify their own policies accordingly. 



Page 2 of 2 
Administrative Regulation 4112.2 - Certification 

Regulation updated to expand the section on "Basic Skills Proficiency" to include a list of the 
ways a person may demonstrate basic skills proficiency, and reflect NEW LAW (AB 130, 2021) 
which exempts a person from the basic skills proficiency test requirement by earning at least a 
letter grade of B in qualifying coursework and, in conjunction with NEW LAW (AB 167, 2021), 
exempts a person from the basic skills proficiency test requirement if it is determined that a 
person has demonstrated proficiency through a combination of coursework, passage of a 
component(s) of the basic skills proficiency test, and other specified exams. Section also updated 
to reflect NEW LAW (AB 320, 2021) which impacts what is "qualifying coursework" by 
defining a "regionally accredited institution" to include an institution of higher education that 
held preaccreditation status at the time the degree of an applicant for a credential was conferred 
if the institution achieved full accreditation status within five years of earning preaccreditation 
status, in addition to an institution of higher education that has already been designated as 
regionally accredited at the time the degree of an applicant for a credential was conferred. 
Additionally, regulation updated to provide more detail for when an out-of-state prepared teacher 
is not required to meet the basic skills requirement within one year of being issued a California 
preliminary credential by the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing. 

 
 
Administrative Regulation 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1033, 2021) which changed the definition of 
“parent” to include a parent-in-law for the purposes of the California Family Rights Act (CFRA), 
by adding “parent-in- law” to the definitions of “eligible family member” and “parent” within the 
“Definitions” section. Regulation also updated to delete the last sentence in the first body 
paragraph in the “Terms of Leave” section, as it is no longer legally accurate. 

 
 
Administrative Regulation 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1055, 2021) which modified the definition of 
“foster youth” to include a dependent child of a court of an Indian tribe, consortium of tribes, or 
tribal organization, and includes the definition of “foster youth” as specified in law. Regulation 
also updated to make clarifying changes to the responsibilities of the district liaison for foster 
youth. 



Page 1 of 4 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Community Relations 
Exhibit 1113-E(1): District And School Web Sites 

 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Community Relations 
 
Exhibit (1) 1113 – District and School Web Sites 
 

MATERIALS REQUIRED TO BE POSTED ON DISTRICT WEB SITE 
 
Materials to Prominently Display 
 
The following must be posted in a prominent location on the district's web site, such as on the home page 
when required by law: 
 

1. The district's local control and accountability plan (LCAP), any updates or revisions to the LCAP, 
and the local control funding formula budget overview (Education Code 52064.1, 52065).  See 
AR 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan.  
 

2. A direct link to the current board agenda containing the time and location of the meeting and a 
brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting, 
including items to be discussed in closed session, or a link to the district's agenda management 
platform where the current agenda shall be the first available (Government Code 54954.2, 
54956).  Post at least 72 hours before a regular board meeting or 24 hours before a special 
meeting.  See BB 9320 - Meetings and Notices and BB 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials.  
  

3. The district's policy on student suicide prevention including, for grades K-6, the age 
appropriateness of the policy (Education Code 234.6).  See BP 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention.  
  

4. The district's policies and procedures prohibiting discrimination, harassment, student sexual 
harassment, intimidation, bullying, and cyberbullying, including a section on social media 
bullying that includes all of the references described in Education Code 234.6 as possible forums 
for social media (Education Code 234.6).  See AR 5131.2 - Bullying and AR 5145.3 - 
Nondiscrimination/Harassment.  
  

5. The district's policy on preventing and responding to hate violence, if the district has adopted 
such a policy (Education Code 234.6).  See BP 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior.  
  

6. The definition of discrimination and harassment based on sex as described in Education Code 
230, including the rights set forth in Education Code 221.8 (Education Code 234.6).  See AR 
5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment.  
  

7. Information regarding Title IX prohibitions against discrimination based on a student's sex, 
gender, gender identity, pregnancy, and parental status, including the name and contact 
information of the Title IX Coordinator, the rights of students and the public as specified in 
Education Code 221.8, the responsibilities of the district under Title IX, web links to information 
about those rights and responsibilities on the web sites of the Office for Equal Opportunity and 



Page 2 of 4 

the U.S. Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights, a description of how to file a 
complaint of noncompliance under Title IX with specified components, and a link to Title IX 
information posted on the California Department of Education's (CDE) web site  (Education Code 
221.6, 221.61, 234.6; 34 CFR 106.8).  See AR 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment and AR 
5145.7 - Sexual Harassment.  
  

8. A link to statewide CDE-compiled resources, including community-based organizations, that 
provide support to youth who have been subjected to school-based discrimination, harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying and to their families (Education Code 234.5, 234.6). See AR 5145.3 - 
Nondiscrimination/Harassment.  

 
9. Posters published by the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH) 

including, "California Law Prohibits Workplace Discrimination and Harassment," and for 
districts with five or more employees, "Transgender Rights in the Workplace," "Your Rights and 
Obligations as a Pregnant Employee," and "Family Care and Medical Leave and Pregnancy 
Disability Leave" (Government Code 12950).  See AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment 
and AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave. 
 

1.10. If the district has formed a community facilities district (Mello-Roos district) for the 
acquisition or improvement of school facilities, a copy of the annual report for the fiscal year if 
requested pursuant to Government Code 53343.1, the report provided to the California Debt and 
Investment Advisory Commission pursuant to Government Code 53359.5, and the report 
provided to the State Controller's office pursuant to Government Code 12463.2 (Government 
Code 53343.2).  Post within seven months after the last day of the fiscal year. See BP 7212 - 
Mello-Roos Districts. 

 
Other Postings 
 
The following materials are also required to be posted on the district web site.  However, there are no 
specific requirements related to where they are posted on the web site.   
 

1. The Special Education Local Plan Area's approved comprehensive local plan for special 
education, annual budget plan, annual service plan, and annual assurances support plan and any 
updates or revisions to the plans (Education Code 56205.5).  See AR 0430 - Comprehensive 
Local Plan for Special Education. 
 

2. The district's nondiscrimination policy and regulation, including the complaint procedure and the 
compliance coordinator's contact information (34 CFR 100.6, 106.8).  See BP 0410 - 
Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities and AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in 
Employment.  
  

3. Training materials used to train the Title IX Coordinator, investigator(s), decision- 
makerdecisionmaker(s), and any person(s) who facilitate an informal resolution process in 
response to a Title IX sexual harassment complaint (34 CFR 106.45). See AR 
4119.12/4219.12/4319.12- Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures and AR 5145.71 - 
Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures. 

 
4. Contact information for the district's liaison(s) for homeless students and other persons as 

required by Education Code 48852.6, and information regarding the educational rights and 
resources available to persons experiencing homelessness  (Education Code 48852.6).  See AR 
6173 - Education for Homeless Children. 
  



Page 3 of 4 

1.5. For all schools offering competitive athletics, the total enrollment of the school classified by 
gender, the number of students enrolled at the school who participate in competitive athletics 
classified by gender, and the number of boys' and girls' teams classified by sport and by 
competition level (Education Code 221.9). The information shall be posted at the end of the 
school year on the school's web site or, if the school  does not have a web site, on the district's 
web site.  See AR 6145.2 - Athletic Competition. 

 
2.6. If the district has interdistrict attendance agreement(s), the procedures and timelines for 

requesting an interdistrict transfer permit, including, but not limited to, a link to the board's policy 
on interdistrict attendance, the date that the district will begin accepting applications, reasons that 
the district may approve/deny the request, the process for appeal, that failure to meet timelines 
will be deemed an abandonment of the request, and the condition under which an exitingexisting 
interdistrict transfer permit may be revoked or rescinded (Education Code 46600.2).  See AR 
5117 - Interdistrict Transfer. 

 
3.7. If the district has elected to be a school district of choice, application information including, at a 

minimum, any applicable form, the timeline for a transfer, and an explanation of the selection 
process (Education Code 48301).  See AR 5117 -  Interdistrict Transfer. 

 
4.8. For districts that offer grade 9, the district's policy and protocols related to student placement in 

mathematics courses (Education Code 51224.7).  See AR 6152.1 - Placement in Mathematics 
Courses. 

 
5.9. The section(s) of the district's employee code of conduct addressing interactions with students 

(Education Code 44050).  Post these section(s) or a link to them on each  school's web site or, if a 
school does not have its own web site, on the district's web site in a manner that is accessible to 
the public without a password.  See BP 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards and 
BP 4119.24/4219.24/4319.24 - Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions. 

 
6.10. The district's meal payment collection policy and procedures (CDE Nutrition Services 

Division Management Bulletin SNP-03-2017). U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) 
Memorandum SP 46-2016).  See BP/AR 3551 - Food Services Operations/Cafeteria Fund. 

 
7.11. If the district includes information about the free and reduced-priced meal program on its 

web site, a nondiscrimination statement about the district's status as an equal opportunity provider 
and the address of the agency with responsibility to handle complaints made against the district 
(U.S. Department of Agriculture'sUSDA FNS Instruction 113-1).  For the required wording of the 
statement, see E 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance. 

 
8.12. The school's or district's integrated pest management plan, whenever a school chooses to 

use a pesticide not exempted pursuant to Education Code 17610.5 (Education Code 
17611.5).  Post on the school's web site or, if the school does not have a web site, then on the 
district's web site.  See AR 3514.2 Integrated Pest Management. 

 
13. When the California Environmental Quality Act requires an environmental impact report, 

negative declaration, or mitigated negative declaration, those environmental review documents, 
public notice of the preparation and availability of such documents within a reasonable period of 
time prior to certification of the environmental impact report, adoption of a negative declaration, 
or determination that a proposed subsequent project will have no additional significant effect on 
the environment, and specified notices when written requests for notices have been filed (Public 
Resources Code 21082.1, 21092, 21092.2). 



Page 4 of 4 

 
9.14. When a citizens' oversight committee is formed after the approval of a bond under the 55 

percent majority threshold, the committee's minutes, documents received, and reports issued 
(Education Code 15280).  See AR 7214 - General Obligation Bonds. 
 

10.15. Copy of each school's school accountability report card, on or before February 1 of each 
year (Education Code 35258).  See BP 0510 - School Accountability Report Card. 

 
4.16. Results of the Western Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC) or other accrediting 

agency's inspection of a school, within 60 days of receiving the results. (This notification could 
be made in writing to parents/guardians instead of or in addition to posting the results on the 
district's web site.)  In addition, if a school loses its WASC or other agency's accreditation, the 
district and school shall post on their web sites a notice of the loss of accreditation and potential 
consequences (Education Code 35178.4).  See BP 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program. 

 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Exhibit version: December 14, 2020 
revised: September 13, 2022 



Page 1 of 4 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Community Relations 
Regulation 1312.4: Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures 

 

 
Types of Complaints 
 
The district shall use the procedures described in this administrative regulation only to investigate and 
resolve the following: 
 

1. Complaints regarding the insufficiency of textbooks and instructional materials, including any 
complaint alleging that:  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4681) 
   

a. A student, including an English learner, does not have standards-aligned textbooks or 
instructional materials or state- or district-adopted textbooks or other required 
instructional materials to use in class. 
  

b. A student does not have access to textbooks or instructional materials to use at home or 
after school. This does not require two sets of textbooks or instructional materials for 
each student. 
  

c. Textbooks or instructional materials are in poor or unusable condition, have missing 
pages, or are unreadable due to damage. 
  

d. A student was provided photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or 
instructional materials to address a shortage of textbooks or instructional materials. 
  

2. Complaints regarding teacher vacancy or misassignment, including any complaint alleging 
that:  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4682) 
   

a. A semester begins and a teacher vacancy exists. 
  

b. A teacher who lacks credentials or training to teach English learners is assigned to teach a 
class with more than 20 percent English learners in the class. 
  

c. A teacher is assigned to teach a class for which the teacher lacks subject matter 
competency. 
 
Teacher vacancy means a position to which a single designated certificated employee has 
not been assigned at the beginning of the year for an entire year or, if the position is for a 
one-semester course, a position to which a single designated certificated employee has 
not been assigned at the beginning of the semester for an entire semester.  (Education 
Code 35186; 5 CCR 4600) 
 
Beginning of the year or semester means the first day classes necessary to serve all the 
students enrolled are established with a single designated certificated employee assigned 
for the duration of the class, but not later than 20 working days aftertime period from the 
first day students attend classes for thata year-long course or semester.  (5 CCR 4600)-
long course though not later than 20 business days afterwards.  



Page 2 of 4 

 
Misassignment means the placement of a certificated employee in a teaching or services 
position for which the employee does not hold a legally recognized certificate or 
credential or the placement of a certificated employee in a teaching or services position 
that the employee is not otherwise authorized by statute to hold.  (Education Code 35186; 
5 CCR 4600) 
  

3. Complaints regarding the condition of school facilities, including any complaint alleging 
that:  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4683) 
   

a. A condition poses an emergency or urgent threat to the health or safety of students or 
staff. 
 
Emergency or urgent threat means structures or systems that are in a condition that poses 
a threat to the health and safety of students or staff while at school, including, but not 
limited to, gas leaks; nonfunctioning heating, ventilation, fire sprinklers, or air-
conditioning systems; electrical power failure; major sewer line stoppage; major pest or 
vermin infestation; broken windows or exterior doors or gates that will not lock and that 
pose a security risk; abatement of hazardous materials previously undiscovered that pose 
an immediate threat to students or staff; structural damage creating a hazardous or 
uninhabitable condition; or any other condition deemed appropriate.  (Education Code 
17592.72) 
  

b. A school restroom has not been cleaned, maintained, or kept open in accordance with 
Education Code 35292.5. 
 
Clean or maintained school restroom means a school restroom has been cleaned or 
maintained regularly, is fully operational, or has been stocked at all times with toilet 
paper, soap, or paper towels or functional hand dryers.  (Education Code 35292.5) 
 
Open restroom means the school has kept all restrooms open during school hours when 
students are not in classes and has kept a sufficient number of restrooms open during 
school hours when students are in classes. This does not apply when the temporary 
closing of the restroom is necessary for student safety or to make repairs.  (Education 
Code 35292.5) 

 
In any district school serving any of grades 6-12 in which 40 percent or more of the students in the 
school or school attendance area are from low-income families, as defined in 20 USC 6314, a 
complaint may be filed alleging noncompliance with the requirement of Education Code 35292.6 
to stock, at all times, at least halfstock and make available and accessible free of cost, an adequate 
supply of the restrooms in the school with feminine hygienemenstrual products and to not charge 
students for the use of such products.in every women’s and all-gender restroom, and in at least one 
men’s restroom.  (Education Code 35292.6)  
 
Forms and Notices 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure a Williams complaint form is available at each school. 
However, complainants need not use the district's complaint form in order to file a 
complaint.  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4680) 
 



Page 3 of 4 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's complaint form specifies the location 
for filing a complaint and contains a space to indicate whether the complainant desires a response 
to the complaint. A complainant may add as much text to explain the complaint as 
desired.  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4680) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall post in each K-12 classroom in each school a notice 
containing the components specified in Education Code 35186. (Education Code 35186)  
 
Filing of Complaint 
 
A complaint alleging any condition(s) specified in the section "Types of Complaints" above shall 
be filed with the principal or designee at the school in which the complaint arises.  A complaint 
about problems beyond the authority of the principal shall be forwarded to the Superintendent or 
designee in a timely manner, but not to exceed 10 working days.  Complaints may be filed 
anonymously.  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4680) 
 
Investigation and Response 
 
The principal or a designee of the Superintendent shall make all reasonable efforts to investigate 
any problem within theirthe principal's or designee's authority.  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 
4685) 
 
The principal or Superintendent's designee shall remedy a valid complaint within a reasonable time 
period not to exceed 30 working days from the date the complaint was received.  (Education Code 
35186; 5 CCR 4685) 
 
If the complainant has indicated on the complaint form a desire to receive a response to the 
complaint, the principal or Superintendent's designee shall report thesend written resolution of the 
complaint to the mailing address of the complainant as indicated on the complaint within 45 
working days of the initial filing of the complaint.  If the principal makes this report, the 
information shall be reported at the same time to the Superintendent or designee.    (Education 
Code 35186; 5 CCR 4680, 4685) 
 
When Education Code 48985 is applicable and the complainant has requested a response, the 
response shall be written in English and in the primary language in which the complaint was 
filed.  (Education Code 35186) 
 
If a complainant is not satisfied with the resolution of a complaint, the complainant has the right to 
describe the complaint to the Governing Board at a regularly scheduled meeting.  (Education Code 
35186; 5 CCR 4686) 
 
For any complaint concerning a facilities condition that poses an emergency or urgent threat to the 
health or safety of students or staff as described in Item #3a in the section "Types of Complaints" 
above, a complainant who is not satisfied with the resolution proffered by the principal or 
Superintendent or designee may file an appeal to the Superintendent of Public Instruction within 
15 days of receiving the district's response. The complainant shall comply with the appeal 
requirements specified in 5 CCR 4632.  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4687) 
 
All complaints and written responses shall be public records.  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 
4686) 



Page 4 of 4 

 
Reports 
 
On a quarterly basis, the Superintendent or designee shall report, to the Board at a regularly 
scheduled Board meeting and to the County Superintendent of Schools, summarized data on the 
nature and resolution of all complaints. The report shall include the number of complaints by 
general subject area with the number of resolved and unresolved complaints.  (Education Code 
35186; 5 CCR 4686) 
 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: April 10, 2007 
revised: August 11, 2009 
revised: February 8, 2011 
revised: October 14, 2014 
revised: May 14, 2019 
revised: September 13, 2022 



Page 1 of 3 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Community Relations 
Exhibit (2) 1312.4: Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures 

 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Community Relations 
 
Exhibit (2) 1312.4 – Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures 
 

K-12 COMPLAINT FORM: 
WILLIAMS UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 

 
Education Code 35186 creates a procedure for the filing of complaints concerning deficiencies related to 
instructional materials, conditions of facilities that are not maintained in a clean or safe manner or in good 
repair, or teacher vacancy or misassignment. The complaint and response are public documents as 
provided by law. Complaints may be filed anonymously. However, if you wish to receive a response to 
your complaint, you must provide the contact information below. 
 
Response requested?  ___ Yes   ___ No 
 
Contact information:  (if response is requested) 
Name:  ____________________________________________________________________ 
Address:  __________________________________________________________________ 
Phone number:   Day:  ___________________     Evening:  ____________________________ 
E-mail address, if any:  _______________________________________________________ 
 
Date problem was observed:  __________________________________________________ 
 
Location of the problem that is the subject of this complaint: 
School name/address:  ________________________________________________________ 
Course title/grade level and teacher name:  ________________________________________ 
Room number/name of room/location of facility:  __________________________________ 
 
Only the following issues may be the subject of this complaint process.  If you wish to complain 
about an issue not specified below, please contact the school or district for the appropriate district 
complaint procedure. 
 
Specific issue(s) of the complaint:  (Please check all that apply. A complaint may contain more than one 
allegation.)  
 

1. Textbooks and instructional materials:  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4681) 
   

o A student, including an English learner, does not have standards-aligned textbooks or 
instructional materials or state- or district-adopted textbooks or other required 
instructional materials to use in class. 
  



Page 2 of 3 

o A student does not have access to textbooks or instructional materials to use at home or 
after school. This does not require two sets of textbooks or instructional materials for 
each student. 
  

o Textbooks or instructional materials are in poor or unusable condition, have missing 
pages, or are unreadable due to damage. 
  

o A student was provided photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or 
instructional materials to address a shortage of textbooks or instructional materials. 
  

2. Teacher vacancy or misassignment:  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4682) 
   

o A semester begins and a teacher vacancy exists. A teacher vacancy is a position to which 
a single designated certificated employee has not been assigned at the beginning of the 
school year for an entire year or, if the position is for a one-semester course, a position to 
which a single designated certificated employee has not been assigned at the beginning of 
a semester for an entire semester. 
  

o A teacher who lacks credentials or training to teach English learners is assigned to teach a 
class with more than 20 percent English learners in the class. 
  

o A teacher is assigned to teach a class for which the teacher lacks subject matter 
competency. 
  

3. Facilities conditions:  (Education Code 17592.72, 35186, 35292.5, 35292.6; 5 CCR 4683) 
   

o A condition exists that poses an emergency or urgent threat to the health or safety of 
students or staff including gas leaks; nonfunctioning heating, ventilation, fire sprinklers, 
or air-conditioning systems; electrical power failure; major sewer line stoppage; major 
pest or vermin infestation; broken windows or exterior doors or gates that will not lock 
and that pose a security risk; abatement of hazardous materials previously undiscovered 
that pose an immediate threat to students or staff; structural damage creating a hazardous 
or uninhabitable condition; and any other condition deemed appropriate by the district. 
  

o A school restroom has not been cleaned or maintained regularly, is not fully operational, 
or has not been stocked at all times with toilet paper, soap, or paper towels or functional 
hand dryers. 
 

o For a school that serves students in serving any of grades 6-12 with 40 percent of more 
of its students from low-income families, as defined, the school has not stocked at least 
half of its restrooms with feminine products , at all times, stocked and made those 
products available to students at no and accessible free of cost., an adequate supply of 
menstrual products in every women’s and all-gender restroom, and in at least one 
men’s restroom. 
  

o The school has not kept all restrooms open during school hours when students are not in 
classes and has not kept a sufficient number of restrooms open during school hours when 
students are in classes. This does not apply when temporary closing of the restroom is 
necessary for student safety or to make repairs. 

 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 

 
Please describe the issue of your complaint in detail. You may attach additional pages and include as 
much text as necessary to fully describe the situation. For complaints regarding facilities conditions, 
please describe the emergency or urgent facilities condition and how that condition poses a threat to the 
health or safety of students or staff. 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Please file this complaint at the following location: 
 
Downieville Schools, Principal 
PO Drawer B, 130 School Street 
Downieville, CA  95936 
 
Loyalton Elementary School, Principal 
PO Box 127, 111 Beckwith Road 
Loyalton, CA 96118 
 
Loyalton High School, Principal 
PO Box 37, 700 Fourth Street 
Loyalton, CA 96118 
 
Superintendent 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
PO Box 955, 109 Beckwith Road 
Loyalton, CA 96118 
 
Please provide a signature below. If you wish to remain anonymous, a signature is not required.  
However, all complaints, even anonymous ones, should be dated. 
 
 
_______________________________________                      _______________________ 
                         (Signature)                                                                      (Date) 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Exhibit version: April 10, 2007 
revised: September 11, 2012 
revised: June 17, 2013 
revised: October 14, 2014 
revised: May 14, 2019 
revised: September 13, 2022 





Page 1 of 1 
Board Policy Manual 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Business and Noninstructional Operations 
Policy 3110: Transfer Of Funds 

 

 
The Governing Board recognizes its responsibility to monitor the county’s/district's fiscal practices to 
ensure accountability regarding the expenditure of public funds and compliance with legal requirements. 
 
The total amount budgeted by the district for each major classification of expenditures, as listed in the 
California Department of Education's budget forms, shall be the maximum amount which the district may 
expend for that classification for the school year.  (Education Code 42600) 
 
However, when it is in the best interest of the district, the Board may: 

1. At any time, adopt a written resolution providing for transfers from the designated fund balance 
or the unappropriated fund balance to any expenditure classification or between 
classifications.  The resolution shall be filed with the County Superintendent of Schools and the 
County Auditor.  (Education Code 42600) 
  

2. Direct the temporary transfer of monies held in any district fund or account to another fund or 
account as necessary for the payment of obligations. Such borrowing shall occur only when the 
fund or account receiving the money will earn sufficient income during the current fiscal year to 
repay the amount transferred.  No more than 75 percent of the maximum amount held in any fund 
or account during the current fiscal year may be transferred.  Amounts transferred shall be repaid 
in the same fiscal year, or in the following fiscal year if the transfer takes place within the final 
120 calendar days of a fiscal year.  (Education Code 42603) 
For the 2020-21 and 2021-22 fiscal years only, if the state defers any payments owed to districts, 
the Board may direct the temporary transfer of up to 85 percent of the maximum amount held in 
any fund or account during the current fiscal year for the payment of obligations.  Such 
borrowing shall occur only when the fund or account receiving the money will earn sufficient 
income during the current fiscal year to repay the amount transferred.  Prior to exercising this 
authority, the Board shall hold a public hearing and adopt a resolution authorizing such 
transfer.  (Education Code 42603.1) 
 

3. At the close of a school year, request that the County Superintendent make transfers between the 
designated fund balance or the unappropriated fund balance and any expenditure classification(s), 
or balance any expenditure classifications of the district budget as necessary for the payment of 
obligations incurred during that school year.  (Education Code 42601) 
  

4. If any special reserve funds that are maintained for capital outlay or other purposes pursuant to 
Education Code 42842 are not actually encumbered for ongoing expenses, transfer those monies 
into the general fund for the general operating purposes of the district.  If any monies remain in 
the special reserve fund at the conclusion of a project, the Board may submit a written request to 
the County Superintendent, Auditor, and Treasurer to discontinue the special reserve fund and 
transfer those monies to the district's general fund.  (Education Code 42841-42843) 
  

5. Transfer monies between other funds or accounts when authorized by law. 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007  
revised: March 13, 2012 
revised: November 12, 2013 
revised: April 13, 2021 
revised: September 13, 2022 





Page 1 of 1 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Business and Noninstructional Operations 
Policy 3523: Electronic Signatures **NEW** 

 

 
The Governing Board believes that the use of electronic records and signatures is a convenient paperless 
option that can increase efficiency in commercial and administrative transactions, reduce costs, and 
contribute to environmental sustainability in district operations. The Board authorizes the use of 
electronic signatures in district operations when authorized by law.  
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that any electronic signature utilized by the district conforms 
with criteria described in law and that the level of security is sufficient for the transaction being 
conducted.  (Government Code 16.5; 2 CCR 22003, 22005) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall retain electronic records in accordance with law and regulations, 
and as specified in BP/AR 3580 - District Records. 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: September 13, 2022 





Page 1 of 1 
Board Policy Manual 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Business and Noninstructional Operations 
Regulation 3523: Electronic Signatures **NEW** 

 

 
When authorized by law, electronic signatures may be used in the operation of district business and/or 
administration. 
 
In any business transaction, an electronic signature shall only be used when each party has agreed to 
conduct the transaction by electronic means. In other district operations, the Superintendent or designee 
may require the use of an electronic signature.  (Civil Code 1633.5; 15 USC 7001) 
 
A digital signature is defined as an electronic identifier, created by computer, intended by the party using 
it to have the same force and effect as the use of a manual signature. (Government Code 16.5) 
 
An electronic signature consists of an electronic sound, symbol, or process attached to or logically 
associated with an electronic record and executed or adopted by a person with the intent to sign the 
electronic record.  (Civil Code 1633.2) 
 
In order for an electronic signature to be used, the electronic signature shall be:  (Government Code 16.5; 
2 CCR 22002)  

1. Unique to the person using it 

2. Capable of verification 

3. Under the sole control of the person using it 

4. Linked to data in such a manner that if the data are changed the electronic signature is invalidated 

5. Conform to 2 CCR 22000-22005 
 
Prior to accepting an electronic signature, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure the following:  (2 
CCR 22005)  

1. That the signature is created by acceptable technology pursuant to 2 CCR 22003 
  

2. That the level of security used to identify the signer of the document and to transmit the signature 
is sufficient for the transaction being conducted  
  

3. That, if a certificate is a required component of the electronic signature, the certificate format 
used by the signer is sufficient for the security and interoperability needs of the district.   

If a notarized signature is required with respect to an electronic signature, the electronic signature of the 
notary public together with all of the other information required by law to be included in a notarization 
shall accompany the electronic signature.  (Civil Code 1633.11) 
 
If a statement is required to be signed under penalty of perjury, the electronic signature shall include all of 
the information to which the declaration pertains together with a declaration under penalty of perjury by 
the person who submits the electronic signature that the information is true and correct.  (Civil Code 
1633.11) 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: September 13, 2022 





Page 1 of 5 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Personnel 
Regulation 4112.2: Certification 

 

 
Verification of Credentials 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall verify that each employee in a position requiring certification 
qualifications possesses a valid certification document issued by the Commission on Teacher 
Credentialing (CTC). Such verification shall occur not later than 60 days after the commencement of 
employment or the renewal of a credential.  (Education Code 44857) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall verify that any person who is employed by the district 
while his/her CTC is processing the application for certification is being processed by the CTC 
possesses a temporary certificate based on a demonstration of basic skills and completion of a 
criminal background check.  (Education Code 44332, 44332.5, 44332.6) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of the appropriate certification of all employees 
serving in certificated positions. 
 
Basic Skills Proficiency 
 
The district shall not initially hire a person in a position requiring certification, on a permanent, 
temporary, or substitute basis, unless that person has demonstrated basic skills proficiency in reading, 
writing, and mathematics or is specifically exempted from the requirement by law.  (Education Code 
44252, 44252.6, 44830) 
 
A person may demonstrate basic skills proficiency in reading, writing, and mathematics by:   
 

1. Passage of the California Basic Educational Skills Test (CBEST)  (Education Code 44252.5) 
  

2. Passage of the California Subject Examinations for Teachers plus Writing Skills Examination 
  

3. Passage of the California State University (CSU) Early Assessment Program or the CSU 
Placement Examinations  (Education Code 44252) 
  

4. Achieving a qualifying score on the Scholastic Aptitude Test or the American College Test 
(Education Code 44252) 
  

5. Achieving a qualifying score on College Board Advanced Placement Examinations 
  

6. Passage of a basic skills examination from another state 
 

7.  Qualifying coursework  (Education Code 44252) 
 

8.   Qualifying coursework and exams  (Education Code 44252) 
 
The district may hire a certificated employee who has not taken a test of basic skills proficiency 
if he/shethe employee has not yet been afforded the opportunity to take the test, provided that 
he/shethe employee takes the test at the earliest opportunity. The employee may remain employed 
by the district pending the receipt of his/herthe test results.  (Education Code 44830) 



Page 2 of 5 

 
An out-of-state prepared teacher shall meet the basic skills requirement within one year of being 
issued a California preliminary credential by the CTC unless he/shethe teacher has completed a 
basic skills proficiency test in another state, passed a basic skills proficiency test developed and 
administered by the district, by cooperating districts or by the county office of education (COE), or is 
otherwise exempted by law.  The district shall develop a basic skills proficiency test, which shall 
be at least equivalent to the district test required for high school graduation, for purposes of 
assessing out-of-state prepared teachers pending completion of the basic skills 
requirement.  (Education Code 44252, 44274.2; 5 CCR 80071.4, 80413.3) 
 
Any person holding or applying for a "designated subjects special subjects" credential which 
does not require possession of a bachelor's degree shall pass a district proficiency test in lieu of 
meeting the state basic skills proficiency requirement.  (Education Code 44252, 44830) 
 
The district may charge a fee to cover the costs of developing, administering, and grading the 
district proficiency test.  (Education Code 44252, 44830) 
 
Short-Term Staff Permit 
 
The district may request that the CTC issue a short-term staff permit (STSP) to a qualified applicant 
whenever there is a need to immediately fill a classroom based on unforeseen circumstances, including, 
but not limited to:  (5 CCR 80021) 
 

1. Enrollment adjustments requiring the addition of another teacher 
  

2. Inability of the teacher of record to finish the school year due to approved leave or illness 
  

3. The applicant's need for additional time to complete preservice requirements for enrollment into 
an approved interninternship program 
  

4. Inability of the applicant to enroll in an approved interninternship program due to timelines or 
lack of space in the program 
  

5. Unavailability of a third-year extension of an interninternship program or the applicant's 
withdrawal from an interninternship program 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the applicant possesses a bachelor's or higher degree 
from a regionally accredited college or university, has met the basic skills proficiency requirement unless 
exempted by state law or regulations, and has satisfied the coursework/experience requirements specified 
in 5 CCR 80021 for the multiple subject, single subject, or education specialist STSP as appropriate.  (5 
CCR 80021) 
 
When requesting issuance of an STSP, the Superintendent or designee shall submit to the CTC:  (5 CCR 
80021) 
 

1. Verification that the district has conducted a local recruitment for the permit being requested 
 

2. Verification that the district has provided the permit holder with orientation to the curriculum and 
to instruction and classroom management techniques and has assigned a mentor teacher for the 
term of the permit 
 

3. Written justification for the permit signed by the Superintendent or designee 



Page 3 of 5 

 
The holder of an STSP may be assigned to provide the same service as a holder of a multiple subject, 
single subject, or education specialist credential in accordance with the authorizations specified on the 
permit.  (5 CCR 80021) 
 
Provisional Internship Permit 
 
Before requesting that the CTC issue a provisional internship permit (PIP), the district shall 
conduct a diligent search for a suitable credentialed teacher or intern, including, but not limited 
to, distributing job announcements, contacting college and university placement centers, and 
advertising in print or electronic media.  (5 CCR 80021.1) 
 
Whenever a suitable credentialed teacher cannot be found after a diligent search, the 
Superintendent or designee may request that the CTC issue a PIP to an applicant who possesses a 
bachelor's or higher degree from a regionally accredited college or university, has met the basic 
skills proficiency requirement unless exempted by state law or regulations, and has satisfied the 
coursework/experience requirements specified in 5 CCR 80021.1 for the multiple subject, single 
subject, or education specialist PIP as appropriate.  (5 CCR 80021.1) 
 
When submitting the request for a PIP, the district shall provide verification of all of the following:  (5 
CCR 80021.1, 80026.5) 
 

1. A diligent search has been conducted for a suitable credentialed teacher or suitable qualified 
intern as evidenced by documentation of the search. 
  

2. Orientation, guidance, and assistance shall be provided to the permit holder as specified in 5 CCR 
80026.5. 
 
The orientation shall include, but not be limited to, an overview of the curriculum the permit 
holder is expected to teach and effective instruction and classroom management techniques at the 
permit holder's assigned level. The permit holder also shall receive guidance and assistance from 
an experienced educator who is a certificated district employee or a certificated retiree from a 
California district or COE and who has completed at least three years of full-time classroom 
teaching experience. 
  

3. The district shall assist the permit holder in developing a personalized plan through a district-
selected assessment that would lead to subject-matter competence related to the permit. 
  

4. The district shall assist the permit holder to seek and enroll in subject-matter training, such as 
workshops or seminars and site-based courses, along with training in test-taking strategies, and 
shall assist the permit holder in meeting the credential subject-matter competence requirement 
related to the permit. 
  

5. A notice of intent to employ the applicant in the identified position has been made public. 
 
The district shall submit a copy of the agenda item presented at a publican open Governing Board 
of Education meeting which shall state the name of the applicant, the assignment in which the 
applicant will be employed including the name of the school, subject(s), and grade(s) that 
he/shethe applicant will be teaching, and that the applicant will be employed on the basis of a 
PIP. The district also shall submit a signed statement from the Superintendent or designee that the 
agenda item was acted upon favorably. 
  

6.  The candidate has been apprised of steps to earn a credential and enroll in an intern program. 



Page 4 of 5 

 
The holder of a PIP may be assigned to provide the same service as a holder of a multiple subject, single 
subject, or education specialist credential in accordance with the authorizations specified on the 
permit.  (5 CCR 80021.1) 
 
Teaching Permit for Statutory Leave 
 
Whenever there is an anticipated need for the district to temporarily fill the teaching assignment 
of a teacher of record who will be on sick leave, differential sick leave, industrial accident or 
illness leave, pregnancy disability leave, or family care and medical leave under the federal 
Family and Medical Leave Act or California Family Rights Act, the Superintendent or designee 
may request that the CTC issue a Teaching Permit for Statutory Leave (TPSL) to a qualified 
individual who will be serving as the interim teacher of record. Prior to submitting an application 
to the CTC, the district shall provide the applicant with 45 hours of preparation in the content 
areas listed in 5 CCR 80022.  (5 CCR 80022) 
 
A request for the TPSL shall only be submitted if the district has made reasonable efforts to hire a 
substitute with a full teaching credential that matches the setting and/or subject for the statutory leave 
position and no such candidate is available.  (5 CCR 80022) 
 
The district shall verify to the CTC that it will provide the interim teacher:  (5 CCR 80022) 
 

1. An orientation to the assignment before or during the first month of service in the statutory leave 
assignment 
  

2. An average of two hours of mentoring, support, and/or coaching per week through a system of 
support coordinated and/or provided by a mentor who possesses a valid life or clear credential 
that would also authorize service in the statutory leave assignment 
  

3. Lesson plans for the first four weeks of the assignment as well as continued assistance in the 
development of curriculum, lesson planning, and individualized education programs 

 
The holder of the TPSL may serve as the interim teacher of record for up to the full length of the leave(s) 
during the school year.  (5 CCR 80022) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain documentation on the assignment in accordance with 5 
CCR 80022. He/she shall and annually report data on the use of the TPSL to the County Superintendent 
of Schools for assignment monitoring pursuant to Education Code 44258.9.  (5 CCR 80022) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may annually request renewal of the TPSL, provided that no substitute 
with a full teaching credential is available for the assignment. The application for each reissuance shall 
include verification that the interim teacher has completed an additional 45 hours of preparation and the 
district is continuing to provide mentoring in accordance with items #2-3 above.  (5 CCR 80022) 
 
Long-Term Emergency Permits 
 
As necessary, the Superintendent or designee may request that the CTC issue an emergency 
resource specialist permit, emergency teacher librarian services permit, emergency crosscultural 
language and academic development permit, (CLAD), or emergency bilingual authorization 
permit.  (5 CCR 80024.3.1, 80024.6, 80024.7, 80024.8) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide any first-time recipient of an emergency teaching 
permit with an orientation which, to the extent reasonably feasible, shall occur before he/she 



Page 5 of 5 

beginsbeginning a teaching assignment. The Superintendent or designee may vary the nature, 
content, and duration of the orientation to match the amount of training and experience 
previously completed by the emergency permit teacher. The orientation shall include, but not be 
limited to, the curriculum the teacher is expected to teach and effective techniques of classroom 
instruction and classroom management at the assigned grade-level span. The emergency permit 
holder also shall receive guidance and assistance from an experienced educator who is a 
certificated district employee or a certificated retiree from a California district or county office of 
educationCOE and who has completed at least three years of full-time classroom teaching 
experience.  (5 CCR 80026.5) 
 
Substitute Teaching Permits 
 
The district may employ a person whose credential or permit authorizes substitute teaching services, 
provided that:  
 

1. A person holding an emergency 30-day substitute teaching permit, STSP, PIP, TPSL, or any valid 
teaching or services credential that requires at least a bachelor's degree and completion of the 
California Basic Educational Skills TestCBEST, shall not serve as a substitute for more than 30 
days for any one teacher during the school year. He/she shall not serve or as a substitute in a 
special education classroom for more than 20 days for any one teacher during the school year.  (5 
CCR 80025, 80025.3, 80025.4) 
  

2. A person with an emergency career substitute teaching permit shall not serve as a substitute for 
more than 60 days for any one teacher during the school year.  (5 CCR 80025.1) 
  

3. A person with an emergency substitute teaching permit for prospective teachers shall not serve as 
a substitute for more than 30 days for any one teacher during the school year and not more than 
90 days total during the school year.  (5 CCR 80025.2) 
  

4. A person with an emergency designated subjects 30-day substitute teaching permit for career 
technical education shall teach only in a program of technical, trade, or vocational education and 
shall not serve as a substitute for more than 30 days for any one teacher during the school 
year.  (5 CCR 80025.5) 

 
Before employing a person with an emergency substitute permit pursuant to item #1 or 4 above, the 
Superintendent or designee shall prepare and keep on file a signed Statement of Need for the school year. 
The Statement of Need shall describe the situation or circumstances that necessitate the use of a 30-day 
substitute permit holder and state either that a credentialed person is not available or that the available 
credentialed person does not meet the district's specified employment criteria.  (5 CCR 80025, 80025.5) 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: April 10, 2007 
revised: September 13, 2011 
revised: October 14, 2014 
revised: August 8, 2017 
revised: September 13, 2022 





Page 1 of 12 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Personnel 
Regulation 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8: Family Care And Medical Leave 

 

 
The district shall not deny any eligible employee the right to family care or medical leave pursuant to the 
Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) or the California Family Rights Act (CFRA), or leave for 
pregnancy disability pursuant to Californiato Pregnancy Disability Leave (PDL).  ), when an employee is 
disabled by a pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical condition.  The district shall not interfere with, 
restrain, or deny the exercise of an employee's right to any such leave, nor shall the district discharge, 
discriminate against, or retaliate against an employee for taking such leave, opposing or challenging an 
unlawful employment practice in relation to any of these laws, or being involved in any related inquiry or 
proceeding.  (Government Code 12945, 12945.2; 2 CCR 11094; 29 USC 2615 
 
Definitions 
 
The words and phrases defined below shall have the same meaning throughout this administrative 
regulation except where a different meaning is otherwise specified. 
 
Child means a biological, adopted, or foster child; a stepchild; a legal ward; or a person to whom the 
employee stands in loco parentis. For purposes of CFRA leave, child also includes a child of a registered 
domestic partner.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11087; 29 USC 2611) 
 
Eligible employee, for FMLA and CFRA purposes, means an employee who has been employed with the 
district for at least 12 months and who has at least 1,250 hours of service with the district during the 12 
months immediately preceding the leave. However, these requirements shall not apply when an employee 
applies for PDL.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11087; 29 USC 2611; 29 CFR 825.110) 
 
Eligible family member means an employee's child, parent, or spouse. For purposes of leave to care for a 
family member with a serious health condition pursuant to CFRA, eligible family member includes an 
employee's child, parent, parent-in-law, spouse, registered domestic partner, grandparent, grandchild, or 
sibling.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11087; 29 USC 2612) 
 
Employee disabled by pregnancy means an employee whose health care provider states that the employee 
is:  (2 CCR 11035) 
 

1. Unable because of pregnancy to perform any one or more of the essential functions of the job or 
to perform any of them without undue risk to the employee or other persons or to the pregnancy's 
successful completion 
 

2. Suffering from severe "morning sickness" or needs to take time off for prenatal or postnatal care, 
bed rest, gestational diabetes, pregnancy-induced hypertension, preeclampsia, postpartum 
depression, childbirth, loss or end of pregnancy, recovery from childbirth or loss or end of 
pregnancy, or any other pregnancy-related condition 

 
Parent means a biological, foster, or adoptive parent; a parent-in-law; a stepparent; a legal guardian; or 
another person who stood in loco parentis to the employee when the employee was a child. 
ParentHowever, for FMLA purposes, parent does not include a spouse's parents.  (Government Code 
12945.2; 2 CCR 11087; 29 USC 2611; 29 CFR 825.122) 



Page 2 of 12 

 
Serious health condition means an illness, injury (including, but not limited to, on-the-job injuries), 
impairment, or physical or mental condition of the employee or an eligible family member of the 
employee that involves either inpatient care or continuing treatment, including treatment for substance 
abuse, as follows:  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11087, 11097; 29 USC 2611, 2612; 29 CFR 
825.113-825.115) 
 

1. Inpatient care in a hospital, hospice, or residential health care facility, any subsequent treatment 
in connection with such inpatient care, or any period of incapacity 
 
A person is considered an inpatient when formally admitted to a health care facility with the 
expectation of remaining overnight and occupying a bed, even if it later develops that the person 
can be discharged or transferred to another facility and does not actually remain overnight. 
 
Incapacity means the inability to work, attend school, or perform other regular daily activities due 
to a serious health condition, its treatment, or the recovery that it requires. 
  

2. Continuing treatment or continuing supervision by a health care provider, including one or more 
of the following: 
   

a. A period of incapacity of more than three consecutive full days 
 

b. Any period of incapacity or treatment for such incapacity due to a chronic serious health 
condition 
 

c. Any period of incapacity due to pregnancy or for prenatal care under FMLA 
 

d. Any period of incapacity which is permanent or long term due to a condition for which 
treatment may not be effective 
  

e. Any period of absence to receive multiple treatments, including recovery, by a health 
care provider 

 
Spouse means a partner in marriage as defined in Family Code 300, including same sex partners in 
marriage.  For purposes of CFRA leave, spouse also includes a registered domestic partner within the 
meaning of Family Code 297-297.5.  (Family Code 297, 297.5, 300; 2 CCR 11087; 29 CFR 825.122) 
 
Eligibility/Purposes of Leave 
 
The district shall grant FMLA or CFRA leave to eligible employees for any of the following 
reasons:  (Government Code 12945.2; 29 USC 2612; 29 CFR 825.112, 825.126, 825.127) 
 

1. The birth of a child of the employee or placement of a child with the employee in connection with 
the employee's adoption or foster care of the child (parental leave) 
 
2.        To  

2. The care for the employee'sof an eligible family member with a serious health condition 
 

3. The employee's own serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform one or 
more essentialthe job functions of the position 
 
4.        Any 



Page 3 of 12 

4. A qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that the employee's spouse, child, parent, or, for 
CFRA leave only, a registered domestic partner, is a military member on covered active duty or 
call to covered active duty (or has been notified of an impending call or order to covered active 
duty) 
 
5.        To 

5. The care forof a covered servicemember with a serious injury or illness ifwhen the covered 
servicememberemployee is the employee'sa spouse, child, parent, or next of kin, as defined of the 
covered servicemember 

 
In addition, the district shall grant PDL to any employee who is disabled by pregnancy, childbirth, or 
other related medical condition.  (Government Code 12945; 2 CCR 11037) 
 
Terms of Leave 
 
An eligible employee shall be entitled to a total of 12 work weeks of FMLA or CFRA leave during any 
12-month period, except in the case of leave to care for a covered servicemember as provided under 
"Military Caregiver Leave" below.    To the extent allowed by law, CFRA and FMLA leaves shall run 
concurrently.  In circumstances where the leaves do not run concurrently under the law, the employee 
may take up to 12 work weeks for both CFRA and FMLA, for a total of 24 work weeks.   (Government 
Code 12945.2; 29 USC 2612) 
 
The 12-month period shall coincide with the fiscal year.  (29 CFR 825.200) 
 
In addition, any employee who is disabled by pregnancy, childbirth, or other related condition shall be 
entitled to PDL for the period of the disability not to exceed four months. For a part-time employee, the 
four months shall be calculated on a proportional basis.  (Government Code 12945; 2 CCR 11042) 
 
PDL shall run concurrently with FMLA leave for disability caused by an employee's pregnancy. At the 
end of the employee's FMLA leave for disability caused by pregnancy, or at the end of four months of 
PDL, whichever occurs first, a CFRA-eligible employee may request to take CFRA leave of up to 12 
work weeks, for the reason of the birth of a child or to bond with or care for the child.  (Government Code 
12945, 12945.2; 2 CCR 11046, 11093) 
 
Leave taken for the birth or placement of a child must be concluded within the 12-month period 
beginning on the date of the birth or placement of the child. Such leave does not need to be taken in one 
continuous period of time.  (2 CCR 11090; 29 USC 2612) 
 
Each eligible employee shall be granted up to 12 work weeks for family care and medical leave related to 
the birth or placement of a child, regardless of whether both parents of the child work for the district. 
 
Use/Substitution of Paid Leave 
 
During any otherwise unpaid period of FMLA or CFRA leave, except leave for an employee's own 
serious health condition, an employee shall use accrued paid leave, including, but not limited to, vacation 
leave, personal leave, or family leave. If the leave is for the employee's own serious health condition, the 
employee shall use accrued paid leave, including but not limited to, vacation leave, personal leave, or sick 
leave. During an unpaid period of PDL, the employee shall use any accrued sick leave and may elect to 
use any vacation time or other accrued personal time off.  (Government Code 12945, 12945.2; 2 CCR 
11044, 11092; 29 USC 2612) 



Page 4 of 12 

 
The district and employee may also come to agreement regarding the use of any additional paid or unpaid 
time off instead of using the employee's CFRA leave.  (2 CCR 11092) 
 
Intermittent Leave/Reduced Work or Leave Schedule 
 
PDL and family care and medical leave for the serious health condition of an employee or eligible family 
member may be taken intermittently or on a reduced work or leave schedule when medically necessary, 
as determined by the health care provider of the person with the serious health condition. However, the 
district shall limit leave increments to the shortest period of time that the district's payroll system uses to 
account for absences or use of leave provided it is not to be greater than one hour.  (Government Code 
12945.2; 2 CCR 11042, 11090; 29 USC 2612) 
 
The basic minimum duration of leave for the birth, adoption, or foster care placement of a child shall be 
two weeks. However, the district shall grant a request for such leave of less than two weeks on any two 
occasions.  (2 CCR 11090; 29 USC 2612) 
 
The district may require an employee to transfer temporarily to an available alternative position under any 
of the following circumstances:  (2 CCR 11041, 11090; 29 USC 2612) 
 

1. The employee needs intermittent leave or leave on a reduced work schedule that is foreseeable 
based on a planned medical treatment for the employee or family member. 
 

2. A medical certification is provided by the employee's health care provider that, because of 
pregnancy, the employee has a medical need to take intermittent leave or leave on a reduced work 
schedule. 
 

3. The district agrees to permit intermittent leave or leave on a reduced work schedule due to the 
birth, adoption, or foster care placement of the employee's child. 

 
The alternative position must have equivalent pay and benefits and must better accommodate recurring 
periods of leave than the employee's regular job, and the employee must be qualified for the position. 
Transfer to an alternative position may include altering an existing job to better accommodate the 
employee's need for intermittent leave or a reduced work or leave schedule.  (2 CCR 11041, 11090; 29 
USC 2612) 
 
Request for Leave 
 
The district shall consider an employee's request for PDL or family care and medical leave only if the 
employee provides at least verbal notice sufficient to make the district aware of the need to take the leave 
and the anticipated timing and duration of the leave.  (2 CCR 11050, 11091) 
 
For family care and medical leave, the employee need not expressly assert or mention FMLA/CFRA to 
satisfy this requirement. However, the employee must state the reason the leave is needed (e.g., birth of 
child, medical treatment).  If more information is necessary to determine whether the employee is eligible 
for family care and medical leave, the Superintendent or designee shall inquire further and obtain the 
necessary details of the leave to be taken.  (2 CCR 11091) 
 
The district shall respond to requests for leave as soon as practicable, but no later than five business days 
after receiving the employee's request.  (2 CCR 11091) 



Page 5 of 12 

 
Based on the information provided by the employee, the Superintendent or designee shall designate the 
leave, paid or unpaid, as FMLA/CFRA qualifying leave and shall give notice of such designation to the 
employee. Failure of an employee to respond to permissible inquiries regarding the leave request may 
result in denial of CFRA protection if the district is unable to determine whether the leave is CFRA 
qualifying.  (2 CCR 11091; 29 CFR 825.300) 
 
When an employee is able to foresee the need for PDL or family care and medical leave at least 30 days 
in advance of the leave, the employee shall provide the district with at least 30 days advance notice before 
the leave. When the 30 days' notice is not practicable because of a lack of knowledge of when leave will 
be required to begin, a change in circumstances, a medical emergency, or other good cause, the employee 
shall provide the district with notice as soon as practicable. Failure of an employee to provide required 
notice may result in a denial of leave.  (2 CCR 11050, 11091) 
 
In all instances, the employee shall consult with the Superintendent or designee and make a reasonable 
effort to schedule, subject to the health care provider's approval, any planned appointment or medical 
treatment or supervision so as to minimize disruption to district operations.  (Government Code 12945.2; 
2 CCR 11050, 11091) 
 
Certification of Health Condition 
 
Within five business days of an employee's request for family care and medical leave for the serious 
health condition of the employee or an eligible family member, the Superintendent or designee shall 
request that the employee provide certification by a health care provider of the need for leave. Upon 
receiving the district's request, the employee shall provide the certification within 15 calendar days, 
unless either the Superintendent or designee provides additional time or it is not practicable under the 
particular circumstances, despite the employee's diligent, good faith efforts.  (2 CCR 11087, 11091; 29 
CFR 825.305) 
 
The certification shall include the following:  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11087; 29 USC 2613) 
 

1. The date on which the serious health condition began 
 

2. The probable duration of the condition 
 

3. If the employee is requesting leave to care for an eligible family member with a serious health 
condition, both of the following: 
 

a. Statement that the serious health condition warrants the participation of the employee to 
provide care, such as by providing psychological comfort, arranging for third party care, 
or directly providing or participating in the medical care of the eligible family member 
during a period of the treatment or supervision 
 

b. Estimated amount of time the health care provider believes the employee needs to care 
for the eligible family member 
  

4. If the employee is requesting leave because of the employee's own serious health condition, a 
statement that due to the serious health condition, the employee is unable to work at all or is 
unable to perform one or more essential job functions of the position 
  



Page 6 of 12 

5. If the employee is requesting leave for intermittent treatment or on a reduced work or leave 
schedule for planned medical treatment, a statement of the medical necessity for the leave, the 
dates on which treatment is expected to be given, the duration of such treatment, and the expected 
duration of the leave 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall not request any genetic information related to an employee except 
as authorized by law in accordance with the California Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 
2011.  (Government Code 12940) 
 
When an employee has provided sufficient medical certification to enable the district to determine 
whether the employee's leave request is FMLA/CFRA-eligible, the Superintendent or designee shall 
notify the employee within five business days whether the leave is FMLA/CFRA-eligible. The 
Superintendent or designee may also retroactively designate leave as FMLA/CFRA leave as long as 
appropriate notice is given to the employee and there is no harm or injury to the employee.  (2 CCR 
11091; 29 CFR 825.301) 
 
If the Superintendent or designee has a good faith objective reason to doubt the validity of a certification 
that accompanies a request for leave for the employee's own serious health condition, the Superintendent 
or designee may require the employee to obtain a second opinion from a district-approved health care 
provider, at district expense. If the second opinion is contrary to the first, the Superintendent or designee 
may require the employee to obtain a third medical opinion from a third health care provider approved by 
both the employee and the district, again at district expense. The opinion of the third health care provider 
shall be final and binding.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11091; 29 USC 2613) 
 
Certification for PDL 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall request that an employee who is requesting PDL provide 
certification by a health care provider of the need for leave at the time the employee gives notice of the 
need for PDL, or within two business days of giving the notice. If the need for PDL is unforeseen, the 
Superintendent or designee shall request the medical certification within two business days after the leave 
commences. The Superintendent or designee may request certification at some later date if the 
Superintendent or designee has reason to question the appropriateness of the leave or its duration.  (2 
CCR 11050) 
 
For PDL that is foreseeable and for which at least 30 days' notice has been given, the employee shall 
provide the medical certification before the leave begins. When this is not practicable, the employee shall 
provide the certification within the time frame specified by the Superintendent or designee which must be 
at least 15 calendar days after the request, unless it is not practicable under the particular circumstances 
despite the employee's diligent, good faith efforts.  (2 CCR 11050) 
 
Medical certification for PDL purposes shall include a statement that the employee needs to take the leave 
because the employee is disabled by pregnancy, childbirth, or a related medical condition, the date on 
which the employee became disabled because of pregnancy, and the estimated duration of the leave.  (2 
CCR 11050) 
 
If additional PDL or family care and medical leave is needed when the time estimated by the health care 
provider expires, the district may require the employee to provide recertification in the manner specified 
for the leave.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11050; 29 USC 2613) 
 



Page 7 of 12 

Release to Return to Work 
 
Upon expiration of an employee's PDL or family care and medical leave taken for the employee's own 
serious health condition, the employee shall present certification from the health care provider of the 
employee's ability to resume work. The certification shall address the employee's ability to perform the 
essential job functions of the position. 
 
Rights to Reinstatement 
 
Upon granting an employee's request for PDL or FMLA/CFRA leave, the Superintendent or designee 
shall guarantee to reinstate the employee in the same or a comparable position when the leave 
ends.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11043, 11089; 29 USC 2614) 
 
The district may refuse to reinstate an employee to the same or a comparable position if the FMLA/CFRA 
leave was fraudulently obtained by the employee.  (2 CCR 11089; 29 CFR 825.216) 
 
The district may refuse to reinstate an employee to the same position after taking PDL if, at the time the 
reinstatement is requested, the employee would not otherwise have been employed in that position for 
legitimate business reasons unrelated to the employee's PDL.  (2 CCR 11043) 
 
Maintenance of Benefits/Failure to Return from Leave 
 
During the period when an employee is on PDL or family care and medical leave, the employee shall 
maintain employee status with the district and the leave shall not constitute a break in service for purposes 
of longevity, seniority under any collective bargaining agreement, or any employee benefit 
plan.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11092; 29 USC 2614) 
 
For up to a maximum of four months for PDL and 12 work weeks for other family care and medical 
leave, the district shall continue to provide an eligible employee the group health plan coverage that was 
in place before the employee took the leave. The employee shall reimburse the district for premiums paid 
during the leave if the employee fails to return to district employment after the expiration of all available 
leaves and the failure is for a reason other than the continuation, recurrence, or onset of a serious health 
condition or other circumstances beyond the employee's control.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 
11044, 11092; 29 USC 2614; 29 CFR 825.213) 
 
In addition, during the period when an employee is on PDL or family care and medical leave, the 
employee shall be entitled to continue to participate in other employee benefit plans including life 
insurance, short-term or long-term disability insurance, accident insurance, pension and retirement plans, 
and supplemental unemployment benefit plans to the same extent and under the same conditions as would 
apply to an unpaid leave taken for any other purpose. However, for purposes of pension and retirement 
plans, the district shall not make plan payments for an employee during any unpaid portion of the leave 
period and the leave period shall not be counted for purposes of time accrued under the 
plan.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11044, 11092) 
 
Military Family Leave Resulting from Qualifying Exigencies 
 
An eligible employee may take up to 12 work weeks of unpaid FMLA/CFRA leave, during each 12-
month period established by the district in the section entitled "Terms of Leave" above, for one or more 
qualifying exigencies while the employee's child, parent, spouse, or, for purposes of CFRA leave, 



Page 8 of 12 

registered domestic partner, who is a military member is on covered active duty or on call to covered 
active duty status.  (Government Code 12945.2; 29 USC 2612; 29 CFR 825.126) 
 
Covered active duty means, for members of the Regular Armed forces, duty during the deployment of a 
member of the regular Armed Forces to a foreign country or and, for members of the Reserve components 
of the Armed forces, duty during the deployment of a member of the National Guard or Reserves to a 
foreign country under a call or an order to active duty in support of a contingency operation pursuant to 
law. Deployment to a foreign county includes deployment to international waters.  (29 USC 2611; 29 
CFR 825.126) 
 
Qualifying exigencies include time needed to:  (29 CFR 825.126) 
 

1. Address issues arising from short notice deployment of up to seven calendar days from the date of 
receipt of call or order of short notice deployment 
  

2. Attend military events and related activities, such as any official ceremony or family assistance 
program related to the covered active duty or call to covered active duty status 
  

3. Arrange child care or attend school activities arising from the covered active duty or call to 
covered active duty, such as arranging for alternative child care, enrolling or transferring a child 
to a new school, or attending meetings 
  

4. Make or update financial and legal arrangements to address a military member's absence 
  

5. Attend counseling provided by someone other than a health care provider 
  

6. Spend time (up to 15 calendar days of leave per instance) with a military member who is on 
short-term, temporary, rest and recuperation leave during deployment 
  

7. Attend to certain post-deployment activities, such as arrival ceremonies or reintegration briefings 
  

8. Care for a military member's parent who is incapable of self-care when the care is necessitated by 
the military member's covered active duty 
  

9. Address any other event that the employee and district agree is a qualifying exigency 
 
The employee shall provide the Superintendent or designee with notice of the need for the qualifying 
exigency leave as soon as practicable, regardless of how far in advance such leave is foreseeable.  (29 
CFR 825.302) 
 
An employee who is requesting leave for qualifying exigencies shall provide the Superintendent or 
designee with a copy of the military member's active duty orders, or other documentation issued by the 
military, and the dates of the service. In addition, the employee shall provide the Superintendent or 
designee with certification of the qualifying exigency necessitating the leave. The certification shall 
contain the information specified in 29 CFR 825.309. 
 
The employee's qualifying exigency leave may be taken on an intermittent or reduced work or leave 
schedule basis.  (29 CFR 825.302) 
 
During the period of qualified exigency leave, the district's rule regarding an employee's use of accrued 
vacation leave and any other accrued paid or unpaid time off, as specified in the section "Use/Substitution 



Page 9 of 12 

of Paid Leave" above, shall apply. 
 
Military Caregiver Leave 
 
The district shall grant an eligible employee up to a total of 26 work weeks of leave during a single 12-
month period, measured forward from the first date the leave is taken, to care for a covered 
servicemember with a serious illness or injury. In order to be eligible for such military caregiver leave, 
the employee must be the spouse, child, parent, or next of kin of the covered servicemember. This 26-
week period is not in addition to, but rather is inclusive of, the 12 work weeks of leave that may be taken 
for other FMLA qualifying reasons.  (29 USC 2611, 2612; 29 CFR 825.127) 
 
Covered servicemember may be:  (29 CFR 825.127) 
 

1. A current member of the Armed Forces, including a member of the National Guard or Reserves, 
who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy; is otherwise in outpatient status; 
or is otherwise on the temporary disability retired list for a serious injury or illness 
  

2. A veteran who was discharged or released under conditions other than dishonorable at any time 
during the five-year period prior to the first date the eligible employee takes FMLA leave to care 
for the covered veteran 

 
Child of a covered servicemember means the covered servicemember's biological, adopted, or foster 
child, stepchild, legal ward, or child for whom the covered servicemember stood in loco parentis, and who 
is of any age.  (29 CFR 825.127) 
 
Parent of a covered servicemember means the covered servicemember's biological, adopted, step, or 
foster parent, or any other individual who stood in loco parentis to the covered servicemember (except 
"parents in law").  (29 CFR 825.127) 
 
Next of kin means the nearest blood relative to the covered servicemember, other than the spouse, parent, 
or child, unless designated in writing by the covered servicemember.  (29 USC 2611, 2612; 29 CFR 
825.127) 
 
Outpatient status means the status of a member of the Armed Forces assigned to a military medical 
treatment facility as an outpatient or a unit established for the purpose of providing command and control 
of members of the Armed Forces receiving medical care as outpatients.  (29 USC 2611; 29 CFR 825.127) 
 
Serious injury or illness means:  (29 USC 2611; 29 CFR 825.127) 
 

1. For a current member of the Armed Forces, an injury or illness incurred by the member in the line 
of duty on active duty, or that existed before the beginning of the member's active duty and was 
aggravated by the member's service in the line of duty while on active duty in the Armed Forces, 
and that may render the member medically unfit to perform the duties of the member's office, 
grade, rank, or rating. 
  

2. For a veteran, an injury or illness incurred or aggravated by the member's service in the line of 
duty on active duty in the Armed Forces, including the National Guard or Reserves, that 
manifested itself before or after the member became a veteran and that is at least one of the 
following: 
   



Page 10 of 12 

a. A continuation of a serious injury or illness incurred or aggravated while the veteran was 
a member of the Armed Forces and rendered the servicemember unable to perform the 
duties of the servicemember's office, grade, rank, or rating 
  

b. A physical or mental condition for which the veteran has received a U.S. Department of 
Veterans Affairs (VA) Service-Related Disability Rating of 50 percent or greater, based 
wholly or partly on that physical or mental condition 
  

c. A physical or mental condition that substantially impairs the veteran's ability to secure or 
follow a substantially gainful occupation by reason of one or more disabilities related to 
the servicemember's military service or that would do so but for treatment received by the 
veteran 
  

d. An injury, including a psychological injury, on the basis of which the veteran has been 
enrolled in the VA's Program of Comprehensive Assistance for Family Caregivers 

 
The employee shall provide reasonable and practicable notice of the need for the leave in accordance with 
the procedures in the section entitled "Request for Leave" above. 
 
An employee requesting leave to care for a covered servicemember with a serious injury or illness shall 
provide the Superintendent or designee with certification from an authorized health care provider of the 
servicemember that contains the information specified in 29 CFR 825.310. 
 
The leave may be taken intermittently or on a reduced work or leave schedule when medically necessary. 
An employee taking military caregiver leave in combination with other family care and medical leaves 
pursuant to this administrative regulation shall be entitled to a combined total of 26 work weeks of leave 
during a single 12-month period. When both spouses work for the district and both wish to take such 
leave, the spouses are limited to a maximum combined total of 26 work weeks during a single 12-month 
period.  (29 USC 2612) 
 
During the period of military caregiver leave, the district's rule regarding an employee's use of accrued 
vacation leave and other accrued paid or unpaid time off, as specified in the section "Use/Substitution of 
Paid Leave" above, shall apply. 
 
Notifications 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide the following notifications regarding state and federal law 
related to PDL or FMLA/CFRA leave:   

1. General Notice:  Information explaining the provisions of the FEHAFair Employment and 
Housing Act/PDL and FMLA/CFRA and employeeemployees’ rights and obligations shall be 
posted in a conspicuous place on district premises, or electronically, and shall be included in 
employee handbooks.  (2 CCR 11049, 11095; 29 USC 2619) 
 

2. The general notice shall also explain an employee's obligation to provide the Superintendent or 
designee with at least 30 days' notice of the need for the requested leave, when the need is 
reasonably foreseeable at least 30 days prior to the start of the leave.  (2 CCR 11049, 11050, 
11091) 
 

3. Eligibility Notice:  When an employee requests leave, including PDL, or when the 
Superintendent or designee acquires knowledge that an employee's leave may be for an 
FMLA/CFRA qualifying reason, the Superintendent or designee shall, within five business days, 



Page 11 of 12 

provide notification to the employee of eligibility to take such leave.  (2 CCR 11049, 11091; 29 
CFR 825.300) 
  

4. Rights and Responsibilities Notice:  Each time the eligibility notice is provided to an employee, 
the Superintendent or designee shall provide written notification explaining the specific 
expectations and obligations of the employee, including any consequences for a failure to meet 
those obligations. Such notice shall include, as applicable:  (29 CFR 825.300) 
   

a. A statement that the leave may be designated and counted against the employee's annual 
FMLA/CFRA leave entitlement and the appropriate 12-month entitlement period, if 
qualifying 
 

b. Any requirements for the employee to furnish medical certification of a serious health 
condition, serious injury or illness, or qualifying exigency arising out of active duty or 
call to active duty status and the consequences of failing to provide the certification 
  

c. The employee's right to use paid leave, whether the district will require use of paid leave, 
conditions related to any use of paid leave, and the employee's entitlement to take unpaid 
leave if the employee does not meet the conditions for paid leave 
  

d. Any requirements for the employee to make premium payments necessary to maintain 
health benefits, the arrangement for making such payments, and the possible 
consequences of failure to make payments on a timely basis 
  

e. The employee's right to maintenance of benefits during the leave and restoration to the 
same or an equivalent job upon return from leave 
  

f. The employee's potential liability for health insurance premiums paid by the district 
during the employee's unpaid FMLA leave should the employee not return to service 
after the leave 
 
Any time the information provided in the above notice changes, the Superintendent or 
designee shall, within five business days of receipt of an employee's first notice of need 
for leave, provide the employee with a written notice referencing the prior notice and 
describing any changes to the notice.  (29 CFR 825.300) 
  

5. Designation Notice: When the Superintendent or designee has information (e.g., sufficient 
medical certification) to determine whether the leave qualifies as FMLA/CFRA leave, he/shethe 
Superintendent or designee shall, within five business days, provide written notification 
designating the leave as FMLA/CFRA qualifying or, if the leave will not be so designated, the 
reason for that determination.  (2 CCR 11091; 29 CFR 825.300) 
 
If the amount of leave needed is known, the notice shall include the number of hours, days, or 
weeks that will be counted against the employee's FMLA/CFRA entitlement. If it is not possible 
to provide that number at the time of the designation notice, notification shall be provided of the 
amount of leave counted against the employee's entitlement upon request by the employee and at 
least once in every 30-day period if leave was taken in that period.  (29 CFR 825.300) 
 

6. If the district requires paid leave to be used during an otherwise unpaid family care and medical 
leave, the notice shall so specify. If the district requires an employee to present a release to return 
to work certification that addresses the employee's ability to perform the essential functions of the 
job, the notice shall also specify that requirement.  (2 CCR 11091, 11097; 29 CFR 825.300) 
 



Page 12 of 12 

Any time the information provided in the designation notice changes, the Superintendent or 
designee shall, within five business days, provide the employee with written notice referencing 
the prior notice and describing any changes to the notice.  (29 CFR 825.300) 

 
Records 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records pertaining to an individual employee's use of 
family care and medicalFMLA or CFRA leave or PDL in accordance with law.    (Government Code 
12946; 29 USC 2616; 42 USC 2000ff-1; 29 CFR 825.500) 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: April 10, 2007  
revised: November 12, 2013  
revised: July 10, 2018 
revised: May 11, 2021 
revised: September 13, 2022 



Page 1 of 6 
Board Policy Manual 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Instruction 
Regulation 6173.1: Education For Foster Youth 

 

 
Definitions 
 
Foster youth, foster child, or student in foster care means aany of the following:  (Education Code 
42238.01, 48853.5)  
 

1. A child who has been removed from his/her home is the subject of a petition filed pursuant to 
Welfare and Institutions Code 309,300, whether or not the child has been removed from the 
child’s home by the juvenile court pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code 319 or 361. 
  

2. A child who is the subject of a petition filed underpursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code 300 
or 602, or has been removed from his/herthe child’s home and is the subject of a petition filed 
underby the juvenile court pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code 300 or 602 or727, and is ain 
foster care as defined by Welfare and Institutions Code 727.4(d).  
  

3. A nonminor who is under the transition jurisdiction of a juvenile court, as described in Welfare 
and Institutions Code 450, and satisfies the criteria specified in Education Code 42238.01. 
(Education Code 42238.01, 48853.5)  
  

4. A dependent child of the court of an Indian tribe, consortium of tribes, or tribal organization who 
is the subject of a petition filed in the tribal court pursuant to the court’s jurisdiction in 
accordance with the tribe’s law 
  

5. A child who is the subject of a voluntary placement agreement, as defined in Welfare and 
Institutions Code 11400 

 
Person holding the right to make educational decisions means a responsible adult appointed by a 
court pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code 361 or 726. 
 
School of origin means the school that the foster youth attended when permanently housed or the school 
in which he/shethe foster youth was last enrolled. If the school the foster youth attended when 
permanently housed is different from the school in which he/she the foster youth was last enrolled, or if 
there is some otheranother school that the foster youth attended within the preceding 15 months and with 
which the foster youth is connected, the district liaison for foster youth shall determine, in the best 
interests of the foster youth, which school shall be deemed the school of origin. This determination shall 
be made in consultation with and with the agreement of the foster youth and the person holding the right 
to make educational decisions for the youth, and in the best interests of the foster youth, which school is 
the school of origin. foster youth.  (Education Code 48853.5) 
 
Best interests of a foster youth means that, in making educational and school placement decisions for a 
foster youth, consideration is given to, among other factors, the proximity to the school at the time of 
placement, appropriateness of the educational setting, educational stability, the opportunity to be educated 
in the least restrictive educational setting necessary to achieve academic progress, and the foster youth's 
access to academic resources, services, and extracurricular and enrichment activities that are available to 
all district students. (Education Code 48850, 48853) (Education Code 48850, 48853; 20 USC 6311) 
 
District Liaison 
 
The Superintendent designates the following position as the district's liaison for foster youth: 



Page 2 of 6 
(Education Code 48853.5) 
 
Superintendent's Office 
Administrative Assistant 
Sierra County Foster Youth Services and McKinney-Vento Liaison 
PO Box 955 
109 Beckwith Rd 
Loyalton, CA 96118 
(530) 993-1660 
 
The liaison for foster youth shall: 
 

1. Ensure and facilitate the proper educational placement, enrollment in school, and checkout from 
school of students in foster care  (Education Code 48853.5) 
 

2. Ensure proper transfer of credits, records, and grades when students in foster care transfer from 
one school to another or from one district to another  (Education Code 48645.5, 48853.5) 
 
When a student in foster care is enrolling in a district school, the liaison or designee shall contact 
the school last attended by the student to obtain, within two business days, all academic and other 
records.  When a foster youth is transferring to a new school, the liaison shall provide the 
student's records to the new school within two business days of receiving the new school's 
request.  (Education Code 48853.5) 
 

3. When required by law, notify theNotify a foster youth's attorney and the representative of the 
appropriate county child welfare agency, when the required by law for a foster youth who is 
undergoing any expulsion or other disciplinary proceeding, including a manifestation 
determination for a foster youth who is a student with a disability, prior to a change in the foster 
youth's placement, when he/she is a student with a disability. .  (Education Code 48853.5, 48911, 
48915.5, 48918.1) 
 

4. As needed, make appropriate referrals to ensure that students in foster care receive necessary 
special education services and services under Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 
1973 
 

5.  As needed, ensure that students in foster care receive appropriate school-based services, such as 
counseling and health services, supplemental instruction, and after-school services 
 

6.  Develop protocols and procedures for creating awareness for district staff, including principals, 
school registrars, and attendance clerks, of the requirements for the proper enrollment, placement, 
and transfer of foster youth 
 

7. Collaborate with the county office of education, county placing agency, county child welfare 
agency, county probation department, juvenile court, and other appropriate agencies to help 
coordinate instruction, counseling, tutoring, mentoring vocational training, and other related 
services for the district's foster youth 
 

8. Monitor the educational progress of foster youth and provide reports to the Superintendent or 
designee and the Governing Board of Education based on indicators identified in the district's 
local control and accountability plan 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall regularly monitor the liaison’s caseload of the liaison, as well as 
his/her additional duties outside of the foster youth program, to determine whetherensure that adequate 
time and resources are availableprovided to meet the needs of foster youth in the district. 



Page 3 of 6 
 
Enrollment 
 
A student placed in a licensed children's institution or foster family home within the district shall attend 
programs operated by the district unless one of the following circumstances applies:  (Education Code 
48853, 48853.5)  
 

1. The student has an individualized education program requiring placement in a nonpublic, 
nonsectarian school or agency or in another local educational agency. 
 

2. The parent/guardian or other person holding the right to make educational decisions for the 
student determines that it is in the best interestinterests of the student to be placed in another 
educationaleducation program and submits a written statement to the district indicating that 
determination and that he/she is awarean awareness of the following: 
   

a. The student has a right to attend a regular public school in the least restrictive 
environment. 
  

b. The alternate educationaleducation program is a special education program, if applicable. 
  

c. The decision to unilaterally remove the student from the district school and to place 
him/herthe student in an alternate education program may not be financed by the district. 
  

d. Any attempt to seek reimbursement for the alternate education program may be at the 
expense of the parent/guardian or other person holding the right to make educational 
decisions for the student. 
 

3. At the initial placement or any subsequent change in placement, the student exercises his/herthe 
right to continue in his/herthe school of origin, as defined above.  In any such circumstance, the 
following shall apply: 
 

a. The student may continue in the school of origin for the duration of the court's 
jurisdiction. 
 

b. If the court's jurisdiction over a grade K-8 student is terminated prior to the end of a 
school year, the student may continue in his/herthe school of origin for the remainder of 
the school year. 
 

c. If the court's jurisdiction is terminated while the student is in high school, the student 
may continue in his/herthe school of origin until he/she graduates.through graduation. 
 

d. If the student is transitioning between school grade levels, he/shethe student shall be 
allowed to continue in the district of origin in the same attendance area to provide 
him/herthe student the benefit of matriculating with his/herthe student’s peers in 
accordance with the established feeder patterns of school districtsin the district. A student 
who is transitioning to a middle school or high school shall be allowed to enroll in the 
school designated for matriculation in another school district. 

 
The role of the liaison shall be advisory with respect to placement decisions and determination of the 
school of origin.  (Education Code 48853.5) 
 
The district liaison may, in consultation with and with the agreement of the foster youth and the person 
holding the right to make educational decisions for the foster youth, recommend that the foster youth's 
right to attend the school of origin be waived and he/shethe foster youth be enrolled in any school that 
students living in the attendance area in which the foster youth resides are eligible to attend. All decisions 



Page 4 of 6 
shall be made in accordance with the foster youth's best interests.  (Education Code 48853.5) 
 
Prior to making any recommendation to move a foster youth from his/herthe school of origin, the liaison 
shall provide the foster youth and the person holding the right to make educational decisions for the youth 
with a written explanation of the basis for the recommendation and how the recommendation serves the 
youth's best interests.  (Education Code 48853.5) 
 
The role of the liaison shall be advisory with respect to placement decisions and determination of the 
school of origin. (Education Code 48853.5) 
 
If the liaison, in consultation with the foster youth and the person holding the right to make educational 
decisions for the foster youth, agrees that the best interests of the foster youth would be served by his/hera 
transfer to a school other than the school of origin, the principal or designee of the new school shall 
immediately enroll the foster youth. The, regardless of whether the foster youth shall be immediately 
enrolled even if he/she: :  (Education Code 48853.5)  
  

1. Has outstanding fees, fines, textbooks, or other items or monies due to the school last attended 
 

2. Does not have clothing normally required by the school, such as school uniforms 
 

3. Is unable to produce records normally required for enrollment, such as previous academic 
records, proof of residency, and medical records, including, but not limited to, immunization 
records or other documentation 

 
If the foster youth or a person withholding the right to make educational decisions for the foster youth 
disagrees with the liaison's enrollment recommendation, he/she mayan appeal tomay be filed with the 
Superintendent. The Superintendent shall make a determination within 30 calendar days of receipt of the 
appeal. Within 30 calendar days of receipt of the Superintendent's decision, the parent/guardian orfoster 
youth or the person holding the right to make educational decisions for the foster youth may appeal that 
decision to the Board. The Board shall consider the issue at its next regularly scheduled meeting. The 
Board's decision shall be final. 
 
If any dispute arises regarding the request of a foster youth to remain in the school of origin, the foster 
youth has the right to remain in the school of origin pending resolution of the dispute. (Ed (Education 
Code 48853.5) 
 
Transportation 
 
The districtSuperintendent or designee shall not be responsible for providingcollaborate with the local 
child welfare agency to determine how transportation to will be provided, arranged, and fromfunded in a 
cost-effective manner to enable a foster youth to remain in the school of origin., for the duration of the 
time spent in foster care, when it is in the foster youth’s best interest to do so. Such transportation costs 
may be paid by either the child welfare agency or the district, or shared by both.  (20 USC 6312) 
 
Effect of Absences on Grades 
 
The grades of a student in foster care shall not be lowered for any absence from school that is due to 
either of the following circumstances:  (Education Code 49069.5)   
 

1. A decision by a court or placement agency to change the student's placement, in which case the 
student's grades shall be calculated as of the date he/shethe student left school 
 

2. A verified court appearance or related court-ordered activity 
 



Page 5 of 6 
Transfer of Coursework and Credits 
 
When a foster youth transfers into a district school, the district shall accept and issue full credit for any 
coursework that the foster youth has satisfactorily completed while attending another public school, a 
juvenile court school, or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency and shall not require the foster youth 
to retake the course.  (Education Code 51225.2) 
 
If the foster youth did not complete the entire course, he/she  was not completed at the previous school, 
the foster youth shall be issued partial credit for the coursework completed and shall be required to take 
the uncompleted portion of the course that he/she did not complete at his/her previous school. .  However, 
the district may require the foster youth to retake the portion of the course completed if, in consultation 
with the holder of educational rights for the foster youth, the district finds that the foster youth is 
reasonably able to complete the requirements in time to graduate from high school. Whenever partial 
credit is issued to a foster youth in any particular course, he/shethe foster youth shall be enrolled in the 
same or equivalent course, if applicable, so that he/she may continue and completeto enable the 
completion of the entire course.  (Education Code 51225.2) 
 
Partial credits shall be awarded on the basis of 0.5 credits for every seven class periods attended per 
subject. If the school is on a block schedule, each block schedule class period attended shall be equal to 
two regular class periods per subject.  Partial credits and grades earned by a student shall be included on 
the student's official transcript within two business days of the district's notification of the student's 
transfer, as required under Education Code 49069.5. 
 
In no event shall the district prevent a foster youth from taking or retaking a course to meet the eligibility 
requirements for admission to the California State University or the University of California.  (Education 
Code 51225.2) 
 
Applicability of Graduation Requirements 
 
To obtain a high school diploma, a foster youth shall complete all courses required by Education Code 
51225.3 and fulfill any additional graduation requirements prescribed by the Board. 
 
However, when a foster youth who has completed his/herthe second year of high school transfers into the 
district from another school district or transfers between high schools within the district, he/shethe foster 
youth shall be exempted from all district-adopted coursework and other district-established graduation 
requirements, unless the district makes a finding that the student is reasonably able to complete the 
additional requirements in time to graduate from high school by the end of his/herthe fourth year of high 
school. Within 30 calendar days of the foster youth's transfer, the Superintendent or designee shall notify 
the foster youth, the person holding the right to make educational decisions for him/herthe foster youth, 
and the foster youth's social worker of the availability of the exemption and whether the foster youth 
qualifies for it. If the Superintendent or designee fails to provide this notification, the student shall be 
eligible for the exemption once notified, even if the notification occurs after the student is no longer a 
foster youth.  (Education Code 51225.1, 60851)) 
 
To determine whether a foster youth is in his/herthe third or fourth year of high school, the district shall 
use either the number of credits the foster youth has earned as of the date of the transfer or the length of 
his/her school enrollment, whichever qualifies him/herthe foster youth for the exemption.  (Education 
Code 51225.1) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall notify any foster youth who is granted an exemption and the person 
holding the right to make educational decisions for him/herthe foster youth how any requirements that are 
waived will affect the foster youth's ability to gain admission to a postsecondary educational institution 
and shall provide information about transfer opportunities available through the California Community 
Colleges.  (Education Code 51225.1) 



Page 6 of 6 
 
The district shall not require or request a foster youth to transfer schools in order to qualify for an 
exemption and no shall not grant any request for a transfer solely to qualify for an exemption shall be 
made by a foster youth or any person acting on behalf of a foster youth.  for a transfer solely to qualify the 
foster youth for an exemption.  (Education Code 51225.1) 
 
If a foster youth is exempted from local graduation requirements, the exemption shall continue to apply 
after the termination of the court's jurisdiction over the student while he/she is still enrolled in school or if 
he/shethe foster youth transfers to another school or school district.  (Education Code 51225.1) 
 
Upon making a finding that a foster youth is reasonably able to complete district graduation requirements 
within his/herthe fifth year of high school, the Superintendent or designee shall:  (Education Code 
51225.1)   
 

1. Inform the foster youth and the person holding the right to make educational decisions for 
him/her of the foster youth'syouth of the option to remain in school for a fifth year to complete 
the district's graduation requirements and how that will affect his/herthe foster youth’s ability to 
gain admission to a postsecondary educational institution 
  

2. Provide information to the foster youth about transfer opportunities available through the 
California Community Colleges 
  

3. Upon agreement with the foster youth or, if he/she is under 18 years of age, the person holding 
the right to make educational decisions for him/herthe foster youth, permit the foster youth to stay 
in school for a fifth year to complete the district's graduation requirements 

 
Eligibility for Extracurricular Activities 
 
A foster youth whose residence changes pursuant to a court order or decision of a child welfare worker 
shall be immediately deemed to meet all residency requirements for participation in interscholastic sports 
or other extracurricular activities.  (Education Code 48850) 
 
Notification and Complaints 
 
Information regarding the educational rights of foster youth shall be included in the annual uniform 
complaint procedures notification distributed to students, parents/guardians, employees, and other 
interested parties pursuant to 5 CCR 4622.  (Education Code 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2) 
 
Any complaint alleging that the district has not complied with requirements regarding the education of 
foster youth may be filed in accordance with the district's procedures in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint 
Procedures. If the district finds merit in a complaint, the district shall provide a remedy to the affected 
student. A complainant not satisfied with the district's decision may appeal the decision to the California 
Department of Education (CDE) and shall receive a written decision regarding the appeal within 60 days 
of CDE's receipt of the appeal. If the CDE finds merit in an appeal, the district shall provide a remedy to 
the affected student.  (Education Code 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2) 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: April 18, 2014 
revised: February 9, 2016 
revised: September 13, 2016 
revised: September 13, 2022 



Title: Policy Deletions 

Item Type: Action 

Background/Summary: 

Our district subscribes to GAMUT Policy Plus – a service provided by CSBA to help us update and 
maintain current school board policies. The program gives us access to 700 sample policies, regulations, 
bylaws and exhibits that are updated by CSBA on a regular quarterly basis. We also receive ongoing 
consulting services and a customized district website to host and manage our own district policies. CSBA 
has updated the program with a new technology platform has a built-in translation feature, and uses a 
uniform codification system (e.g., policy numbering system) that allows us to search across CSBA’s 
sample policies and the adopted policies of more than 600 other districts in California, and enables CSBA 
to push updates directly to our site as drafts whenever updates are released. There is no additional cost 
for the new program and features.  

As part of the transition to the new platform CSBA identified some policies that refer to state of federal 
programs/funding that no longer exist. Because the policies are outdated, it is recommended that we 
delete these policies from the policy manual. 

Proposed Motion: Move to rescind the policies listed in the attachment to this item. 

  



Type Current Policy Number DISTRICT TITLE Month and Year Deleted by CSBA Reason for Deletion 
BP/AR 4138 Mentor Teachers Aug-14 Policy and regulation deleted due to the elimination of the Certificated 

Staff Mentoring Program pursuant to NEW LAW (AB 97, 2013).  Key 
concepts incorporated into new BP 4131.1 - Teacher Support and 
Guidance.

BP/AR 4139 Peer Assistance And Review Aug-14 Policy and regulation deleted due to the elimination of the PAR program 
pursuant to NEW LAW (AB 97, 2013).  Key concepts incorporated into 
new BP 4131.1 - Teacher Support and Guidance

Policies to Delete: These are policies for which CSBA at some point in time maintained a sample.  The related samples are no longer in the CSBA sample manual for reasons such as repeal of 
the law on which they are based and/or changed circumstances that have rendered the policies unnecessary or outdated. District should consider deleting these policies in light of the 
information provided by CSBA. If the District chooses to retain these policies, the district should contact CSBA to assign new policy codes.



Title: Updating Policy Titles 

Item Type: Action 

Background/Summary: 

Our district subscribes to GAMUT Policy Plus – a service provided by CSBA to help us update and 
maintain current school board policies. The program gives us access to 700 sample policies, regulations, 
bylaws and exhibits that are updated by CSBA on a regular quarterly basis. We also receive ongoing 
consulting services and a customized district website to host and manage our own district policies. CSBA 
has updated the program with a new technology platform has a built in translation feature, and uses a 
uniform codification system (e.g., policy numbering system) that allows us to search across CSBA’s 
sample policies and the adopted policies of more than 600 other districts in California, and enables CSBA 
to push updates directly to our site as drafts whenever updates are released. There is no additional cost 
for the new program and features.  

As part of the transition to the new platform CSBA has identified policies that are unique to our district 
so they can be added to the codification system in GAMUT. This will allow us to keep our unique 
policies. In creating the list, CSBA identified several policies that are unique to our district, but are 
similar to existing CSBA sample policies. CSBA is recommending that we rename the policies to match 
the CSBA title in the codification system so we are alerted to updates that are likely to impact our 
unique policy. The only change will be to the title of policy. 

Proposed Motion: Move to adopt the recommend CSBA titles for the policies listed in the attachment to 
this item. 

 

  



Type POLICY NUMBER DISTRICT TITLE IN OLD GAMUT NEW TITLE

AR 4300 Management, Supervisory And Confidential Personnel Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

BP 4300 Management, Supervisory And Confidential Personnel Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

AR 4313.2 Promotion/Demotion/Reassignment Demotion/Reassignment
BP 4313.2 Promotion/Demotion/Reassignment Demotion/Reassignment
BP 5131.5 Vandalism, Theft And Graffiti Vandalism And Graffiti
AR 5145.11 Questioning And Apprehension Questioning And Apprehension By Law Enforcement
BP 6142.4 Learning Through Community Service Service Learning/Community Service Classes
AR 6181 Alternative Schools Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice
BP 6181 Alternative Schools Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice
B 9220 Board Of Education Elections Governing Board Elections
BP 4315.1 Staff Evaluating Teachers ^Administrative Competence in Evaluation

These are policies that were copied from the old GAMUT into the new GAMUT Policy Plus site with the CSBA title. In most cases the title is only sightly different 
from the district title. The district should review the policy to make sure the district's policy content aligns with the new title. If the new title is ok, the board 
should approve the new title, check the approved box in GAMUT Policy Plus, and enter the approval date. If the new title is not aligned with the CSBA title, the  
district should contact CSBA to assign a new policy code.



Title: Updating Policy Numbers 

Item Type: Information 

Background/Summary: 

Our district subscribes to GAMUT Policy Plus – a service provided by CSBA to help us update and 
maintain current school board policies. The program gives us access to 700 sample policies, regulations, 
bylaws and exhibits that are updated by CSBA on a regular quarterly basis. We also receive ongoing 
consulting services and a customized district website to host and manage our own district policies. CSBA 
has updated the program with a new technology platform has a built-in translation feature, and uses a 
uniform codification system (e.g., policy numbering system) that allows us to search across CSBA’s 
sample policies and the adopted policies of more than 600 other districts in California, and enables CSBA 
to push updates directly to our site as drafts whenever updates are released. There is no additional cost 
for the new program and features.  

As part of the transition to the new platform CSBA identified some policies that are unique to our district 
and need new policy numbers assigned to them so they are consistent with the codification system in 
GAMUT. Policy numbers are a way of indexing the policies and are not part of the policies themselves. 
Therefore, renumbering policies does not require board action. This information item is to provide 
notice of the new numbers that have been assigned to the policies in the attachment to this item. 

  



Type Current Policy Number DISTRICT TITLE New Title for GAMUT Policy Plus New Policy Number
AR 4031 Complaints Concerning Discrimination In Employment ^Complaints Concerning Discrimination In Employment 4031

BP 4034 School/Office Closure Due To Emergency Conditions ^School/Office Closure Due To Emergency Conditions 4034.1

AR 4113.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment 4113.4
BP 4117.12 Retirement Consultancy Contracts ^Retirement Consultancy Contracts 4117.12
AR 4117.12-R(1) Retirement Consultancy Contracts ^Retirement Consultancy Contracts 4117.12
AR 4213.4 Temporary Modified/Light Duty Assignment Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment 4213.4
AR 4313.4 Temporary Modified/Light Duty Assignment Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment 4313.4
BP 4317.12 Retirement Consultancy Contracts ^Retirement Consultancy Contracts 4317.12
AR 4317.12-R(1) Retirement Consultancy Contracts ^Retirement Consultancy Contracts 4317.12
AR 4317.3-R(1) Personnel Reduction ^Personnel Reduction 4317.3
AR 5111.12-R(1) Residency Based On Parent/Guardian Employment ^Residency Based On Parent/Guardian Employment 5111.12
AR 5148.1 Child Care Services For Parenting Students ^Child Care Services for Parenting Students 5148.1
BP 5149 At-Risk Students ^At-Risk Students 5149
BP 6161 Equipment, Books And Materials ^Equipment, Books and Materials 6161
AR 6162.7 Use Of Technology In Instruction ^Use Of Technology In Instruction 6162.7
BP 6162.7 Use Of Technology In Instruction ^Use Of Technology In Instruction 6162.7
BP 6030 Integrated Academic And Vocational Instruction ^Integrated Academic and Vocational Instruction 6178.3
AR 6030-R(1) Integrated Academic And Vocational Instruction ^Integrated Academic and Vocational Instruction 6178.3
BP 6300 Preschool/Early Childhood Education ^Preschool/Early Childhood Education 6300
AR 7214 General Obligation Bond General Obligation Bonds 7214

These are policies that have a unique code and title for which CSBA does not have a comparable sample. The district is advised to review the policy to determine if they want to keep it. These 
policies will not be regularly reviewed or updated by CSBA. These policies with unique codes and titles should be placed on the agenda as an information item. No board action is required.



Title: Policy Deletions 

Item Type: Action 

Background/Summary: 

Our district subscribes to GAMUT Policy Plus – a service provided by CSBA to help us update and 
maintain current school board policies. The program gives us access to 700 sample policies, regulations, 
bylaws and exhibits that are updated by CSBA on a regular quarterly basis. We also receive ongoing 
consulting services and a customized district website to host and manage our own district policies. CSBA 
has updated the program with a new technology platform has a built-in translation feature, and uses a 
uniform codification system (e.g., policy numbering system) that allows us to search across CSBA’s 
sample policies and the adopted policies of more than 600 other districts in California, and enables CSBA 
to push updates directly to our site as drafts whenever updates are released. There is no additional cost 
for the new program and features.  

As part of the transition to the new platform CSBA identified some policies that refer to state of federal 
programs/funding that no longer exist. Because the policies are outdated, it is recommended that we 
delete these policies from the policy manual. 

Proposed Motion: Move to rescind the policies listed in the attachment to this item. 

  



Type Current Policy Number DISTRICT TITLE Month and Year Deleted by CSBA Reason for Deletion 
BP/AR 4138 Mentor Teachers Aug-14 Policy and regulation deleted due to the elimination of the Certificated 

Staff Mentoring Program pursuant to NEW LAW (AB 97, 2013).  Key 
concepts incorporated into new BP 4131.1 - Teacher Support and 
Guidance.

BP/AR 4139 Peer Assistance And Review Aug-14 Policy and regulation deleted due to the elimination of the PAR program 
pursuant to NEW LAW (AB 97, 2013).  Key concepts incorporated into 
new BP 4131.1 - Teacher Support and Guidance

Policies to Delete: These are policies for which CSBA at some point in time maintained a sample.  The related samples are no longer in the CSBA sample manual for reasons such as repeal of 
the law on which they are based and/or changed circumstances that have rendered the policies unnecessary or outdated. District should consider deleting these policies in light of the 
information provided by CSBA. If the District chooses to retain these policies, the district should contact CSBA to assign new policy codes.



Title: Updating Policy Titles 

Item Type: Action 

Background/Summary: 

Our district subscribes to GAMUT Policy Plus – a service provided by CSBA to help us update and 
maintain current school board policies. The program gives us access to 700 sample policies, regulations, 
bylaws and exhibits that are updated by CSBA on a regular quarterly basis. We also receive ongoing 
consulting services and a customized district website to host and manage our own district policies. CSBA 
has updated the program with a new technology platform has a built in translation feature, and uses a 
uniform codification system (e.g., policy numbering system) that allows us to search across CSBA’s 
sample policies and the adopted policies of more than 600 other districts in California, and enables CSBA 
to push updates directly to our site as drafts whenever updates are released. There is no additional cost 
for the new program and features.  

As part of the transition to the new platform CSBA has identified policies that are unique to our district 
so they can be added to the codification system in GAMUT. This will allow us to keep our unique 
policies. In creating the list, CSBA identified several policies that are unique to our district, but are 
similar to existing CSBA sample policies. CSBA is recommending that we rename the policies to match 
the CSBA title in the codification system so we are alerted to updates that are likely to impact our 
unique policy. The only change will be to the title of policy. 

Proposed Motion: Move to adopt the recommend CSBA titles for the policies listed in the attachment to 
this item. 

 

  



Type POLICY NUMBER DISTRICT TITLE IN OLD GAMUT NEW TITLE

AR 4300 Management, Supervisory And Confidential Personnel Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

BP 4300 Management, Supervisory And Confidential Personnel Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

AR 4313.2 Promotion/Demotion/Reassignment Demotion/Reassignment
BP 4313.2 Promotion/Demotion/Reassignment Demotion/Reassignment
BP 5131.5 Vandalism, Theft And Graffiti Vandalism And Graffiti
AR 5145.11 Questioning And Apprehension Questioning And Apprehension By Law Enforcement
BP 6142.4 Learning Through Community Service Service Learning/Community Service Classes
AR 6181 Alternative Schools Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice
BP 6181 Alternative Schools Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice
B 9220 Board Of Education Elections Governing Board Elections
BP 4315.1 Staff Evaluating Teachers ^Administrative Competence in Evaluation

These are policies that were copied from the old GAMUT into the new GAMUT Policy Plus site with the CSBA title. In most cases the title is only sightly different 
from the district title. The district should review the policy to make sure the district's policy content aligns with the new title. If the new title is ok, the board 
should approve the new title, check the approved box in GAMUT Policy Plus, and enter the approval date. If the new title is not aligned with the CSBA title, the  
district should contact CSBA to assign a new policy code.



Title: Updating Policy Numbers 

Item Type: Information 

Background/Summary: 

Our district subscribes to GAMUT Policy Plus – a service provided by CSBA to help us update and 
maintain current school board policies. The program gives us access to 700 sample policies, regulations, 
bylaws and exhibits that are updated by CSBA on a regular quarterly basis. We also receive ongoing 
consulting services and a customized district website to host and manage our own district policies. CSBA 
has updated the program with a new technology platform has a built-in translation feature, and uses a 
uniform codification system (e.g., policy numbering system) that allows us to search across CSBA’s 
sample policies and the adopted policies of more than 600 other districts in California, and enables CSBA 
to push updates directly to our site as drafts whenever updates are released. There is no additional cost 
for the new program and features.  

As part of the transition to the new platform CSBA identified some policies that are unique to our district 
and need new policy numbers assigned to them so they are consistent with the codification system in 
GAMUT. Policy numbers are a way of indexing the policies and are not part of the policies themselves. 
Therefore, renumbering policies does not require board action. This information item is to provide 
notice of the new numbers that have been assigned to the policies in the attachment to this item. 

  



Type Current Policy Number DISTRICT TITLE New Title for GAMUT Policy Plus New Policy Number
AR 4031 Complaints Concerning Discrimination In Employment ^Complaints Concerning Discrimination In Employment 4031

BP 4034 School/Office Closure Due To Emergency Conditions ^School/Office Closure Due To Emergency Conditions 4034.1

AR 4113.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment 4113.4
BP 4117.12 Retirement Consultancy Contracts ^Retirement Consultancy Contracts 4117.12
AR 4117.12-R(1) Retirement Consultancy Contracts ^Retirement Consultancy Contracts 4117.12
AR 4213.4 Temporary Modified/Light Duty Assignment Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment 4213.4
AR 4313.4 Temporary Modified/Light Duty Assignment Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment 4313.4
BP 4317.12 Retirement Consultancy Contracts ^Retirement Consultancy Contracts 4317.12
AR 4317.12-R(1) Retirement Consultancy Contracts ^Retirement Consultancy Contracts 4317.12
AR 4317.3-R(1) Personnel Reduction ^Personnel Reduction 4317.3
AR 5111.12-R(1) Residency Based On Parent/Guardian Employment ^Residency Based On Parent/Guardian Employment 5111.12
AR 5148.1 Child Care Services For Parenting Students ^Child Care Services for Parenting Students 5148.1
BP 5149 At-Risk Students ^At-Risk Students 5149
BP 6161 Equipment, Books And Materials ^Equipment, Books and Materials 6161
AR 6162.7 Use Of Technology In Instruction ^Use Of Technology In Instruction 6162.7
BP 6162.7 Use Of Technology In Instruction ^Use Of Technology In Instruction 6162.7
BP 6030 Integrated Academic And Vocational Instruction ^Integrated Academic and Vocational Instruction 6178.3
AR 6030-R(1) Integrated Academic And Vocational Instruction ^Integrated Academic and Vocational Instruction 6178.3
BP 6300 Preschool/Early Childhood Education ^Preschool/Early Childhood Education 6300
AR 7214 General Obligation Bond General Obligation Bonds 7214

These are policies that have a unique code and title for which CSBA does not have a comparable sample. The district is advised to review the policy to determine if they want to keep it. These 
policies will not be regularly reviewed or updated by CSBA. These policies with unique codes and titles should be placed on the agenda as an information item. No board action is required.



Page 1 of 4 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Instruction 
Policy 6146.1: High School Graduation Requirements 

 

 
The Governing Board desires to prepare all students to successfully complete the high school course of 
study and obtain a diploma that represents their educational achievement and increases their opportunities 
for postsecondary education and employment. 
 
Course Requirements 
 
To obtain a high school diploma, students shall complete the following courses in grades 9-12, with each 
course being one year unless otherwise specified: 
 

1. Four courses in English  (Education Code 51225.3) 
 

2. Three courses in mathematics  (Education Code 51225.3) 
Students shall complete at least one mathematics course that meets the state academic content 
standards for Algebra I or Mathematics I.  Students may complete such coursework prior to grade 
9 provided that they also complete two mathematics courses in grades 9-12.  (Education Code 
51224.5) 
 
Students may be awarded up to one mathematics course credit for successful completion of an 
approved computer science course that is classified as a "category c" course based on the "a-g" 
course requirements for college admission, which may be counted toward additional graduation 
requirements in mathematics.  (Education Code 51225.3, 51225.35) 
 

3. Two courses in science, including biological and physical sciences  (Education Code 51225.3) 
 

4. Three courses in social studies, including United States history and geography; world history, 
culture, and geography; a one-semester course in American government and civics; and a one-
semester course in economics  (Education Code 51225.3) 
 

5. One course in visual or performing arts, world language, or career technical education (CTE).  
For purposes of this requirement, a course in American Sign Language shall be deemed a course 
in world language.  (Education Code 51225.3) 
 
To be counted towards meeting graduation requirements, a CTE course shall be aligned to the 
CTE model curriculum standards and framework adopted by the State Board of Education.  
(Education Code 51225.3) 
  

6. Two courses in physical education, unless the student has been otherwise exempted pursuant to 
other sections of the Education Code  (Education Code 51225.3) 
 

7.  Senior Project 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 4 

8.7. Completion, in grade 12 or academic equivalent, one senior project, the requirements of which 
are determined and outlined by the high school faculty and administration, to include a research 
paper, project activity and formal presentation. 
 
With the inception of a 7 period schedule, tThe unit requirements for Loyalton High School and 
Downieville High School are 30 units less than a full schedule taken every year for four years. 
Units may change based on number of total courses available to take in a given year (i.e. 8-
period, 7-period, etc): 
 
Class of 2019 - 1One year 7 periods, 3 years 8 periods - 300 Credits 
Class of 2020 - 2Two years 7 periods, 2 years 8 periods - 290 Credits 
Class of 2021 - 3Three years 7 periods, 1 year 8 periods - 275 Credits 
Class of 2022 - All 4 years 7 periods - 260 Credits 
Class of 2023 – 1 year 7; 1 year 8 +Flex; 1 year 8; 1 year 7 +Flex 280 Credits 
Class of 2024 – 1 year 8 +Flex; 1 year 8; 2 years 7 +Flex 285 Credits 
Class of 2025 – 1 year 8; 3 years 7 +Flex 275 Credits 
Class of 2026 – 4 years 7 periods +Flex 270 Credits 

 
       All district schools on an 8-period day shall remain at 300 Credits. 

 
Because the prescribed course of study may not accommodate the needs of some students, the Board shall 
provide alternative means for the completion of prescribed courses in accordance with law. 
 
Exemptions from District-Adopted Graduation Requirements 
 
District students are required to complete graduation course requirements specified above, including the 
requirements imposed by Education Code 51225.3 and those adopted by the Board. However, a foster 
youth, homeless student, former juvenile court school student, child of a military family, or migrant 
student who transfers into the district or between district schools any time after completing the second 
year of high school, or a newly arrived immigrant student who is in the third or fourth year of high school 
and is participating in a newcomer program, shall be exempted from any graduation requirements adopted 
by the Board that are in addition to statewide course requirements. This exemption shall not apply if the 
Superintendent or designee makes a finding that the student is reasonably able to complete the 
requirements in time to graduate by the end of the fourth year of high school. 
 
Within 30 days of the transfer into a school or of the commencement of participation in a newcomer 
program, as applicable, the Superintendent or designee shall notify any eligible student of the availability 
of the exemption and whether the student qualifies for it.  (Education Code 51225.1) 
 
If during the 2020-21 school year a student was in the third or fourth year of high school and is not on 
track to graduate in four years, the district shall exempt the student from any local graduation 
requirements adopted by the Board that are in addition to statewide course requirements specified in 
Education Code 51225.3.  (Education Code 51225) 
 
Additional Opportunities to Complete Required Coursework 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide a student who was enrolled in the third or fourth year of 
high school during the 2020-21 school year and is not on track to graduate in the 2020-21 or 2021-22 
school years the opportunity to complete the statewide coursework required for graduation, which may 
include, but is not limited to, completion of the coursework through a fifth year of instruction, credit 
recovery, or other opportunity to complete the required coursework.  (Education Code 51225) 



Page 3 of 4 

 
 
 
Retroactive Diplomas 
 
Any student who completed grade 12 in the 2003-04 through 2014-15 school year and met all applicable 
graduation requirements other than the passage of the high school exit examination shall be granted a high 
school diploma.  (Education Code 51413) 
 
In addition, the district may retroactively grant high school diplomas to former students who:  (Education 
Code 48204.4, 51430, 51440) 
 

1. Departed California against their will while in grade 12 and did not receive a diploma 
because the departure interrupted their education, provided that they were in good academic 
standing at the time of the departure. 
 
Persons may be considered to have departed California against their will if they were in 
custody of a government agency and were transferred to another state, were subject to a 
lawful order from a court or government agency that authorized their removal from 
California, were subject to a lawful order and were permitted to depart California before 
being removed from California pursuant to the lawful order, were removed or were permitted 
to depart voluntarily pursuant to the federal Immigration and Nationality Act, or departed due 
to other circumstances determined by the district that are consistent with the purposes of 
Education Code 48204.4. 
 
In determining whether to award a diploma under these circumstances, the Superintendent or 
designee shall consider any coursework that may have been completed outside of the United 
States or through online or virtual courses. 

 
2. Were interned by order of the federal government during World War II or are honorably 

discharged veterans of World War II, the Korean War, or the Vietnam War, provided that 
they were enrolled in a district school immediately preceding the internment or military 
service and did not receive a diploma because their education was interrupted due to the 
internment or military service in those wars. 
 
Deceased former students who satisfy these conditions may be granted a retroactive diploma 
to be received by their next of kin. 

 
3. Are veterans who entered the military service of the United States while in grade 12 and who 

had satisfactorily completed the first half of the work required for grade 12 in a district 
school. 

 
4. Were in their senior year of high school during the 2019-20 school year, were in good 

academic standing and on track to graduate at the end of the 2019-20 school year as of March 
1, 2020, and were unable to complete the statewide graduation requirements as a result of the 
COVID-19 crisis. 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 4 

Honorary Diplomas 
 
The Board may grant an honorary high school diploma to: (Education Code 51225.5) 
 

1. An international exchange student who has not completed the course of study ordinarily 
required for graduation and who is returning to the student's home country following the 
completion of one academic school year in the district 
 

2. A student who is terminally ill 
 
The honorary diploma shall be clearly distinguishable from the regular diploma of graduation awarded by 
the district. (Education Code 51225.5) 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: September 14, 2010  
revised: April 12, 2011 
revised: May 8, 2012 
revised: April 8, 2014 
revised: February 9, 2016 
revised: February 14, 2017 
revised: February 13, 2018 
revised: September 11, 2018 
revised: March 12, 2019 
revised: June 11, 2019 
revised: April 13, 2021 
revised: December 13, 2021 
revised: September 13, 2022 




